Crosst)rlci

COMNDOMINIUM SERVY ('._’
July 8, 2021

RE: Suite 1210 Unit 10 Level 12, Parking PB-030 Unit 30 Level B of
York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112

Dear Sir or Madam:

As requested, we are pleased to provide a status certificate for the above-noted unit along with other
documents pertaining to the condominium corporation.

To ensure the highest standard of accuracy in the keeping of ownership records we encourage new owners
to have their solicitor directly provide the corporation with a copy of page 1 of the Transfer Deed, which will
detail all dwelling, parking and locker unit information as applicable. All correspondence to the Corporation is
to be delivered by hand, mail or fax at 905 597 0947 to York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No.
1112, c/o Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd., 7 North Park Road, Thornhill, ON L4J 0C9 or by email to
VistaatThornhillCityCentre@crossbridgecs.com.

In accordance with current legislation, a person, upon becoming an owner in a corporation is required within
30 days to give written notice to the corporation of their:

e Name

e  Unit Number

e Address for Service (mailing address)

If the address for service is not in the Province of Ontario then the address for service will be that of the unit
in the condominium corporation.

Until and unless such notification is provided to the Corporation, its records shall remain in the name of the
present owner as prescribed under the Condominium Act, 1998 and the new owner will not receive notices of
any meetings and other written communication from the Corporation.

We inform you that maintenance fees on a unit are due on the first day of each month. Maintenance fees
may be paid by pre-authorized fund transfer (PAFT). Please complete the enclosed PAFT form and return to
the management office at the above-noted address for service.

If the unit is intended to serve as a rental property then please ensure that the enclosed Summary of Lease
or Renewal is completed and returned to the management office.

It is the purchaser’s responsibility to obtain two key fobs, one garage opener and two mailbox keys
from the lawyers.

The Corporation installed a medeco key system for all suites. Please ensure you receive from the
seller either 4 medeco keys or the monetary equivalent of the suite door re-key ($210.00)
You are welcome to contact the condominium manager at (905)597-0953 with any questions.

Yours very truly,
Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.

CeI=" S D i g

Adelina Dragu
Property Manager

Enclosures



STATUS CERTIFICATE
(UNDER SUBSECTION 76 (1) OF THE CONDOMINIUM ACT, 1998)

York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112 (known as the “Corporation”) certifies
that as of the date of this certificate:

General Information Concerning the Corporation

1. Mailing address: YRSCC 1112 - Vista at Thornhill City Centre
c/o Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.
7 North Park Road
Thornhill, ON L4J 0C9

2. Address for service: same as above

3. Property manager: Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.
111 Gordon Baker Road
Suite 700

North York, ON M2H 3R1
On-Site Property Manager: Adelina Dragu, (905)597-0953

4. The directors and officers of the Corporation are:

Name Position Address for Service Telephone Number
Murray Garceau General Manager Same Above (905)597-0953
Sam Grossman President Same Above (905)597-0953
Itia Golan Secretary Same Above (905)597-0953
Carolyn Grosh Treasurer Same Above (905)597-0953
Gerald Frank Vice President Same Above (905)597-0953

Common Expenses

5. The owner of Suite 1210 Unit 10 Level 12, Parking PB-030 Unit 30 Level B at 7 North Park Road,
Thornhill, ON L4J 0C9 of York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112, registered in
the Land Registry Office for the Land Titles Division of Toronto is not in default in the payment of
common expenses.

6. A payment on account for the unit for Cable/Internet/Satellite TV - Income charges of $47.34 plus
Common Expense Contribution charges of $491.93 for a total fee of $539.27 is due on 01 Aug 2021
for the period 01 Aug 2021 to 31 Aug 2021. This amount includes the amount of any increase since
the date of the budget of the Corporation for the current fiscal year as described in paragraph 10The
Corporation has the amount of $ 0 in prepaid common expenses for the unit.



7.

In addition to the above, the unit owner is responsible for the cost of all in-suite hydro, which is billed
directly to the owner. The owner and purchaser are responsible for contacting the provider, Alectra
Utilities at 1-877-963 6900 to change ownership details and to ensure there are no outstanding

balances Beware that bllllng is always a month behind. Any—uﬂpad—u#h!&es—ape—deemed—te-be—m

There are no amounts that the Condominium Act, 1998 requires to be added to the common
expenses payable for the unit, however, a monthly charge of $47.34 for Rogers Cable TV is added
and included in the amount set out in 6 above.

Budget

8.

10.

1.

The Corporation is presently meeting its obligations as and when they become due and are not
presently considering any increase in the common expenses until the next fiscal period commencing
November 1, 2021. To this extent, the current budget is accurate, however, the Corporation may not
accurately determine whether the budget will result in a surplus or a deficit at this time as the
Corporation has no control over any unannounced increases in utility rates, labour and material costs
and any other similar factors which are beyond normal budgetary controls. A surplus or a deficit is
undetermined at this time.

Since the date of the budget of the Corporation for the current fiscal year, the common expenses for
the unit have not been increased.

Since the date of the budget of the Corporation for the current fiscal year, the board has not levied
any assessments against the unit to increase the contribution to the reserve fund or the Corporation’s
operating fund or for any other purpose.

The approved budget for the new fiscal year November 1, 2020 to October 31, 2021 reflects an
increase of 5.87% to the common element assessment. The corporation has no knowledge of any
circumstances that may result in an increase in the common expense for the unit, except:.

a) We've learned that our insurance premiums and/or deductibles may increase beyond
inflation in the next fiscal year(s). If so, this could result in an increase in common
expenses (beyond inflation).

b) It appears that the COVID-19 crisis may cause the condominium corporation to incur
expenses beyond the current budget (see Paragraph 9 in relation to any anticipated
budget deficit or surplus). We won’t know the precise amount of any resulting deficit (and
any resulting increase in common expenses) until the crisis is behind us.

c) On November 1, 2019, amendments to the Ontario Rebate for Electricity Consumers Act,
2016 (ORECA) came into force making the common area hydro account ineligible for the
Ontario Electricity Rebate of 21.2% for condominiums suite-metered by Alectra Utilties. If
there is no legislated change, the current rates for these common area hydro accounts will
increase by 21.2% after April 30, 2021.

Reserve Fund

12.

13.

The Corporation’s reserve fund amounts to $1,598,262.24 (unaudited) as of May 31, 2021 and the
Corporation’s share of the Shared Facility Reserved Fund amounts to $436,333.32 (unaudited) as of
May 31, 2021.

The most recent Reserve Fund Study conducted by the Board is a Reserve Fund Study update with
site visit, dated January 13, 2020 and has been prepared by EXP Services Inc. for both the
Condominium Corporation and the Shared Facilities. The next reserve fund study will be conducted
before November 1, 2023.



14.

15.

16.

N/A

The board has sent to the owners a notice dated January 30, 2020 containing a summary of the
reserve fund study, a summary of the proposed plan for future funding of the reserve fund and a
statement indicating the areas, if any, in which the proposed plan differs from the study. The
proposed plan for future funding was implemented November 1, 2020 and the total contribution each
year to the reserve fund is being made as set out in the Contribution Table included in the Notice.

There are no plans to increase the reserve fund under a plan proposed by the board under
subsection 94 (8) of the Condominium Act, 1998, for the future funding of the reserve fund, except for
the increased annual contributions to the reserve fund as indicated in the attached Notice of Future
Funding of the Reserve Fund.

Legal Proceedings, Claims

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

There are no outstanding judgments against the Corporation.

The Corporation is not a party to any proceeding before a court of law, an arbitrator or an
administrative tribunal, except:

Small Claims Court File No. CV-19-00143209 commenced on December 27, 2019 in the Ontario Small Claims
Court, wherein the Plaintiff is requesting $1,000,000 in damages relating to a dispute. This matter has been
referred to the Insurance provider and a Defence Claim has been filed by the Solicitor appointed through the
insurance coverage. A trial date has not yet been set.

The Corporation has not received a notice of or made an application under section 109 of the
Condominium Act, 1998 to the Superior Court of Justice for an order to amend the declaration and
description, where the court has not made the order.

The Corporation has no outstanding claim for payment out of the guarantee fund under the Ontario
New Home Warranties Plan Act.

There is currently no order of the Superior Court of Justice in effect appointing an inspector under
section 130 of the Condominium Act, 1998 or an administrator under section 131 of the
Condominium Act, 1998.

Agreements with owners relating to changes to the common elements

22.

This corporation does not conduct an inspection of the unit and/or appurtenant common elements
prior to completing a status certificate. The corporation does not make any representations with
respect to any matters beyond the scope of the required information to be included in a status
certificate pursuant to the Act, unless specifically stated herein. All information included in this
status certificate is based on and limited to the knowledge and information of the board of directors
and/or management. As a result, purchasers are advised to satisfy themselves as to whether there
are any breaches of the Act, declaration, by-laws or rules, including but not limited to whether any
unauthorized alterations have been made to the unit and/or the common elements.

The unit is not subject to any agreement under clause 98(1)(b) of the Condominium Act, 1998
relating to additions, alterations or improvements made to the common elements by the unit owner.

OoR



The Corporation has received notice under section 83 of the Condominium Act, 1998, that 90 units
were leased during the fiscal year preceding the date of this status certificate.

Substantial changes to the common elements, assets or services

24. There are no additions, alterations or improvements to the common elements, changes in the assets

of the Corporation or changes in a service of the Corporation that are substantial and that the board
has proposed but has not implemented, and there are no proposed installations of an electric vehicle
charging system to be carried out in accordance with subsection 24.3 (5) of Ontario Regulation 48/01
(General) made under the Condominium Act, 1998 [if applicable add: except
(give a brief description and a statement of their purpose)].

Insurance

25. The corporation has secured all policies of insurance that are required under the Condominium Act,

1998. Each unit owner is advised to carefully review the enclosed Certificate of Insurance,
including the extent of any deductibles, and to become familiar with and to understand that each
unit owner is responsible for insuring any contents in and improvements to their individual units.
As well each unit owner insurance policy should also include personal third party liability
insurance, reimbursement for living expenses outside of your unit and protection against any
deductible charges that might accrue to the unit owner from the Condominium
Corporation. The Corporation shall insure the units (excluding contents and improvements) with
reference to the standard unit by-law or standard unit schedule of the Corporation and the
common elements for full replacement cost without deduction for depreciation.

Phased condominium corporations

27-32. These clauses deal with Phased, Common Element, Vacant and Leasehold Condominium

Corporations and do not apply to this Standard Condominium Corporation.



Attachments

33. The following documents are attached to this Status Certificate and form part of it.

(a) a copy of the current declaration, by-laws and rules, (if applicable, add: which include an
occupancy standards by-law);

(b) a copy of the budget of the Corporation for the current fiscal year, its last annual audited financial
statements and the auditor’s report on the statements;

(c) a list of all current agreements mentioned in section 111, 112 or 113 of the Condominium Act,
1998 and all current agreements between the Corporation and another corporation or between
the Corporation and the owner of the unit;

(d) a certificate or memorandum of insurance for each of the current insurance policies.

[if applicable add the following items:
{e) a—copy-of-all-applications-made j ) o

(h) a copy of a notice dated January 30, 2020 containing a summary of the reserve fund study, a
summary of the proposed plan for future funding of the reserve fund and a statement indicating
the areas, if any, in which the proposed plan differs from the study;




Rights of person requesting certificate

34. The person requesting this certificate has the following rights under subsections 76 (7) and (8) of the
Condominium Act, 1998 with respect to the agreements listed in subparagraph 33 (c) above:

1. Upon receiving a written request and reasonable notice, the Corporation shall permit a person
who has requested a status certificate and paid the fee charged by the Corporation for the
certificate, or an agent of the person duly authorized in writing, to examine the agreements
listed in subparagraph 33 (c) at a reasonable time and at a reasonable location.

2. The Corporation shall, within a reasonable time, provide copies of the agreements to a person
examining them, if the person so requests and pays a reasonable fee to compensate the
Corporation for the labour and copying charges.

Other

A. There are restrictions set forth in the declaration and the rules governing tenancies and the
keeping of pets with the building(s) or ground(s). Unit purchasers are urged to review, in
particular, these restrictions prior to taking occupancy (directly or by a tenant) of the unit.

B. As a matter of personal safety, please be advised that:

Under the Ontario Fire Code, the “owner” is responsible for ensuring that SMOKE ALARMS are
installed in their dwelling unit.  The Ontario Fire Code requires that SMOKE ALARMS be
maintained in operating condition at all times.

This Status Certificate is valid subject to all outstanding cheques/payments for this unit clearing the bank.
Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.

Agent acting on behalf of:
York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112

Date July 09, 2021 Adelina Dragu
Authorized Signing Officer
| have the authority to bind the Corporation

Pl oot Ficnn *

Date July 09, 2021 Dilshad Jiwa
Authorized Signing Officer
| have the authority to bind the Corporation

* Executed pursuant to the Electronic Commerce Act (Ontario)



York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112

7 North Park Road, Thornhill, On. L4J 0C9

SCHEDULE OF AGREEMENTS
Service Supplier
SECTION 111

Property Management
SECTION 112

Cleaning

Concierge

Exercise Room Equipment
Elevators

Fire Alarm System

HVAC Fan Coil/Heat pump
Landscaping & Snow Removal
Mechanical System

Pest Control

Pool Service

SECTION 113

Cost Sharing

Crossbridge Condominium Services Ltd.

Smart Cleaning Ltd.

First Security Protection Services
Advantage Fitness

Thyssenkrupp Elevators

Tyco Integrated Fire & Security
Climanetics Inc.

Boot’s Landscaping & Maintenance Ltd.
Johnson Controls Canada

Rentokil Pest Control Canada

Superior Pool Spa & Leisure Ltd.

YRSCC 1075



Vista of Thornhill City Centre

YORK REGIONAL STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

DECLARATION

Vista of Thornhill City Centre - 7 North Park Road, Thornhill Ontario [4J 0C9
Telephone: (905)-597-0953 Fax: (905)-597-0947




B OFFICE SCHEDULE

numser YR_LL 34442 DECLARATION
CERTIFICATE OF RECEIFT |

WAR 07 2000 1608 CONDOMINIUM
- é"“’;‘%f; ACT, 1998

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM PLAN NO. 1112

NEW PROPERTY IDENTIFIER’S BLOCK 29643

| RECENTLY: PIN 03261-0299, 03261-0301
DECLARANT: 1666633 ONTARIO INC.

SOLICITOR: Michael Volpatti
Bratty and Partuers, LLP
ADDRESS;
7501 Keele St
Suite 200
Vaughan, On
L4K 1Y2
PHONE: 905-760-2600 FAX: 205-760-2900
No. OF UNITS - 636

FEES; F70.00 4 {$5.00_x number of nnits) = $3250.00




DECLARATION

MADE PURSUANT TO THE CONDOMINIUM ACT

THIS DECLARATION (heremafter cailed the "Declaration”} is made and executed pursuant to the
provisions of the Condammium Act, 1998, 5.Q. 1898, ¢.19, as amended from time to lime, and tha regulations
made thereunder (all of which are herematier zollectively referred ta as the "Act”), BY:

1686633 ONTARIO ING.
{hereinafter called the "Declarant)

WHEREAS the Declarantis the Owner in fee simple of cerlain kands and premises sifuate in the City
of Vaughan, it the Province of Ontaria, and being more particularly described in Schedule “A" annexed herato
(heren and hereinafter defined and referred to as the "Lands”, or "Property"} and in the description submittad
harewith by the Daclarant for registration in accordance with Section 8 of the Act {hereinafter callad the
“descrption");

AND WHEREAS the registration of the Declaration and the descnption will create a freehold

condominium corporation thatis a standard candemintum corporation as defined by Ontario Regulation 49/01
made under the Act; .

AND WHEREAS the Declarant has constructed amu Ki-unithigh-rise residential building upon the said
fands cantatning 231 residerntial dwelling Units, 254 parking Units, 150 locker Units and 1 commuriications
Unit (herein and hereinatter collectively defined as the “Buitding"y;

AND WHEREAS the Dectaran! intands that the said lands, together with the sad buildings
constructed thereon, shall be govemed by the Act;

NOW THEREFORE THE DECLARANT HEREBY DECLARES AS FOLLOWS.
PART ONE
INTRODUCTION
SECTION 1 - Definitions

The terms used in the Declaration shall have the meanings ascribed to them m the Act unless the
Declaration specifies otherwise or unless the context othenwise requires, and in padicular;

1. “Adjacent Corporation” and “Building C Corporafion” means York Region Standard
Condomimum Carporation Na. 1075:

2, "2 Slorey Common Area” means the two storey area construcled on the Condomirmum C
Lands which s ntended Io be avaiiable for use by the Qwners and pentnifted tenants, nvitees
arfigenseas of the Condominium G Lands and the Condominium D Lands in accordance with
iie Easement and Cost Sharing Agreement;

3 *Building C” and "Building D" mean respectively the first and second phase of the rasidenlial
development comprising two muiti-Unit fugh-fise residential buildings and appurtenancas
construclad respeclively on the Condeminmum € Lands and Condomisiem O Lands
(hareinafter defined), and fogethar shall herenafter be referred to as the “Buildings";

4. “Comman Elements*and “common elemants" means afl the proparty, except the Units;

L3 “Cammon Interest'and “"common interest® means the Intersst In the common slemenis
appurtenant o a Unit;

6. *Common Interior Roadway” means the roadway constructed or ta be constructed on all or
pan of any of the Condorminium € Lands and/or Condaminiem D Lands for the purpose of
providing vehicular access and egress between the said lands and Buildings thereon and the
lands and public roadways adjacent thereto.

7. "Condomimum C Lands® and "Candominium D Lands® mean respectively the fands an which
Building C and the proposed Building O are to be coenstrucied;

8. “Corporation” means the corporation created upon the registration of the Declaration and
description on the Lands;

9. "Corporations” means collectively the two corparations to be created upon the registration
of the respecfive declaration and description on the Condominium € Lands and
Condomunium O Lands:;



10,

11.
12.

13

14.
15,

1B.

17.

18.

18.

20

‘.

3

*Easement and Cost Sharing Agreement” means a cerlain agreemeni already entered info
among the Adjacent Corporation and the Declarant on behalf of the Corporation in order,
amang otherthings, ko provide for the sharing of the costs of maintaining, operating, repainng
and reptacing the Shared Servicing Systems, the Specific Sarvicing Easements, the Exterior
Landscaped Areas and Facilities, the Common Intefior Roadway, the Qutdoor Pedestnan
Walkway, the 2 Storey Cormmon Area, Residential Unit 8 Level 1 and the Garage among the
Corparation and the Adjacant Corporation. as well as to provide for the granting and definition
of cerlaiit easements and rights among them;

“Extarior Landscaped Areas and Facilities" means the outdoor extenar landscaped area on
grade lavel, any roof top landscaped area, tha pedestrian walkways and garage ramps,
situata withi the common element areas of the Corporation and the Adjacent Coporation;

“Garage” means the underground parking garage containing the parking units and areas of
each of the Buildings all as more fully described and set forth in the Easament and Cast
Shanng Agreement;

“Outdoor Pedestnan Walkway™ means the paths, walkways and sidewalks consiructed or to
be constructed on all or part of any of the Condominwm € Lands andfor Condominium D
Lands far lhe purpose of providing pedestnian access lo the Buildings, and their
appurienances and to the adjacent lands;

“Owner” means a person or persons who own a freehold inlerest{s} in a Unit and its
appurienant common interest, but does not include a morgagee unless in possassion;

“Property” or “properfy”, as the context may require, means the land and interests
appurtenant o the land described In the descnption and in-Schedule "A™ annexed hereto, and
mefudes any land and [nterests appurtenant to land that are added to the common alements;

"Proportionale Share” In relation to the Sharad Servicing Systems, the Specific Senicing
Eassments, the Exterior Landscaped Areas and Faciliies, the Common Intenar Roadway,
the Outdaor Pedestdan Waikway, lhe 2 Storey Common Area, Residential Unit8 Leval + and
the Garage means the respective costs ko ba bome by each of the Corporations, towards the
tofal amount of costs incarred in the operating, mantaining, repairing and inspecting of thase
facilities as defermined in accordance with the terms of the Easement and Cost Shanng
Agreament:

“Residentiat Unit 8 Level 1" means rasidential dwelling Unit 8 on Leve! Tin Building C. which
shall be purchased from the declarant of the Adjacent Corporation by the Adjacent
Corporation in accordance with section 10(b) of this Declaration and shared by the
Corporatiens as more fully described and set forth in the Easement and Cost Sharing
Agraement and in accordance with its terms:

“Rules” means rules passed by the Board of Directars (hereinafter called the “board™) of the
corporation and becoming effective pursuant to Section 58 of the Act;

“Shared Sarvicing Systems” means the servicing systems servicing the Units andfor common
elements of each of the Buildings including certam parts of the storm and sanilary system,
tetephone and cable system and other such systems, all as more fully described and sat farth
in the Easament and Cost Sharning Agreement unless such locatians or responsibilities are
further adjusted, qualified or amended pursuant to any provisions of the Easemerit and Cast
Shanng Agreemant in which event Ihe re-adjustrment, qualified or amendment adjustments
shall prevail,

"Speciiic Servicing Easements™ means the spacific service sysiems serving and suppiying
services {0 each of the Comporations ingluding, without restricting the generality of the
foregoing, mechanical systems, safety systems, underground storm and sanitary sewer
pipes, water pipes and slecthcal conduits and systems. ¢able and telephorie wires and fnes
and gas lines, tegether with all appurtenances thereto, and which are spacifically located and
identified and more fully described and set forth either In this Declaralion o in the Easement
and Cost Shanng Agreement;

*"Unlt” means a part or parts of the Praperty included m the descnption and designaied as a
Unit by the description, and compnses the space enctosed by its boundaries and all the
material parts of the land within this space n accordance with the Declamtion and the
description. For greater certainty, the definition of “Unit" relating to the duties {o repair and
maintain under Sections 89, 90 and 91 of the Act and pursuant to this Declaration shall
extend to all improvements made by the Declarant In accordance with its architectural and
structural plans, notwithatanding that some of such improvements may be made afier
registration of the Daclaration.

SECTION 2 - Staternent of Intention

] The Declarantinlands that the lands describad in Schedule "A" and in the description, together with
all mtarests appurtenant to the said tands (herein collecfively raferred to as the “lands"} be govemed by the
Agl, and any amendments thareto,



SECTION 3 - Consent of Encumbrancers

The consant of avary person having a registersd martgage against the lands is conlained in Schedule
"B" anhexad herelo.

SECTION 4 - Boundanes of Units and Monumenty

The monuments cantrolling the extent of the Units are the physical surfaces mentioned in (he
Boundaries of Units in Schedule 'C’ attached hergto.

Nobwithstanding the boundaries set outin Schedule ‘C’ attached hereto, each residential dwefling Unif
shall include all pipes, wires, cables. conduils, ducts, mechanical or sirsilar apparatus and appurtenant
squipment attached therelo (axcept externel vents and grills), heating and/ar air-conditloning equipment as
well as any other branch piping to and inctuding the shut off valves, which pravides services {o that particular
Unlt only. Also, sach residential dwelling Unit shall include any siairs, which is entirely conlained within the
Unit and provides access between the figors of the Unit,

Nolwithstanding the boundanss set outin Schedule *C' attached hareto, each residential dwelling Unit
shall exclude all pipes, wires, cables, conduits, ducts, flues and mechanical or similar apparatus including
all fire hose cabinets and appurtenant equipment, fire alarms, secunty or sprinkler systems, all concrete,
concrale biock or masonry partiions or Inad bearing walls or columné that lie within the boundanes of any
particular Unit as hareinbefore set out which supply service or support to another Unit(s} or the Comman
Elements.

Notwithstanding the boundaries set out in Schedule ‘C" attached hereto, each locker Unit shall
exclude alf fans, pipes, wires, cables, conduits, ducts, Rues or similar apparatus (used far water drainage,
power or otherwise) that supply any service to any Unit or to the Commaon Elements and whether located in
or outside of any walls or floors, together with-any healing or air-cenditioning equipment, ducts, flues, shafts,
ete. ar controls of same, as well as any concrete walls or kiad beanng walls or beams which may be located
wilhin any such locker Unil{s).

Notwithsianding the boundaries sat out in Scheduls 'C" aftached hereto, each parking Unit shalf
exclude, without limiting the afarementioned, all equipmeant or apparatus, including any fans, pipes, wires,
cables, conduits, ducts, flues, shafte, fire hoses, sprinkiers, lighting fixtures, ar-canditioung or heating
equipment apparatus thereto which provides any sarvice lo the Common Elements sr Units in cluding all wall
structures and support columns and beams as well as any additional floor surfacing {membranes and coatings
Included) which may be located within any such parking Unit.

Notwithstariding the boundaries set outin Schedule ‘C* attached hereto, the Communications Unit
shall include alt pipes, wires, cables. canduits, ducls, mechanical or simllar apparatus and appurtenant
equipment aftached thereto (sxcapt external vents and grills), heating andfor alr-conditioning- equipment as
well as any other branch piping to and including the shut off valves, which provides services ta lhat particular
Unit anly.

Notwithstanding the boundaries sef out n Scheduls 'C attached hereto, the Communications Unit
shatt exclude, witheut limiting the aforementioned, all equipment or apparatus, including any fans, pipes.
wires, cables, conduits, ducis, flues, shafts, fire hases, sprinkiers, lighting fixtures, air-conditioning or heating
equipment apparatus thereto which provides any service to the Common Elements or Units Ineluding all wat
structures and suppart columing and beams asweall as any additional floor surfacing (membranes and coatings
included) which may be located within the Communtcations Unit. o

SECTION 5 - Commar Interest and Common Expenses Allocation

Each Owner shall have both an undivided inierest in the common elements =5 a lenant m comman
with all othar Owners and shall contribute to the common axpenses m the praportions set farth oppasile each
Unit rumber in Schedule "D° atlached hereto. The total af the prapartions of the comman nterests and
comimon expenses shall be one hundred {100%} per cent.

SECTION 6 - Exclusive Use Common Elemenis and Visitors' Parking Spages

(a) Sublect fo the provisions of the Act, the Declaration, by-laws and Rules, the Owner of each
residantial dwefling Unit shall have the exclusive use of lhage parls of the comman elements
as set forth in Schedule "F" attzched hereto, it being understood that the exclusive use being
enjayed by such Unit Owners entitlad to same may be ragulated or affected by any by-laws
or Rules of the Corporation.

(by The Daclarant and any enfity related, assoctated or affiiated thersto (the "Related
Company”), their sales staff, thelr authorized personnel or agents, and any prospective
purchasers shall togethar hava the right to use the visitors’ parking spaces located within the
praperty, if any, such wisitors’ parking spaces (i.e. locatian and numbers) o be designated
by the Declarant in its sale discretion, which rght shall cease forthwith upon the later of the
sale af all Units owned by the Declarant n the Buildings and any other units in any building
in the vicinity thereof ownad by the Declarant or the Related Company (the "Other Units™).



SECTION 7 - Mailing Address and Addrass for Service

The address for service and maling address of the Corporation shalf be;

T North Park Road
Thornhitt, Ontano
L4J aCd

or such gther eddress as the Corporation may defermine by resalution of the board.

PART TWO
SPECIFICATION OF CONMON EXPENSES

SECTION 8 - Meaning of Comiman Expensas

Comman expenses shall be the Bxpenses of the performance of the objects and duties of the
Corporation and, without limiting the generality of the foregaing, such other casts, expenses and sums of

money designated as common expesses in the Act, or in this Declaration, or as are listed i Schedule "E"
attached hereto.

SECTICN 9 - Payment af Common Expenses

Each Owner shall pay to the Corporation his proportionate shara of the camemon expanses, and lhe
asseasment and colection of the contributions toward the Common sxpenses may he regulated by the board
pursuant to the by-laws of the Corporation. In addition to the foregoing, any losses, costs or damages
incurred by te Corporation by reason of a breach of any Rules and try-laws of the Corporation in farce from
time: to ime by any Owner, ar by members of his family and/ar their respective lenants, invitees or licensees,
shall be borme and paid for by such Owner, and may be recavered by tha Corporation dgatnst such Owner
i the same manner as common expensas.,

SECTION 10(a) - Reservs Fund

{i) The Corporation shall establist and Mmaintain one or mare reserve funds in respect of the
common elements and assets and shall collect from the Owniers, as part of their contributian
towards the commion exgenses, amoun!s that are reasonably axpecied to provide sufficient
funds for major repair andfor repfacement of common elements and assets of the
Cormoration, alt in accordance with the provisions of the Act.

(i) No pari of the reserve fund shall be used except for the purposes far which he fund was
establishad, The amountofthe resarve fund shali constitute an asset of the Corporation and
shall not be distributed to any Gwner except on termnation of the Carporation,

(iii} In accordance with section 94 of the Act, the Corparation shall conduct periadic studles to
determine whether the amount of maney in the reserve fund and the amaount of contribulions
collacted by the Corporation are adequate o provide for the expected costs of major repair
and replacement of the common elements and assats of the Corporafion.

SECTION 19{b) - Purchase of the Residential Unit 8 Level 1

Residential Unit 8 Level 1 shall be purchased fram the declarant of the Adjacent Corporation by the

The Comporation and the Adjacent Corporation shall share the cost of operating, maintaiing,
fepairing, replacing and purchasing Residential Unit 8 Level 1 in accordance with the terms of the Easement
and Cost Shanng Agreement The Adjacent Corporation shall be required to convey an interest In Residential
Unit 8 Level 1 to the Corporation, in accordance with the terms of the Easementand Cost Sharing Agreement.




SECTION 10{ct - Check Metering of Utifiies

{ih Eleciricity cansumplion in each Owner's residential unit shall be measured by a suita
metsring system (“5MS") and shall be invoced tn such Cwner by the appropnate local
distribution company {the “lavaicing Company”). Each Unit Owner shall raceive and he
responsible for, paymentof the mvoica with respect to the electricity consumption for hister
Unit. The Unit Owner shall remit payment to the nvoicing Company for elecincity
consumption, separale from any other obligations the Unit Owner has with respact lo
payment of cormmon expenses as an Owner within the condomintum, For grealer cerlamty,
the cost of eleciricity consumptian within the residential Units shall not form part of the
COMMQn expenses,

(i Notwithstanding any other provisions of ths Declaration, the Carporation authorizes entry o
the Common Elemants by the apprapriats local distribution company or ils subcontractors
from time to time, as deemed necessary by said company for the purposas of conducting
nspection, maintenance, repair and reading of the SMS.

SECTION 11 - Gertificate of Common Expensas

The Corparation shall, upon request, provide the requesating party with a status cartificate and
accomgpanywng stalements and information in accordance with Section 76 aof the Act. The Corporation may
charge the prescribod fise for providing the status certificate. Natwithstanding the foregoing, the Corporation
shall forthwith provide the Declarant with a certificate and all such accompanying statements and Informatian,
as may be requested from time to ime by or on behalf of the Declarantin connection with a sale or mortgage
of any Unil(s), ail at no charge or fee o the Declarant or the person requesting same on behalf of the
Declarant.

PART THREE
OGCUPATION AND USE OF COMMON ELEMENTS

SECTION 12 - Generaf Lise

(a) Each Owner may make reasonable use of and has the nght to occupy and en|oy the whole
orany part of the comman elements, and each Owner has the right lo make reasonable use
of, and has the right to enjoy any exchisive use common elemait area which has been
designated o his Unit in Schedule "F", subject io any conditions or restrictions set out it the
Act, the Declaration, the Corporation's by-taws (harein called the "by-laws®), the Rulgs and
the Easement and Cost Sharing Agreement, and gasements and rights registerad against
the property. However, na condlfion shall be permitted to axist and no aclivity shall be carned
on in the common etements that s likely In damage the property ar that will unreasonably
interfere with the use or enjoyment by other Cwners of the common glements and the other
Units, that results n the canceliation or threatened canceflation of any policy of insurance
refered {o in the Declaration. or that will Jead ko a contravention af any covenant, term or
cendition centained in the Easement and Cost Sharing Agreament and any easements and
nghts registered against the property.

(bj No Owner shall make any installation or any change or alteration to an installation upan the
commoan slements, or mafntain, decorate, alter or fepair any part of the common glements,
excapl far maintaining those parts of {he common eiements which he has a duty to maintain,
without obtaining the written appraval of the Corporalion in accordance with the Act, unless
olherwise provided for in this Declaration,

©) Naotwilhslanding anything hereinbefore or hareinafter provided to the contrary, and
notwithstanding any Rules or by-laws of the Corporation to the contrary, the Declarant and
any Related Company shall be entitied to erect and maintain signs for. marketing/sale
purposes upon the commen elements, and within or outside any unsold Units, pursuant o
the Declarant's ongoing marketing program in respect of the Units or any Other Units at such
lacaticns and having such dimensions as the Declarant may determine in its sole discration
pravided same complies with mumicipal requirements. In addition, the Declarant and the
Related Company, their saies stalt, their authorized personnal ar agents, and any prospective
purchasers will logether have the right to use the visilors' parking spaces located within the
property, if any, such visitors' parlung spaces {ie., the location and number of spaces) to he
designated by the Declarant m Its sole discretion, and which nght will cease forthwith upon
the tater of the sale of all Units owned by the Declarant in the Building and any Other Units,

SECTION 13 - Restricted Access

Without the consent in writing of the board, ne Owner shall have any right of access to these parts
of the comman elements used from time to tme as a ulilties area, building maintenance or storage araa,
manager's office, an area for operating machinery, or any mechanical or servicing system servicing the
Corporation ngr shall he have access to any other pans of the common elerments usad for the care,
mamienance or operation of the Property or any part of the Property.



SECTION 14 - Modification of Common Elements and Assets

(al

{t)

{c)

{d)

(e)

0

The Gorporation may, by a vole of Owriers who own at least sixfy six and two thirds (66
2/3%) per cent of the residential awelling Unils; make any substanbial addition, alteration or
Improvements to or renovation of the common elements, or may make any substantizl
change in the assets of the Corporation of a substantial change in a service that the
Corporation provides.

Where the Corporalion has sent a notice to the Owners In accordance with section 97(3) of
the Act, and the Owners have either not requisitioned a meeting in accordance with section
46 of the Act or the Owners have requisitioned a meeting In accordance with section 46 of
the Act buthave notvoled against tha proposed addition, alferation, improvement ar change
af lhe meeling, the Corporation may make any other addition, alteration or improvemant to
ar renovation of the common elements, or may make any other change to the assets of the
Carporation or any change in-a service that the Corporation provides.

For the purposes of this section, ary addition, alteralion, improvement or change 15
subsiantial if it meets the prescribed meaning of substantial change as set out in section
97(8) of the Act or the Board of Directors elects to lreat it as substantial,

For the purpases of this Declaration, and for the purposes of relating and managing the
affairs of this Carporation, and the Corporation's compliance wilh any provisions of the Act,
any change or alteration affected pursyant to an obfigation imposed upen the Carparation
pursuant to any provision of the Easement and Cost Sharing Agreement shall not be
considereqd an addition, aiteration, impravement to or renovation of the commeoen elements
of the Carporalian,

A capy of the complete set of “as-built* architertural and struciural plans and specifications
for the buikding(s) situate on the Property, including copies of alt plans and specifications for
any additions, alteratfons or improvements from tirie to ime made to tha common elemants
or to any Unit which may require the prior written cansent of the board, shall ke mamntained
in the affica of the Corporation at all times, or at such other place as the board shall from time
to ime determine by resolullon, far the use of the Carporation in rebufiding or repairing any
damage to the bullding(s), and/or the use of any Owner or morigagee.

The Daclarant may, at its option and at any lime, convey any Unit{s) registered In the
Declarant's name to the Corporation and upon such gonveyance, the Declarant shall be
aulomatically relaased and discharged from eny. and all fabilities and okligations to the
Corporation and/or the Unit Owners in respect of such conveyed Unit{s), Including, without
limitation, obligations in respect of comman axpenses-and realfy taxes, whether outstanding
or whether payable befars or after such conveyance. The Corporation shall execute and
deliver without delay or charge any documentation as may be required to facilitate such
canveyance(s) and hereby irrevocably authonzes and directs the Declarant's solicitors lo act
as the solicltors far the Corporation for the purpose of executing such documentation,
including land transfer tax documentation/statemsnts, in respect of such conveyance(s),
whether or nat In sieckonic form. The conveyance to tha Carporation of such Unit(s) shall
not be ¢onsidered an addition, . alteration, improvement o or renovation of the cemmon
alemants of the Corporation, nor shall same be cansidered a provision of @ major asset or
property ta the Corporation.

PART FOUR -
OWNERSHIF OF PARKING UNITS AND LOCKER UNITS

SECTION 15 - Restrictions on Disposition of Parking Units and Locker Units

Any parking Unit and/or locker Unit, may at any ime be sold, leasad, transferced ar otherwise
conveyed, either separately or In combination with athar Units, provided that:

{a)

(b}

{©

any such sale, transfer or cther conveyance 15 made only to the Declarant, or 1o any
residential dwelling Unit Owner in any of the Buildings and provided that any such leasa is
made only fe the Declarant, to any of the Carporations, or fo any Owner or tenant of a
residential dwelling Unit in any of the Buildings.

the term of any leasa of any parking and/or Jocker Unit to a tenant of a residenlial dwelling
Unit shafl not extend beyord the term of the tenancy of such Uit granted to such lenant; and

Bvery lease in respect of any parking and/or focker Unit shall provide that where the lesses
thereaf Is also an Owner of a residential dwelling Unit and such lessee 1s deprived of
ownership or possession af firs residential dwelling Unit, such lease shall revert ta the lessgr
of such parking and/or locker Unit, It shall alsg pravide that where the lessee of such parking
and/or locker Lnit fs aiso an Owner of a residential dwelling Unif, upon a sale, transfer ar
conveyance of such Owner's restdential dwelling Unit, the leasehald intarest in such parking
andfor facker Unit must be assigned or ransferred to the new Owner or transfereg of such
residentiat dwelling Unit or else must ravert to the lessor of such parking and/or locker Uni,
as the case may be.
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The restrictions sat eut above in paragraph 15 shail not apply & any disposition of lease of a parking Unit or
locker Unit by the Declarant,

PART FIVE
OCCUPATION AND USE OF UNITS

SECTION 16 - Gensral Use

1.

No Unit shall be gccupied or used by any one in such a manner as is likety lo damage the
property or that will unreasonably intarfere with the use or enjoyment by other Owners of the
comman alements and the ether Unils or that may result in the cancellation or threat of
cancellation of any policy of insurance refeired to in the Dectaration or in stich a manner as
tolead tb a breach by any Ownar or by the Corporation of any provision of the Eassment and
Cost Sharing Agreement or any easements ar rights registered against the property. In the
event tha use made by any Qwner of his Unit results tn any premiums of any insurance palicy
INsUNRg the interest of the Corparation being increased or cancelled, such Owner shall be
lfable ta pay to the Gorparation all of such increasa in premiums payable as a result thereof,
or shall be liable to pay io the Corporation all olher costs or expenses it incwrs as a resuit
thereof.

The Qwner of @ach Unit shalf comply, and shall require all residents, tenants, invitess and
licensees of his Unit 1o camply with the Act, the Declaratton, the Fasemant and Ciost Sharing
Agreemant and rights and easements registered against the progerty, the by-laws and the
Rutes,

No Qwner shall make any structurat change or structural alteration in or to any Unit, without
the pnor wrilten consent of the board, Provided, however, that in the event that an Cwner
OWns two residantial dwelling Units on the same level which share a comman damising wall,
such Owner shall be entitled to enjoy the two residential dwelling Units to create ane living
area if the following conditlons are satisfied:

{i) the Cwmer at his sole expense rrakes appiication for and obtains all permits and
approvals required under any zoning laws, regulations and requirements;

{ii) the Qwner recaives the prior writen consent from the boaard:

iii) the Owner completes ail work requirad at his soie expense by a contractaor that is
satisfactory to Corpioration and in a good and workmanlike manner;

{iv) the Owner agrees that the Corporation, or its representatives or agents will have
unrestricted access to the Units to inspact the work bring conducted untl such ime
as the work is complete as determined by the Corporation or Its representativas ar
agents; and

{v} In the event that the Corporation has given the Owner natice that the work being
conducted on the Units is not salisfactory ta the Corporation and the Qwner does not
correct same forthwith, the Corporation may enler and compiete the work. All
expeanses incurred by the Corporation shall be paid by the Owner on demand and
falling payment, shall form a charge against the Unit{s) and in addition, may be
coilected mn tha same manner as cammcn expenses. |

SECTION 17(a} - Use of Residontial Dwetling Linils

- Units 1t 7 inciusive on Level 1; Units 1 fo 12 inclusive on Levels 2 and 3 and Levels 4 (o 18 inclusive;

Units 1to 6

1.

inclusive an Levels 19 and 20; and Unit 1 1o 4 inclusive on Lavels 21 and 22,

Each residantial dwelling Unit shall be occupied and used only as a private single family residence
In accordance with the by-laws and Rules of Corporation and arny other requirement of the
Municipality and ainer autharity havitg Jurisdiction,

0]

{in

Notwithstanding anything centained in this Dedlaration or in any by-laws or Fuies hereafter
passed or enacted to the contrary, the Owner of a residential cwelling Unit shall, n addition
lo his proporticnate shara of the commaen expenses, pay and be sofely responsihie for the
costof maintaining and repairing alf mechanical, electrical, heating, cooling, refrigeration and
plumbing equiprment, fixiures and systems (including air handler and condenser), and all
appurtenances thereto, which provide Power or any other service excluswely o hrs Unit
(regardiess of whether such equipment, fixtures and systems fie within ar beyond the
boundanes of such Unit, as monumented in Schedule "C" of this Declaration).

No Qwner shalk cause anything to be affixed, attached o, hurg, displayed or placed on the
inside of any window other than drapes, biinds or shutters specifically designed for the
window. In addition, such window covenings shall appear white or off-white from the exienor
af the buildings. WWithout froiting the generality of the foregoing flags, banner, sheets,
slogans, foil, wood, plastic, metal painted or unpainted, shall not be affixed, atlached o,

hung, displayed or placed in any manner in any window. Christmas lights and decorations
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are permitted betwean Decomber 16th and January 15th provided that the quantity and typa
of same are approved by the board, -

Sharing Agreement, in conformity with all applicable 2oming and bullding by-laws and reguiations of
the Cily of Vaughan and in conformity with the by-laws, rules and regulations of any other
govemmental autharity or agency having iunisdiction.

SECTION 17{1) - Nolices

1

10.

i1,

12

Purchasers andfor Tenants are advisad that despila the nclusion of noise contral features within the
development area and within the Individual units, neise lavels from construction and building activities
will continue o be of concam, accasionally interfering with some acliviies of the building occupants
for the duratlion of tha subdivision construction.

Furchasers andior tenants are advised that a park may be located within development and the
residents of the development may be subjected to nase and lighting due to the nature and use of the
future/adjacant park.

Purchasersitenants are advised that residential dwslling Units wilhsin the Bullding shall be equipped
with central air conditioning. The arr conditioning system may be central to tha enlire Buiiding or may
be central o each residential dweiling Unit (for example using split-system ar packaged incremental
units with suitable duct work fo a rooms). The Minstry of Envirenmentdoes not aceept window-type
air condilioning units m fieu of ceniral system. In all cases, senous attention shail be gwen by the
Proponent, the Mechanical Consultant and the Conlractor io the naise potential of the air canditioning
system as i may afect the ouldaor and indoor recevers with in or outside of the proposed
davelopmant. Itis important that the Buitding, the Mechanical Conguitant and the Confraciar achiave
the MOE objectives inciuded in ther Fublications NPC-205 and MPC-215.

Purchasersftenants are advised that sound lavels due to increasing mad traffic on New Wastminster
Dnve, Bathurst 5 eel, Cenlre Street and proposed Sireet "C”, may continue b be of cancem,
occasionally interfering with some activitieg of the dwetling oceupanis as the sound lavel exceeds fhe
Municipality's and the Ministry of Emaranment's sound lavel criteria.

-Purchasersfiterants are adwised that sound levels due to increasing road iraffic on” Bathurst Street,
Cantre Strest and DI Sera Drive, may continze to be of concern, occasionally inkerfenng with some
activities of the dwelling occupants as the sound level exceeds the Municipaiity’s and the Minisiry of
Environmants sound level criteria,

Purchaserstenants are advised that due to proximity of the adjacent commarcial buildings to the
south, sound levals from these commercial buildings may at times he audible,

Purchasersfenanis are advised that despite the inclusion of noise controf featuras within the building
units, sound levels fram incrensing road traffic on New Wesiminister Orive, Bathurst Street, Cenfra

Purchasers/tenants are adwised that despite tha inclusion of noise control featurss within the buitding
units, sound Javels fom Increasing road traffic on Bathurst Street, Centra Streat and DI Sera Dnve
will cantinue to be of concem as the Isvels in the balcany exceed the MImstry_ufEnvirun_ment criteria

Purchasers and/or tenants ars adsed that public transit roytes have not been determined for the
areawithinthe pian, howaver, New Wasiminister Drive, Bathurst Street, and Beveriey Glen Boulevard
may be subject to public transit bus traffic.

Purchasers andfar tenants are hereby put on notice that the Telecommunications Act and the CRTC
authonze telephone and te!ecommuni;:allons faciliies and services o be provided by
telecommunication carners other than baditional camers far such sarvices and that purchasers and

service and facilities to mest their needs,

Purchasers are advised that the dwelling occupants may be subject to parkland noise and sparts field
lighting due ta the nature and use of the adjacent part,

PurchasersiTenants are advised that Buildings *C" and "D" as showm conceplually on the Proposed
Master Plan for the lands subject to Draft Plan of Subdivision 15T-04v08, may be linked by such
comman elements. including but not fimited o, the lobby/racreational Space; dnveway, parking ramp;
and. anorth/south pedestrian walkway connection with associated landscapinglighting elements and
gasements to facilitate such walkway connections, In accordance with the walkway options identifiad
on the Master Plan as approved by Vaughan Counci on November 8, 2004.
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28,

29,
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Purchasersitenants are advised that despita the mclusion of noise confrol features within the
devalopment area and within tha building units, the sound levels from increasing vehicular traffic on
Highway 407, Highway 7, Centre Street, Bathurst Street and other roadways may continus to be of
concem, occasionally interfering with some activities of the dwelling occupants.

Thrs dwelling unit has been supplfed with a central air conditioning syslem which will allow windows
and exteriar goors to remamn closed, thereby ensurmg that the indoor sound levels are withun the City's
and the Ministry of the Environment's noise criteria, (Nole: The location and mstaliation of any
autdcor air conditioning devices shauk! be done so as o rminimize noise impacts and comply with the
criteria of MOE publication NPC-205,)

Purchasers and/or tenants are advised that despite the inclusion of noise contral features within both
the developmentaraa and the mdividua bullding units, noise levels from increasing traffic on Streets
A and B (North Park Road), New Weastminister Orive, Disera Dnve and Bathirst Street, may be of
concem and occasionally interfering with some activitiog of the dwelling occupants.

Purchasers and/or fenants are advised that the: Iot abuts a Neighborhood Park of which noise and
lighfing may ba of concern due to the naturs of the park for active fecreation.

Furchasers andfor lenants are advised that Disera Dnve shall be extended to Cantre Street
cemplating a continuous read from Centre Street to Baverly Glen Boulevard without notice.

Purchasers andfor tenants are advised that the praposed finishad lot and/or block grading may not
meet City of Vaughan lot grading critena in certain areas, lo adlacent topagraphical conditions.

Purchasers and/or terants are advised that traffic-calming measures may have been incorporated
inlo the road allowances,

Purchasars andior lenants ara advised that the planting of frees an Cify boulevards in front of
rasidential units is a requirement of the City and a conceptual lncation plan s ncluded In the
subdivision agreement. While evary attempt will be made to plant frees as shown, the Cily reserves
the right te relocate or delate any boulevard tree without further notice.

Purchasers andfor tenants are advised that the Chiy has not imposed a *ree fee”, or any ather fee
which may be charged as a condition of purchase, for the planting of trees. Any “tree fee” pard by the
Purchaser for heulevard trees daes not guarantee that a trea will be planted on the boulevard
adjacent tc their residantial dwelling.

Purchasers and/or teniants are advised that mail defivery will be from a designated community
mailbox, the lacation of which will be identified by the owner pnor to any home ciosings.

Purchasers andler tenants are advised: that any roads ending in & dead end or cul-de-sag may be
extended m the future to facilitate davelopmert of adjacent lands, without further nrotice.

Purchasers andfor tenants are advised that the lot abuts a “Neighbourhood Park®, and that noise and
Gighting should be axpected from the designed aclive use of the park,

Purchasers are advised that despite the inclusion of noise attenuation features within the
development area and within the individual building units, noise levels will continue ta increase,
occasionally interfering with soma achivities of the building’s occupants. B

Furchasers andlor tenants are advised thal the adjacent open space. woodlot or stormwaiar
management facility may bz leftina naturally vegelated condition and receive minimal mainlemance.

Purchasers and/ar tenants are advised that transit service 18 planned to be introduced maraisnd the
Subject lands, and that the placament af any necessary bus stops andfor passenger amenitiss wil
be placed accordingly o the satisfaction of York Regton Transt and the Cily of Vaughan, as
applicable. This would Include polential transit routes, bus stops and shelteriocations, as necessary.

Purchasers and/or tenants are advised that York Region will be implementing the YRTP-Highway 7
Transitway in the vicinity of the subject property in the near future. The YRTP- Highway 7 Transitway
is propased to be an at grade bus rapid transit facility located in the centre median area of Bathurst
Street, within an exclusive right-of-way. Hence, the owners and purchasers are advised that if tha

propased YRTP-Highway 7 Transitway is implemented via Bathurst Streel, access toffrom the

‘affected Lots/Blocks to Bathurst Street will be restricted fo right-infnght-out movernents only.

Burchasers and/or tanants are advised that despite the inclusion of nose control features within both
the development area and the tndividuai building units, hoise levels from increasing traffic on North
Park Road, New Westminster Drive, Disera Duve and Bathurst Street, may be of concein and
accasionally intarfering with some activiies of the dwedling ocoupants.

Purchasers andfor (enants are heraby advised that the Iot abuls a “Neighborhood Park”, and that
noise and lighting shauld be expected from the designed active use af the park.
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3. Purchasers and/or tenants arg adwised that the roads within tha Plan may have been constructed
using Afternative Development Standards. In April 1995, the Minislry of Hausing and the Ministry of
Municipat Aifairs publishrd the Altermative Development Standards as a guidefing to municipafities.
The Prowince of Ontario has beert promating the use of these guidelines which pravide for reduced
pavement widths. :

3z Purchasers andfor tenanis are advised that public transit routes have not been determined for the
area within the Plan, however, Disera Drive and Morth Park Road may be subject publle transit tus
traffic.

33. No part of any naise attenuation-festure or any other fence shall be constructad pa_rlly ar entirely an

M. Purchasers and/or tenants are advised that the planting of trees on City boulevards m front of
anlial units 1s a requifementqf the subdivision agreement. The City has notimposed an amount

35, Purchasers and/or tenants ars advised that driveway widths and curb cut widihs are governed by the
Gity of Vaughan By-Laws 1-88, as amended, as foliaws: {1) The maximum width of = driveway shall
be & mefres measured at the street curly, provided ciroular driveways shall have a maximum
combrned width of 9 melres measured at the Street curh. {2) Driveway in either frant or extenor side
yards shait be constructed in accordance with the foliowmng requirernents:

Lot Frentage Maintenance Width of Driveway
6.0 - 6.88m 3.5m

7.0-8.98m 3.75m

9.0- 11.99m §.0m

12.0m and greater 9.0m

The Lot Fruntage for Lots between 9.0 - 11.89m shall be comprised of a Minimum of 33%

Landscaped Front or Exieror side yard and a mmumum of sixty percent {60%) of the Minimum

Landscapad Front or Exterior side yacd shall be softlandscaping in accordance with Paragraph 4.1.2
" af the subdivision agreement.

The Lot Frantage of Lots 12.0m and greater shall ba comprised of a Minimum of 50% Landscaped
Front or Extertor side yard and 2 mintmum sixty percent (60%) of the Minimum landscaped Front or
Extenor swe vard shall he soft landscaping in accordance with Paragraph 4.1.2 the subdivision
agreement.

36. Purchasers andfor tenants are advised that proper grading of ail ot in conformity with the

. Purchasers and/or lenants are advised that fencing along the lot fines of Lots and Blocks abutting
public lands is a requiremant of the subdivision agreement and that ali faquired fencing and bamers
shall be constructed with aN fencing materials, including foundations, completely on private lands and
totally clear of any 0.3 metre reserve, as shown on the Construction Drawings. The City has taken
a Letter of Credlt from the owner for the sacurity to ensure all fencing including, but nat kimited to
privacy fencing, chain link fencing, and acoustic fencing, are consbructed o the satisfaction of the
City. Direct cash deposit fram the Purchasers (o the City andfor ownar, for fencing, is not a

38. Purchagers and/or tenants are advised that the adjscent waodlot may be leftin a naturally vegetated
condifion andg receive minimal mainienance.

SECTION 18(a} - Lse of Parking Units

Being Unils 1 {0 85 inclusive an Level A; Units 110 85 nclusive an Leval B: Units 1 ko 758 inclusive on
Level C; and Units 1 lo 9 inclusive on Leve| D.

Each parking Unit shall be used and occupied only for motor vehicle parking purpasss, and for any
additionai USE or purgose provided for by the Rules and by-iaws afthe Corporation and without resiricting any -

a motercycle, private passenger automobile, station wagen, light duty van or light duty pick-up or sports utility
truck in good working order and repair and which does not leak any fluds. The Owner of each parking Unit
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shall maintain such Unit in a clean and sightly condition and shall remove any ail stains thereon, The
Corporation may make prowision in its arnual budget for andfor may arrange for the cleanming of the parking
Units n their totality or in groups of Unils.

SECTION 18(b! - L'se of Locker Units

Being Units 86 to 122 and 124 inclusive an Level A; Units 88 to 149 inclusive on Level B; and nits
76 o 123 inclusive on Level C,

Each locker Unit shall be used and occupied far storage purpeses only which shall nat constitute a
nuisance or danger to the other Unit Owners, the Units nor to the common elemants nor to the Shared
Servicing Systems. The board may, from fime to time, restrict the caiegaones of items that may be stored or
used in such locker Units.

SECTION 18(c) - Use of Communications nit

Being Unit 123 on Level A (the “Communications Unit")

Tha Communications Unit may be utiiized for such uses and purposes as are permilted from time to
time by retevant and applicable municipal, federal and pravmcial faws, by-laws, rules and ragulafions,
including, withiout limitation, for the operation of lelecommunication faciities and the provision of
telecommunications services 1o the Propery as well as to other properties.

The owner of the Cammunications Unft shall ba responsible for costs of all water, gas and hydro
electrical utiities consumplion, heating and arr condilioning service to this unit. If any such utiliies are not
separately meterad by the refevant utility companies. the Qwner shall install check meters at its expense and
shafl reimburse the Corporation for the utilities consumed within the Communiealions Unit. For greater
certainly, utilities consurned within the Communications Unit shail not form part of the common expenses of
the Corporation and shall be home by the Owner(s) of the Communicatians Unit alone.

Notwithstanding anything else contaned in this Declaration, the Rules or the bydaws of the
Corporation, the Owner{s) of the Cammunications Unit shalf be entltled to install, operate, maintam, raparr,
and utilize such equipment devices, apparatus or systems of kind in nalure in conjunction with its use of the
unit, ncluding, wilthout limitation, tetevision artennae, aenals, towers, satellite dishes or similar equipment or
simifar struclures and appurtenances, prowiding same: comply with the requrement of the relevant governing
authorities and providing same are installed, operated, maintained and repaired In a good and workmanlike
manner and in accotdance with all appiicable, codes, municipal by-laws and other governmental requirements.

The Owner(s} of the Communications Unit shall be pemitted to access such portion of the commoan
element areas of the Corporation as are necessary and incidental {o its use of the Communications Unit and
shall be permititad to connect its sefvices, systems, appurttenances, etc to those 5erving tha Corparation
provided the Owner(s) of the Communications Unit daes sa al its expense, in a good and warkmanlike
manner in accordance with the requirements of alt govemmenlal authorities. Without fimiting the ganeratity
of lhe foregoing, the Owner{s) of the Commumications Unit shalf be permitied io expand or modify the
equipment, systems and senvices, serving the Corparation provided that any disruption of any service to the
Corporation and its Owners and occupants s minimized ta the greatest extent practicable,

SECTION 19 - Temporary Mogel Units/Parking UnitsA ockar Units

Several unsold residential dwelling Units within the Buifding may be used as temporary modeysales
Units for sale/markating purposes, and the Declarant and ihe Related Campany, their sates siaff and therr
respective invilees shall be enlitled ko use the common elementis for access to and egrass from said modat
Units. The Declarant shall be entitisd to maintain such model Units and any unseld parking and locker units,
together with all sales displays and signs, until such time as alt Units n the Buildings (or such lesser number
as the Declamant may detarmine in its sole discretion} have been sold by the Declarant and until such ime as
alt of the Other Units hava bean sold.

PART S1X
LEASING OF UNITS

SECTION 20 ~ Nolification of Lease

@} The Owner of a Unit wha leages his Unlt or renews a lease of his Unit shall, within 30 days
of entering into the leasze or the fenewal, as the case may be:

{i) notify the Carporation that the Unit is ieased:

| provide the Corporation with (he lessee's name, the Owner's addrass and a capy af
the lease or renewal or a summary of it n the form prescribed by section 83 of the
Act; and

(i) provide the lessee with a copy of the Declaration, by-laws and Rules of the
Carporation.
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{b) If 4 lsase of a Unit 1s terminated and not renewed, the Owner of the Unit shall notify the
Corporation in witing.

{c) In'addition, no Owner other than the Declarant shall lease his Unit unless he first delivers to
the Corporation a covenant or agreement signed by the tenant, 1o the following effect:

*| acknowiedge and agree that |, the members of riy househaid, end my guests from
lime to Ume, will, in using the Unit rentad by me and the comman elements, comply
with the Condominium Act, the Declaration, the by-laws, and all Rules of the
Corporation, dunng the term of my tenancy, and will be subject to the same duties
impasad by the above as if | were a Unit Ownar, except for the paymant of common

expensas unless otherwisa pravided by the Condominium Act*

SECTION 21 - Tenant's Lablity

If an Qwner wha has leased a Unit defauits in the Gwner's obfigation to contribute tu the comman
expenses, the Corporation may, by written notice to the lessee, require the lessee 1o pay to the Corporation
the lesser of the amount of the default and the amount of the rent due under the lease Ir accordance with
sacton 87 of the Act.

SECTION 29 - Owner's |iabifily

Any Cwner leasing his Unit shafl not be relieved thereby from any of his obligations with respect to
the Unit, which obiigations shall be joint and several with his tenant. -

PART SEVEN
MAINTENANCE AND REPAIRS AFTER DAMAGE

SECTION 23 - Mairtenance ang Repairs to Unit

{a} Each Owner shall maintain his Unit and, subject to the provisions of this Declaration and
section 123 of the Act, each Ownar shalt repair his Unitafter damage, all at his own expernse.

{b) Notwithstanding anything hersinbefore provided to the contrary, each Owner shall be
responsible for all damages to any and all ather Units and fo the common elements, which
are caused by the fajlure of such Owner to so maintain and repair his Unit, save and excapt
far any such damages the cost of repainng which may be recoverad under any palicy of
insurance hefd by the Corparation.

{c} The Corparation shalf make 2ny ragairs that an Ownar s obligated to make and that he does
not make within a reasonable time aftar damage occurs, and the Corporation may perform
ny maintenance that an Qwner is obligated o perform and that he does not perforrn within
a reasonable ime. In such avent, an Owner shall be deemed o have cottsented to having
matntenance and/ar repairs done to his Unit by tha Corporation. The Owner shall remburse
the Corporation in full for the cost of such maintenance andfor repairs, inciuding any legat
or collecion cosls incurred by the Corporalion in order to collect the costs of such
maintenance andfor repairs, and all such costs shall bear interest at the rate of four (4%) per
cent per annum above the pnme lending rate charged by the Corporation's Bank to jts best
risk commersial customers, until paid. The Corporation may collect such costs in such
tnstaiments as the board may decide upon, which instalments shail be added to the monthiy
cantribultions towards the comman expenses of such Cwner, after receipt of written nalice
from the Corporation thereof, and shall be treated in af fespects as common expenses, and
recaverable as such. .

(dy In addition fa the requiremenis of Section 123 of the Act, which are imposed upan the
Corporation when the building has been substantially daraged, the Carporation shall deliver,
by registared mall ta all morgagees wha have notified the Corporation of their interestin any
Unit, rotice that substantial damage has oczummed to the property, along with notice of any
meefing requisitioned by the Cwners pursuant to Section 123,

SECTION 24 - Mantenance and Repairs to Common Elements

(&) Except as otherwize provided heremn, the Corporation shall maintain and repait, after
damage, the common elemants. This duty o maintsin and repair shall extend Lo all doors
which provide access to the residential dwelling Units and all windows (except maintenance
fa the interior surfaca thereol, and extedar surfaces which are accessibie by any balkony,
terrace or patio the espansibility for which shali remain with the affected Unit Qwner],

()] Each Owner enjoying exclusive use of any balcony, terrace or patio shall be solely
responsible for maintenance and non-structural repaur of such area, subject fo the overall
direction of the baard.

{c) Every Owner from time to time shall forthwith reimburse the Corporation for repairs to and
replacement of windews and daors (including the locks relating thereto) serving his
residential dwelling Urit, and for repairs to any part of the common elements caused by hus
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negligence or Intentional misconduct ar that of the residents, lenants, nvitees or licensees
of his residential dwelling Unit, or members of his family, to the exterit that such costs may
not be recovered under any palicy of insurance held by the Corporation without inordinately
ncreasing e premium payable for such insurance as detenmined by the beard in its sole
discretion. :

Each Owner enjoying exclusive use of any balcany, terrace or patio the exclusiva use of
which has been designated to such Unit Owner by the Declaration, shall allow access upon
the Comparation's request at all reasonable times to the Carparation, or ke any of its servants,
agents or contractars fov the purpose of facilitating any repair or mantenance of the property
which is the Corparation's duty to repair or maintain.

PART EIGHT
INSURANCE

SECTIONM 25 - Insurance Maintamed by the Comporation

(@)

(b

{]

Property [nsurance

The Corporation shall obtain and maintain insurance, on its own behalf and on behalf of the
Owneers, far damage to the Units (excepl for any improvemants made or acquired by the
Qwniers), common elemeants and personal property owned by the Corporatian (excluding
furnishings, fumifure or ather personal property supplied or installed by the Owners} that is
caused by major perlls as defined In the Act, and insurance against such other perils or
events as tha board may from time to ime deem advisable, in en amount equal to the full
replacement cost af such reai and personal property, and such Units, wihout deduction for
depreciation. This insurance may be subject to a loss deductible clausa, which may vary in
respect of the vanous perils insurad against as advised by the Corparation’s insurance
advisors or managing agent.

Other Insurance

The Carporation shall pbtain and maintain insurance against its liatility resulting from a
braach of duly as occupier of the common elements ar land that the Corparation holds as an
asset, and Insurance againstits liahility arising from its ownership, use or oparation, by ar an
its behalf, of boilars, machinery, pressure vessels and malor vehicles.

General Provisions re Policies of Insurance

Sueh poficy or policies of Insurance will Insurs the interast of the Corparation and the Owners
from time o fima, as lheir espective interasts may appear, with morigage endorsements
which shail be subject to the provisians of this Deciaration and the Easement and Cost
Shanng Agreement and shalt contain the following provisians:

{i} waivers of subragation against the Corporation, its managers. agents, empioyees
and seivants, and against the Unit Owners and any resident, tenart, invitee or
licensee of a Unit, and as otherwise required ar modified by tha Easement and Cost
Sharing Agreement and in any event excluding damage arising ouf of arson and
fraud caused by any ona af the above;

¢y such policy or policies of insurancs shall not be cancelled or substantially modified
without at least sixty {(60) days’ written notice sant by regisiered mail to.all parties
whaose inferests appear thareon, and lo the Corparaticn, and to any first morgages
who has charges on mare than twenty-five (25%) per cent of the residential dwelfing
Units;

(iii) waivers of any defenca based on co-insurance or of invalidity arising from any act
or amission, or breach of a statutory condition, by any insured;

{iv} provision that the same shall be primary insurance i respact o any ather insurance
camed by the Cwnar;

{v) walver of the Insurer's aption ta repair, rebuild or replace in the event that after
damage the government of the property is terminated pursuant to the Act, which
prowtsion shall not be required to be contained in the Corposation's policy reterred
to in Section 25(b) abave

SECTION 36 - Geperal Provisions Regarding the Condominium Insurance

(a

Prior to obtaning any policy or. policies of insurance under this Pant, save for the
Corporallon’s palicy referted to in Section 25(6) abave, or any renewal of renewals thereof,
or at such other tlimes as the board may deem advisable, and also upon the request of the
mongagee or mongagees holding mortgages on 50% or more of the residential dwelling
Units, the board shall, {unless itis satisfied that its cument appraisal of the full replacement
cost of the property Is sufficient for its purposes) abtain an appraisal from an independent
qualified appraiser, of the full replacement cost ofthe praperty, for the purpose of defermining
the armount of insurancea to be effected pursuant thereto, and the costs of such appraisals
shall ke a comman expense. In this regard, the board can rely an the appraisal abtained
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pursuantto the Easement and Cast Sharing Agreementwith respect to the property coverad
by such appratsal and provided that no appraisal shalt be necessary for the penod prior o

* the tumaver meating requited to be held pursuant to the Act, with respect to the initial poficy
or policies placed by the Declarant.

{t) Save ae set lorth herein or save as set forth 1n the Easement and Cost Shanng Agreement,
the Carporation, Its board and its officers, shall have the exclusve right, on behalf of iself
and as agents for the Owners, o adjust any loss and setile any clams with respact to afi
insurance placed by the Corporation and to give such releasss as are required and any
claimant, including the Qwner of a damaged Unit, shalt be bound by such adjustment.
Provided, howevar, that the board may, In writing, authorize an Owner to adjust any joss to
his Unit, and must do s if provided m the Easement and Cost Bharing Agreement.

{c) Every mortgagee shall be deemed o have agreed to waive any nght ko have praceeds of any
Insurahce applled on account of the martgage. This paragraph (c} shall be read without
prejudice o the nght of any mortgagee (o exercise the right of an Owner o vole, or (o
censent fo malters at meetings of Owners, if the mortgage itself contains such a provision,
and shall alsq be read without prejudice to the rightof any morlgagee (o recave the proceeds
of any insurance palicy if lhe property is not repaired or replaced.

(s3] A certificate or memarandum of all msurance policies and endorsements thereto shail be
155U8d a5 500n 25 possible to each Owner and mortgagee who has notified the Corporation
of his inferest in any Unit. Renewal canlificates or certificates of new instance palicies shall
be furnished to each Qwner, and renewal certificates or cartified copies of new insurance
policias shall be furnished b each marigagae who has notified the Corporation of his interest
inany Unit, no latar than ten (10} days before the expiry of any curvent insurance policy. The
master policies for any insurance coverage maintained by the Corparafion shall be kept by
the Corporation in its offices, available for mspection by an Owner or mortgagee or other
insured on reasonabla notice to the Corporation.

{e) No insured, other than the Corporatian, shall be entitied to amend any palicy or policies of
insurance obtained and mantained by or for the Carporation, or to direct that loss shall be
payable in any manner other than as provided in this Dieclaration.

SECTION 27 - Indempity stance

The Carporation, na eariler than tha date of the turmover meeting held pursuant to Section 43 of the
Act, shalt (and prior thereto may at its option) chtain and maintain insurancs for the benehit of directors and
officers af the Corporation, In arder to indemnify them against any liability, sost, charge or axpense (the
“liabllities"} Incurred by tham in the execution of thes dulies, provided that such insurance shall not indemnify
them against liabilities incurred as a resull of a contravention of Seclion 37(1) of the Ast

SECTION 2B - jpsurance Maintained by the Individual Unit Owners

It is acknowledged that the foregoing insurance is the only insurance requined o be obtained and
mamfgined by the Corporalion and that the following insurance shall be obtained, or any other insurance, if
deemed necessary or desirable by any Owner, may be obtained and maintained by such Owner:

{a) Insurance on any additions or improvements made by an Owner [o his residentiat dwelling
Unit, including but not imited to, furnishings, fixtures, squipment, decorating and parsonat
property, chattels and iventory of the Owner contamed within his residantial dwelling Unit,
and s personal property and chaltels stored eisewhera on the proparty, including his
attormabile or automaobiles and for loss of use and accupancy of his residential dwelling Unit
m the event of damage. Sueh policy or policies of insurance shall coniain watvers of
subragation agains{ the Corporation, jts manager, agents, employees and servanis, and
against the other Owners and any lenants, invitees or licensees of such other residential
dwelling Units, except for any damage arising from vehicte impact, arsen and fraud caused
or coniributed by any of the abave,

(&) Public liability insurance cavering any Bability of any Owner ar any resident. tenant, invitee or
licensee of his Unit, to the extent not coverad by any public liability and properly damage
Insurance oblsined and maintaned by the Carporation.

{c) Insurance coveting additional living expenses incurred by an Owner if forced to leave his
residential dwelling Unit by one of the hazards protected against urider the Owner's personal

propearty.

{d) Insurance covenng special assessments levied against an Owner's Unit by the Corparation.

SECTION 29 - jndemunification by Cwners

Each Owner shall indemnify and save the Corporation hanmless from any loss, costs, damage, imury
or liability which the Cerporalion may suffer or Incur resufting from or caused by any act or omission of such
Owner, or eny resident, tenant, invitee or licensea of his residantial dwelling Unit, 1o or with respect to the
commen elements or to any Unit or any part of the Building, except for any loss, costs, damags, mjury or
liability insured against by the Corporation or by the Adjacent Corperation and for which msurance proceeds
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dre in fact payable. Each Owner shall also indemnify and save the Corporation harmiless fram any toss, costs,
damage, imjury or fiability which tha Coiporation may suffer by reasen of any breach of any Rules or by-aws
in force from time lo time by any Owner, his family, guests, tenants, ficensees, Invitees, customers or
occupants of his Unit. All payments to be made by any Owner pursuant to this Section are desmed to be
additional confributions toward the common expenses payable by such Owner, and are allocated and
recoverable as such.

PART NINE
DUTIES OF THE CORPORATICON

SECTION 30 - Dutias

The duties of the Corparation shall mclude but shall nof be limited ta the following:

(at

{b)

©

(d}

te)

@)

o enter into the Easement and Cost Sharng Agreement and to comply with all of the
covenants, conditions, restrictions, agreements, obligatians, terms and provisions contained
therein and/for registered againgt the Praperty, in addition to any requirernents set forth m the
Ac, the Declaration, by-laws or Ruies of the Corparation;

the Corporation shall provide or cause to be provided n accordance with the tams of the
Easement and Cost Sharng Agreement, all serices raquired to allow the Shared Servicng
Systems, the Specific Servicng Easements, the Exterlor Landscaped Areas and Facilities,
the Common Interior Roadway, the Outdaor Pedestrian Walkway, the 2 Storey Common
Area, Residential Unit B Levet 1 and the Garage to operate or ba used in accordance with
their parmitted uses during those times in which the said facilities will operate or ordinarily be
used;

to enter nto, abide by and comply with the terms and provisions of any outstanding
subdivision, condomirium, site plan, development or similar agreements {as well enter mio
a formal assumption agreement with the City of Vaughan or ether govemmentgl authorities
refating thereto, if so required by the City of Vaughan or other govemmental authorities);

to grant, mmediately after the registration of this Declaration, If required, an easement(s) in
perpeluity In favour of ulifity suppliers or cable television operators over, undeT, upan, across
and through the Propery or any parl{s) thereof, for the purposes of facilitating the
canstruction, instaflation, operation, maintenance andfor repair of ufflity cr cable taleyision
lines or equipment {and all necessary appurtenances thereto} In arder fo facilitate the supply
of utifiies and cable television sarvice to the Units and comman slements, and if so
requested by the grantees of such easements, ko enter into {and abide by the terms and
provision of) an agreement with the utility and/or cable islevision supplier pertaining to the
provision of therr services to the Units and commen slements and for such purpases shall
enact such by-laws as may ba required to sanction the faregoing;

{0 ensure that no actlons or steps are taken by or on behaif of the Carporatian, or by any Unit
Owner-or their respective tenants or invitees which would prohibit, restrict, limit, hinder or
interfere with the Declarant's ability to wtiize portions of the common elaments of this
Corpioration forits marketing/sale/constructon programs in cornection with this condominium
oc the adjacent lands, as more particularly set out In the foregoing provisions of this
Declaration; o

to take all reasonable steps to coilest from each Unit Owner s or her proportionate share
of the comman expanses and to maintain and enforce the Corporation's fien ansing pursuant
to the Act, against each Unit n respect of which the Owner has defaulted in the payment of
COmIMoL expenses: and

to take all actions reasonably necessary as may ba required o fulfit any of the Corparation's
duties and abligations pursuant to this Declaration.

PART TEN
GENERAL MATTERS

SECTION 31 - Righls of Entry

{al

The Corporation, or any insurer of the property or any part theraof, their respactive agents,
employees arauthorized Tepresentatives, and any ather person authorzed by the beard, shall
be entilled to enter any Unit at all reasonabie fimes and upon giving reasonable notice, for
the purpuses of making inspections, adjusting tosses, making repairs, correcting any
candition which violates the provisions of any insurance palicy or palicies, rernedying any
condition which m:ght resuit in damage lo the property, carrying out any duty iImpased uzpon
it by the Corporation, or to perform the objects and duties of the Corparatian o o exarcise
the powers of the Carporation, or in order to exercise any right, remedy or privilege any one
of them may have pursuant to the Easement and Cost Sharing Agreement or to carry out any
duty imposed by such agraements ar such ather obligations that bind the Corporation.
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(b In case of an emergency, any agent, empioyee or authorized represantative of the
Corporation may enter any Unit at any time without notice, for the purpose af repanng the
Unit or the common elements or for the purpoase of correcting any condition which might
result i damage or loss to the praperty or any assets of the Corparation. The Corporation
or anyone autherzed by it may determne whéther such an amergency exists.

(] If any Cwner, resident or tenant of a Unit shatl not be persanally present to grant entry to
such Unit ko such person menticned in subparagraph 31(b), the Corporation, or any person
authorized by the Corparation, any of their agents or employees, may anter upon such Unit
without rendenng it, or them, liable fo any clam or cause of action for damages by reason
thereaf, provided that they exercise reasanable care.

[(+)} The Corperation shait retain a master kay to all iocks to all Units and exclusive use areas,
No Owrer, resident, or tenant shall change any lock or place any additional iocks on the
doors to any Unit or in the Unit or to the Garage or to any part of the common elements of
which such Owner, residant or tanant has the exclusive use without all such locks being on
the Corporation's master key system.

(e} The rights and authority hereby reserved to the Corporation, any insurer a3 aforesard, and
their respective agents, employees or authorized representatives, does noft impose upon
tharm any responsibilily or llabliity whatsoever for the care or supervision of any Unit except
as spacifically provided in the Declaration or the byJaws.

SECTION 32 - Owner's Default

IF any Owner of a Unit Jails ta pay the Corporation any arnount ("the Amount) of money required to
be paid purstrant to this Declaration that may not be a common expense, the Corporation's by-taws andfor
Rules or ofherwise when required, then in addition to any other nghts, powers or remedias available fo the
Corporation at common law, by statute, or in equily, the Corporation shall be entitled io:

(a} charge and levy Interast aganst such Owner {hereinafter referred to as the "Defauilting
Owner"] in respect of such unpaid Amount and on all costs and expensas incurred by the
Corporalion in collecting {orattampting to callect) same, inciuding all legal expenses incuired
by the Corporation on a solicitor-and-histher-own-ciient basts, at a rate equal ko 24% per
annum, calculated monthly, notin advance, with mierest on the unpard Amount commencing
to accrue fram and after the date which the Amount is due and payable and with interest on
all of the expenses incured in callecting {or attempting to collect) same commencing to
acerue fromand after the respective dates that tha Corporation incurred or expended same,
and all such interest shafl conlinue to aserue at the afareseid rate untl the date that all of the
foregoing amounts are fully pald; and

{by mafntain and enforce & lien agamst tha Defaulling Owner's Urit(s), as securily for the
payment of the Amourtt (hereinafter refarred to azs the “Lier™} and all costs and expanses
incurred by the- Corporation in callecting for alttempting k collect) same {ogather with all
outstanding interest accruing thereon as aforasaid, with the Lisn being enforceable by the
Corporalion in the same manner, and bo the sams extent, as a real property morigage or
charge, and with all the powers, rights and remedies inherent in {or available to} a mortgagea -
or chargee when a martgage or charge of real astate is in default, pursuant to the provisions
of The Martgages Act R.S.0. 1990 as amended andfor any other appiicable statutary
pravision ar comman law principle applicable thereto, and inthe eventthat thelLand Remstrar
requires the Corparation, as a prerequisite ko the regisiration andfor enforcement of Lien, to
apply to a court of competent jurisdiction of any order, ditection, advice or authorization, then
the Corporation shalt be entitlied to faorthwith apply o such court for same and Defautling
Owner shall for all purposes be deemed to have sonsented to any such application by the
Comporalion, and concomitantly, the Defaulting Gwner shall be forever barrad and eslopped
fram bringing or Instituting any action, sult, claim or other procesding to defend, defeat,
hinderor delay any such application by the Corporation or the maintenance and enforcarment
of the Lian by the Corporation. ‘

SECTION 33 - invalidity

Each of the provisions of this Declaration shall be deemed independent and severabls, and the
Invalidity or unenforceabiity in whole or tn part of any one or more of such provisions shall nol be deemed to
Impair ar affect in any mannar the validity or enforceability of the remainder of this Declaration.

SECTION 34 - Waiver

The fallure ta take action Lo enforce any provision contained in the Act, the Declaralion, the Easement
and Cost Sharing Agreeent, the by-laws or the Rules of tha Corporation, rrespactive of ike number of
vielations or breaches which may ocour, shall not constitute a wanvar of the right to do so thereafter, nar shali
same be deemed o abrogate or waive any such provision,

SECTION 35 - Nolice

_ Except as provided in the Act or as hereinbafore set forth, any notice, direction or other mstrument
required to be given shall be given as follows:
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1. Method of gving nolice: Any notice, communication or other dacument, including budgets
end nolices of assessmants required to be gwen or delivered by the Corporatian, shall be
- sufficiently given if delivered personally to the person to whom itis to be given or if delivered
to the address noted in the record, or if railed by prepaid ordinary mail in a sealed enveiope
addressed 1o him at such address or if sent by means of wire or wireless or any other form
of transmitted or recorded communication, to such address or, where such nalics 1s requirad
to be grven lo a Unit Owrler, dellvered to the Owners Unit or at the maitbox of the Unit
unless, the Corporatian has received a written request from such Owner that the nolice not
be given in this marniner, ar the address for service that appears m the recond 1s not the
address of the Unit of the Qwner. Any nolica, communication or other document to be given
by the Corparation to any other parsan entitled to natice and who is nat an owner shall be
given or defivered to such person in the manner aforesaid to the address shown for hirn on
the record. Such notice, communication or document shall be deemed (o have been givan
when it is delivered personally or dellvered o the address aforasaid; pravided that a notice,
communication of document so mafled shall be deemed to have been given when deposited
In a past office or public letter box and notice sent by any means of wire or wireless or any
other form of transmitted or recorded communication shall bs deemad to have heen given
when delivered to the appropriate communication company or agency or its representative
for dispatch.

2, Notice o the Board or Corporation: Any nolice. communication or other document to be

gven fa the Board or Corporation shall be sufficiently given If malled by prepaid ordinary mail
or air maif in a seafed envelope addressad to it at the address for service of the Corporation
sat out in the Declaration. Any natice, communicatian or document 50 mailed shall be
deamied to have been given when deposited in & post office or public lefter box,

3. QOmissiong and Ervors: The accidental omission Lo grve any nolice to anyone entitled thereto
or the non-receipt of such nolice or any errorin any nofice not affecting the substance thereof
shalf not invalidate any action taken at any mesting held pursuant to such notice or atherwise
founded thereon.

{f such notice 18 mailed as aforesaid, the same shall be deerried o have been recewved and to ba
effective an the third {3rd) business day foliowing the day on which It was maled,

SECTION 36 - Construction of Declaration
2w DAY 90 - Lanshuction of Declaration

This Declaration shall be reard with afl ¢hanges of number and gender requred by the context.

SECTION 37 - Headings

The headings in the body of the Declaration form no part of the Declaration bt shall be deemed to
be inserted for convenience of reference anly.

DATED in the Province of Onfano this o7 dayof Feheua ~ , 2008,

IN WATNESS WHEREQF the Declarant has hereunio affixed its corporate seal under the hand of i(s
Proper signing officer duly authorized in that behalf,

1666633 ONTAR)

Per:

Name: Feréyé!oon Darvish
Tiile:  Presient

I have authority to bird Ihe: Corporation.
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SCHEDULE “A"

in the Cily of Vaughan in the Province of Ontario, being part of Block 2, Registered Plan
65M-3872, described as Part 1, Plan 65R8-29370 and part of Block 16 (0.30 Reserve),
Registarad Plan 65M-3872, described as Part 1, Plan 65R-26972, Land Tilles Division af Yark
Region (No. 65}, being afl of PIN Nos. 03261-0301 and 03261-0299, (*Building D)

SUBJECT TO an easement in favour of Rogers Cable Gommunications Inc. over part of Block
2. Registered Plan 65M-3872, Part 1. Plan 65R-29270 for the purposes as et outin Instrument
Nos. YR 898806 and YR 966293,

TOGETHER WITH a right of way, or right in the: nature of an easement In favour of the owners of
Part af Block 2, Reglstered Plan 65M-3872 deslgnated as Part 1, Plan 65R-29370 their
successars and assigns, and permitted accupants, agents and invitees, over the Common

- Elements of York Region Standard Condominjum Plan No. 1075 {YRSCP 1075), as sat owt in
Instrument No. YR 904326, for the purposes of:

(a) crossing, penetrating, boring or travefling through any transfer skab, fiaor slab, ceiling slab,
column, beam, concrete, block, masonry walls or drywall enclosures or other simitar
installations for the purpose of altering or installing, attaching fo ar otherwise utilizing any
sfructural members contained therein for the suppoart of any buildings situated within the
fands of YRSCP 1075;

(b) allowing pedestrian (whers appropriate) and all manner of vehicufar (whers appropnale,
including consiruction vehicles) ingress and egress appropriate for the reasonable use and
enjoyment of any facility or instaflation, through portions of the Comimon Elements of
YRSCP 1075 designated racreational tacilities Inctuding but not limited to the pool. changs
rooms, mialn fobby, visitar drop off. party room, the driveways., walkways, comidars,
stairways. efevators, escalators, washrooms, locker rooms, driveways, ramps and parking
spaces as wall.as the on-lpading or fransport of goods and materials within the
aforementioned designated areas;

{c) effecting or facilitating the repair. reptacement, maintenance. servicing or inspections of any
installations or appurienances situated within the Common Elements of YRSCP 1075, that
may be necessary, desirable or convenient from time to time for the benefit of such
installations or appurtenancas situated within the “Building D" lands;

() instafling, maintaining, operating, altering, repaining, replacing and inspecting of any part of
YRICP 1075 building, installations or appurtenances including, but not limited to, drainage,
storm and sanitary sewers, water pipes, Insulation systaems, electrical, hydro. telephone,
tslevision-and cable conduits, cables and wires, transformers, gas lines, venlilation ducts or
shafts, air-canditioning equipment, fire protection and waste disposal, communications aned
security systems and various other services and ufiiities, together with all appurtenances
thereto that may be necessary, desirable or convenlent from time to time for the benefit of
such services and utilities situated within the “Huilding D" lands;

{e) allowing pedestian (where appropriate) and all manner of vehicular (where appropriate,
including sanstruction vehicles) Ingress and egress appropriate for installing, maintaining,
operating, altering, repairing, replacing and inspecting any part of the YRSCP 1075
buildings, installations or appurtenances including, but nat limited fo, drainage. storm and
sanitary sewers, water pipes, insulation systems, slectrical, hydro, telephone, television and
cable condils. cables and wires, transfarmers, gas lines, ventilation ducts or shafts, air-
conditioning equipment, fire protection and waste disposal, communications and security
systems and vartous other services and utilitias, together with all appurtenances thersto
that may be necessary, desirable or convenisnt from time to time for the benefit of such
services and utllities situated within the “Building D" lands;

(f} maintaining support {without resircting the generality of the faregoing) in respest of. from
and by the structural members, skabs, pillars, columns, footings, fourkations, side and
crass beams. supporting walls and the scil which support the buildings, installations and all
other appurtenances thereto situated within the “Bullding D" lands;

() permitting the overhead swing of a construction crane to facilitate the construction of a
building on the “Bullding D* lands.



02-431-05
Building D

Schedule *A" con't

SUBJECT TO a right of way, or right in the nature of an easement in favour of the owners of the
YRSCP 1075 their successors and asslgns, and permitted occuparits, agents and invitees, over
Part of Black 2, Registered Plan 63M-3872, descibed as Part 1, Plan B5R-28370, as set out in
Instrument No. YR 904326 for the purposes of:

{8 crossing, penetrating, boring or travelling through any transfer slab, floor slab, ceiling siab,
column, heam, concrete, binck, masonry walls or drywall enclostres or other similar
Instailations for the purpose of altering or installing, aftaching to or otherwise utilizing any
struclural members contained therain for the support of the prapased buildings to be
constructed and situated within *Building 0

()} alldwing pedestrian (wherg appropriate) and all manner of vehicular (where apgropriate

including construction vehickes 1Ingress and egress appropriate for the reasonable use and*

Building £ designated recreational facllifies, including, but not limited to {he
pool. change rooms, main lobby, visitor drop off and party roorn, the driveways, walkways,
corridors, stairways, elevalors, escalators, washrooms, incker fooms, driveways, ramps

{c) effecting or facllitating the Tepair, replacement, maintenance, servicing or inspection of any
instaliations or appurtenances siluated within the Proposed “Building D" lands that may be
necessary, desirable ar convenient from time to fime for the benefit of such installations or
appurtenances situated within the YRSCR 1075,

{d) Installing, maintaining, operating, altering, repairing, reptacing and inspecting any part of the
proposed "Building D" bufidings, instailations or appurtenances including, tut niot limiled te,
drainage, stonm and sanitary sewers, water Pipes, Insulation systems, electrical, hydro,
telephone, television ar cable canduits, cables and wires, transformers, gas lines,
ventitation ducls or shafts, air-condttioning equipment, fire protection and wasta disposal,
communications and security systems and varicus other services and utiities, together with
all appurtenances thereto that may be necessary, desirable or convenient from time to time
for the benefit of such servicas and utilities situated within the YRSCP 1075;

(c) allowing pedestrian {where appropriate) and all manner of vehicutar {where appropriale,
incfuding construction vehiclas) ingress ang egress appropriate for installing, maintaining,
operating, altering, repairing, replacing and inspacting any part of the proposed "Building D"
buildings, instalfations or appuitenances including, but nat limited to, drainage, storm and
sanitary sewers, water pipes, insuiation syslems. elecirical, hydro, telephone, television and
cable conduits, cables and wires, transformers, gas lines, veniilation ducts or shalts, ajr-
conditioning equipment, fire protection and waste disposal, communications and securily
systems and various other services and utilities, together with all appurtenances therelo
that may be necessary, dasirable of convenient from time to time for the benefit of such
services and uilites sftuated within the YRSCP 1075, B

{fr maintaining support (without restricling the generality of the foregoing) in tespect of. from
and by the structyral members, slabs, pilfars, columng, faotings, foundations, side and
Lross beams, supporling walls and the soit which support the buidings; installations and ail

other appurtenances thereto sittated within the YRSGP 1075:

_lt Is my opinion, based on the Property identifier number and the plan and documents recorded
In them, the legal description is correct, the easements described will exist in jaw upon

registration of the Declaration and Bescription and the Declarant is the registerad owner of the
land and appurtenant interests,

BRATTY AND PARTNERS
Bamisters & Soﬂcitors_,;_z,P
Solicitors for the Declarant

Per;
Name! Michael Voipatt|
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Condominium Act, 1998 "71

CONSENT
SCHEDULE "B* TO THE DECLARATION QF
1666633 ONTARIO INC.

(under ¢lause 7{2i(h] of the Condominitim Act,_1998)

1. We THE BANX OF NOVA SCOTIA have registerad morigages within the meaning of clause 7{2)(b} of the
Condaminum Act, 1998, registated as Instrument Nos. YRI35648, YRS45108, YRS45149, YREO5856 and
YRE5865 in the Land Registry Office for the Land Titles Division of York Region.

e

We THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA consents to the registration of this declaration pursuant lo the Act, against
the land orthe interasts appurtenant io the land, a5 the land and the inlerests are described in tha description.

i We THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA postpones the mortgage and the interests under it ko the dedfaration and
the: sasements described In Schedule *A” Io the declaralion.

4. Wa THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA 15 entitted by law to grant this consant and postpanement.

DATEDWis [ o PQ:LJM{ , 2008,

}

THE BAMK OF NRVA SCOTIA

W3 DOCumENT  Per: /(/f

Namegpl CHART TS ON
No.220 ?C/ﬁ 8 Tessisiant General Manager
APPROVED FOR Real Estate Credit
EWECITION Par

Narne:

Tille:

T i marie

1. Power of Attormey registered on the 2 day of February, 1989 as instrument No. LT555938 n the Land
Ragistry Offica for the Land Titlas Division of York {No, 65,

2 The Attomey states that (o tha bestof the Attomay's knowladge and balief. the Power of Attarmnay 1s sfill in fll
force and effect,
a. The Attorney states that the Attorney Is at the lime of execulion af this instrument tha holder of ke oifice

rafarred 1o abave,



Condominium Act, 1998

CONSENT
SCHEDULE “B" TO THE DECLARATION OF
1579670 ONTARIO INC.

{under clause 7{2){b] of the Condominium Act, 1993)

We THE GUARANTEE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA has a registered mortgages within the meaning
of clause 7{2)(b) of the Condormmm Act, 1998, registered as Instrument Nos. YRS71127 and YRB95864 in

the Land Registry Office for the Land Tities Divislan of York Region.
Ve THE GUARANTEE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA consents 1o the registralion of this declaration

pursuantta the Act, against the land or the interests appustenant o the land, a5 the land and the interesis are
described in the descnption,

We THE GUARANTEE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA pasipanes the martgage and the interests under
it to the deciaration and the easements described in Scheduie "A” to the declaration.

We THE GUARANTEE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA is entitlad by law to grant tis consent and
postpanement,

patEntis 1 o flcmw;r’ut) . 2008,

THE GUARANTEE COMPANY OF NORTH AMERICA

e [t

Name: L pavEL A MARTIN
THle:  op SURETY UNDERWRAITER

Pel'@m l.}:m

Name:
: CHRIS WATTERS
T CENORMAMAGER WTONALSURETY

IAVe have authority o bind the Corparation,

22
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Building D
SCHEDULE “c”

Boundary of Units

Each Residential Candaminium Unit, Parking Unit and Locker Unit shall comprise the area
within the heavy lines shown on Part 1, Sheets 1 fo § of the Description with respect to the unit
numbers indicatad therean. The monuments controlling the extent of the units are the physical
surfaces and planes referred to below, and are Hlustrated on Part 1, Sheels 1 to 5 of the
Description, and all dimensions shall have reference to them.
V¥ithout limiting the generality of ihe foregoing, the boundaries of each wnit are as follows:
{A) RESIDENTIAL DWELLING UNITS
Baing Units 1 to 7. inclusive on Level 1; Units 1 to 12, inclusive on Levels 2 and 3 and Levels 4
to 18, inclusive; Units 1 o & inclusive on Leyels 19 and 20; and Units 1 to 4, inclusive on Levels
21 and 22.

VERTICAL BOUNDARIES ARE:
(1 The backside surface and plane of the drywall sheathing and projetions thereof:
(2 The unfinished unitsids surfaces of the exterior doors and door frames, window and

window frames and unitside surfaces of alt glass panels located thereln (when the doors
and windows afe in a closed position n

(3)  The unitside surface and plane of the concrete or masonry walls or columns and
projections thereof

HORIZONTAL BOUNDARIES ARE:

(1} The upper surface of the conerete floor slab and projections thereof:

2 The lower surface of the concrete ceiling slab and projections thereof;

{3) - The backside {upper} surtace of the drywall sheathing of duct covers and suspendad
ceilings.

(BY PARKING UNITS

Being Units 1 to B85, inclusive on Level A: Unlts 1 to 85, inclusive on Lavel B: Units 1 to 75,
inclusive on Level C; and Units 1 to 9, Inclusive on Leve! 0.

VERTICAL BOUNDARIES ARE:

(1} The vertical plane established by measurements:

{2) The unitside surface and plane of the concrete or masonry ‘wali or column and
projections therecf;

3 The vertical planes established by the centre lines of concrete columns and projections
thereof;

%) The vertical plane established by the line of faces of concrete columps and projections
thereof:

(5) The vertical plane established by measurements and perpendicular to the masanry or
concrete walls:

(6) The vertical plane established perpendicular to the masonry or concrete wall passing
through the canire line of the coricrete column and projections thereaf:

(™) The vertical plane established perpandleular to the masonry or concrate wall passing
through the face of the concrets calumn and projections thereaf:

(8} The vertical plane established by the centerline of the conerete column and
measurements.

23
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Building D
PARKING UNITS con’t
HORIZONTAL BOUNDARIES ARE,
(1 The upper surface of the congrete floor stab and projections thereof:

{2 The lower surface of the concrete celling slab and projections thereof:

(3] A plane parallel ta and 1.90 melres perpendicularly above the upper surface of the .

concrete floor slab.

{C} LOCKER UNITS
Being Units 86 to 122 and 124, incfusive on Level &; Units 86 to 148, inclusive on Level B: and
Units 76 to 123, inciusive on Level c.

VERTICAL BOUNDARIES ARE:

{1} The unitside surface and plane of the concrete or masonry wall or column and
projections thereof:

(2) The unitside surface and Plane of the wire mesh partition and / or wire mesh door.
(Being in a closed position]

(3) The unitside surface of the concrete beam,

{4 The unitside surface and plane of the concrete or masonry walil or column and
projections therscf;

{5)  The unfinished unilside surfaces of lhe exterior doors and door frames, window angd
window frames and unitside surfaces of all glass Paneis located therein (when the doors
and windows ara in a ¢losed pasition),

HORIZONTAL BOUNDARIES ARE:

(1) The upper surface of the concrete floor slab and projections thereof;

(2 The lower surface and plane of the wirg mesh calling.

(3 The lower surfaca of the concrete beam.

(4} A plane parallel to and 1.90 metres Perpendicutarly above the upper surface of the
concrete floor siab. i

(5)  The lower surface of tha concrete ceiling slab and projections thereof.

(D) GCOMMUNICATIONS UINIT

Being Unit 123, Level A

VERTICAL BOUNDARIES ARE:

{1} The unitside surface and Mane of the concrate or masonry wall or columin and projections
therecf:

(2) The unfinished unitside surfaces of the exterior doors and door frames, window and

window frames and vnitside surfaces of all glass panels located therein (when the doors
and windows are in a closed posifion),

HORIZONTAL BOUNDARIES ARE:
(1) The upper surface of the concrete fioor siab and projections thereof;

{2}  Thelower surface of the concrete cailing stab and projections thereof,
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Building D

I heraby certify that the written description of the monuments and boundaries of the Units
contained harein accurately comresponds with the diagrams of the Units shown on Part 1,
Sheets 110 5 of the Description.

February 28,2008

Daled

) n.‘"
Land Survayar

Reference should be mads to Seclion 4 of the Destaration in order o determine whether
specific physical companents (such as wires, Pipes, cables, conduits, equipment, fixfures,
structural components and/or any ather appurtenances) are ingjuded orexcluded from the Unjt,
regardless of whether same are located within or beyond the boundarias astablished for such
Unit.
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SCHEDULE "D"

TO THE CONDOMINILM DECLARATION
Thamhill Clty Contra - Buifding D
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e ek ok ko

UM ithaiLhitrw g b b os AR AR BRA A WL L o W LG G MRNNMOMNMNMNMRONMNN

[ RN R Y

-t

Proportions of Gomman Interest
and Propartions of Contribution
to the Common Expenses as
axpressed In percentages

0.,39025
0.23a45
0.32082
0.40787
0.45585
0.28107
0.36870

0.24859
0.26953
0.47070
0.26575
0.39265
0.23045
0.32002
Q40797
0.48842
0.34715
0.46974
0.43181

(.34859
026958
0.47070
0.35184
047070
0.27293
0.20166
0.41037
R.48842
0.34715
0.46874
043191

0.34859
0.26959
D.4707C
035194
a.47070
0.27203
D.30165
0,41037
.48842
0.34715
R.45974
043191

0.34859
0.26958
047070
0.35194
0.47070
0.27293
0.30166
041037
048042
034715
0.46974
0.43191

0.34858
0.26558
D.47070
0.3%194
0.47070
0.27283
0.20166
041037
0.48842
0.34715
0.46974
43101

0.34859

Page 1
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SCHEDULE »pn
TG THE CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION
Thamhil Clty Cantra - Building D

Proportions of Common Interest
Unit Level and Proporiians of Contribution
to the Commeon Expenues as
expressed In percentages

APARTMENT 2 7 0.26958
APARTMENT } 7 0.47070
APARTMENT 4 7 0.35184
APARTMENT -1 7 047670
APARTMENT & 7 027293
APARTMENT 7 7 0.30165
APARTMEMNT 8 7 0.41037
APARTMENT 9 T 0.40842
APARTMENT 1q 7 0.34715
APARTMENT 11 7 0.46974
APARTMENT 12 7 043191
APARTMENT 1 4 D.34859
APARTMENT 2 q 0.26958
APARTMENT 3 8 847070
APARTMENT 4 a 0.35194
APARTMENT 5 8 0.4707¢
APARTMENT 6 a D.27293
APARTMENT 7 a 0.a0168
APARTMENT L] 8 041037
APARTMENT 9 a 0.48842
APARTMENT - 10 a D.34T1H
APARTMENT 11 4 0.46974
APARTMENT 12 L] 0.43191
APARTMENT 1 9 0.34859
APARTMENT 2 9 0.26958
APARTMENT k] 9 Q.a707T0
APARTMENT 4 9 0.35194
APARTMENT 5 g 0.47070
APARTMENT 6 2 0.27203
APARTMENT 7 9 0.30168
APARTMENT ] 9 Q.41037
APARTMENT g g 0 48842
APARTMENT G ] 0.34715
APARTMENT 11 9 0.46974
APARTMENT 12 9 243191
APARTMENT 1 10 0.34859
APARTMENT 2 10 0.26958
APARTMENT 3 10 .47070
APARTMENT 4 10 . B.35194
APARTMENT 5 10 0.47070
APARTMENT & 10 0.27293
APARTMENT 7 10 0.30165
APARTMENT -] 10 6.41037
APARTMENT g 10 0.48842
APARTMENT 10 i0 0.34715
APARTMENT 11 10 0.48874
APASRTMENT 12 10 0.43151
APARTMENT 1 11 0.34859
APARTMENT 2 1 0.26958
APARTMENT 3 11 047070
APARTMENT 4 ih| 035194
APARTMENT 5 b D.47070
APARTMENT & #H . D.27293
APARTMENT 7 11 0.30156
APARTMENT 8 1 41037
AFARTMENT -] 11 3.48842
APARTMENT 10 1 0.34718
APARTMENT 1 11 046974
APARTMENT 12 11 0.43191
APARTMENT 1 12 0.34859
APARTMENT 2 12 0.26958
APARTMENT 3 12 0.47070
APARTMENT 4 12 0.35184
APARTMENT 5 12 2.47070
APARTMENT 8 12 0.27293
APARTMENT 7 12 0.30168
APARTMENT ] 12 0.41037
APARTMENT g 12 0.48842
APARTMENT 10 12 1.34715



APARTMENT
APARTMENT

APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTHMENT

APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
" APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
~ APARTMENT

APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
AFPARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT

APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
ARARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT

APARTMENT
APARTMENT
- APARTMENT
APARTMENT
* APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMEMT
APARTMENT

APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT

Unit
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SCHEDULE "D

TO THE CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION
Thomhill Clty Cuntra - Building D

tevel

12
12

13
13
13
13
13
i3
K]
13
13
13
13
13

14

14
14
14
14
11
Td
14
14
14
14

15
15
15
15
15
15
19
18
15
15
15
1%

-]
16
18
15
16
18

16
16
16
16
16

17
17
17
17

-
I

17
17
17
17
w
17
17

18
18
18
18
18
18

Proportions of Common Intarest
and Proportions of Cantribution
to the Common Expansas as
expressed |n percentapes

0.60429
0.28448

0.34859
0.26858
0.a7070
0.35194
D.47070
0.27293
0.30166
0.41037
0.48842
034735
0.60429
0.29448

0.34859
0.26958
0.4rarg
0.35194
0.4707G
0.27293
06.30166
0.41037
0.48842
0.34715
0.604238
0.29448

0.24859
0.26958
047070
0.35194
0.47070
0.27293
0.331686
041037
0.48042
0.34715
0.50429
0.29448

0.3485%
0.28058
0.47070
0.35194
047070
0.27293
0.30166
041037
0.48842
0.34715
060429
0.28448

0.34559
0.26958
0.47070
0.35184
0.47070
027293
0.30166
0.41037
0.48842
024715
0.60429
0.284448

G.34859
0.26956
047070
0.35454
0.47070
0.27293

Page 3




APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT

APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT

APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT

APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT

APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT
APARTMENT

PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
FPARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKIRG
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING

Unit
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SCHEDULE “p-

TO THE CONDOMINIUY DECLARATION
Thomihiii City Cantrs - Building D

Levs]

18
18
i8
18

18

19
18
19
19
19
19

k]
20
20
20
20
0

21
n
21
21

22
22
2

b ]
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Proportions of Gommon Infensst
and Proportions of Contribution
10 the Cormmon Expensas 35
expresged In percentages

0.30188
0.41037
0.48842
0.34715
0.80429
0.28448

1.00557
g.arerz
G.95673
0.77189
G.42281
0.78913

1.00557
0.37972
0.98673
0.77189
0.42281
0.78913

0.87149
1.07692
a.79r17
a.7o9727

100557
0.94811
o.797rT
o.7am27

0.00953
0.00853
0.00953
0.00953
{.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00951
0.00053
0.0G953
0.00853
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.005953
Q.00953
0.00853
0,005853
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
(.00853
0.00953
0.00953
0.00863
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
- 0.00953
1.00953
0.00953
0.00853
0.00a53
0.00953
0008953
0.00553
0.00953
0.00953
0,00853
0.00953
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PARKING
-PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
FARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LQCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER

a0

Page §
BCHEQULE “p"
TC THE CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION
Thnrahill Clty Cantre - Bullding D

Propertions of Common interest
Unit Level and Praportions of Contribution
1@ the Common Expenses zs
expresged in percentiges

44 A 0.00953
45 A 0.00953
48 A 0.00953
47 A 0.00953
48 A 0.00853
a9 A 0.G0953
50 A 0.00953
51 A 0:00953
52 A 0.00953
53 A 0.00853
54 A 0.00953
55 A 0.00953
56 A 0.00953
57 A 0.90953
58 A 0.00953
59 A 0.00953
60 A 0.00953
61 A 0.00953
82 A 0.00953
62 A 0.00953
B4 A 0.00853
&5 A €.00953
i ] A 000953
§7 A 0,00853
68 A 0.04953
69 A 0.00853
70 A 0.00953
ba! A 0.00953
s A 0.00953
73 A 0.00853
4 A 0.00353
75 A 0.00953
78 A 000953
7 A 0.00953
78 A 0.00953
I:] A 0.00953
B0 A 0.00953
81 A 0.00953
az A 0.00953
83 A 0.00953
84 A 0.00953
85 A 000853
s A 0.00508
ar A 0.00508
88 A 0.00508
89 A 0.80508
h] A 0.00508
01 A 0.00508
92 A 0.00508
93 A 0.00508
94 A 0.00508
a5 A 0.00508
23] A 0.00508
a7 A 000508
88 A 0.0050¢
99 A 0.00508
100 A 0.00508
a1 A 0.00508
102 A 0.00508
103 A 0.00308
104 A 0.00508
105 A 0.00508
106 A 0.00508
107 A 0.00508
108 A 0.00508
10e A 0.00508
110 A 0,00508
111 A 0.00508
112 A 0.00508
13 A 0.00508
114 A 0.00508
115 A 0.00508
116 A 0.00503
117 A 0.00s08




LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
COMMURICATION
LOCKER

PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
FARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
FARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
FARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING

Unit

+a
118
120
121

122
123
124
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SCHEDULE "D"

TO THE CONDOMINIUN DECLARATION
Thornhiil Glty Centre - Buijlding D

Laval

PrPprIEn

mmmmmmmrﬂmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmwmmmmmmmmwwwmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmcummcamu:mmcn

Proportiona of Common Interest
and Praportions aof Centributicn
to the Common Expenses as
expressed in percentages

0.00508
0.00568
0.0050H
Q00508
080508
0.00139
0.01270

0.00953
0.00953
0.00853
0.00353
0.00953
0.00953
0.009353
0.00953
n.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00053
0.00853
0.00853
0.00953
0.00953
0.00853
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.06253
0.00953
0.00953
0.0095)
0.00953
0.00953
0.00853
600953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00653
0.00953
0.0095%
0.00853
0.06853
0.00052
0.00353
0.00853
0.00953
0.00953
0.00853
0.00053
0.00953
0.00853
0.00853
0.00853
D.00953
0.00353
0.00853
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953 -
0.00953
0.00953
0.009523
0,00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00853
0.00553
0.00953
000953
0.00as53
0.00r53
0.03953
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PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOGKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOGKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOGKER
LOGKER
LOGKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER

A2

Page 7
SCHEDULE "D~
TO THE CONDOMNIUM DECLARATION
Thormhill City Cenfre - Bullding 0

Proportions of Gomman Interest
Uit Lavea| and Proportions of Contribution
o the Commeon Expenees g5
expressed In percentages

&7 8 0.00953
68 a 0.00953
89 B 0.00853
70 i} 000953
kil B 0.00953
72 B 0.00353
73 B 0.00953
74 8 0.00953
75 B 0.00953
75 a 0.00953
n a8 0.00953
78 B 0.00953
79 B 0.00953
a0 B 0.00952
81 a 0.00953
82 3} 0.00953
83 8 0.00953
B4 B 0.00953
a5 B 0.00953
ag B 0.00508
87 B 0.00508
.13 B 0.00508
B9 8 0.00508
90 B 0.00508
a1 B 0.00508
a B 0.00508
93 B a.00598
54 B 0.003508
95 B 0.00508
98 1 4.00508
a7 B 0.00508
98 8 0.00508
99 B 0.00508
100 B 0.00508
30t B 0.00508
102 B 0.00508
103 B 000508
104 B 0.00508
105 B 0.00508
105 B 0.00508
07 B 0.00508
108 B 0.00508
109 B 0.00508
110 ] 0.00508
itt B 0.00508
112 | 0.00508
113 B 0.00s08
114 B 0.00508
115 a8 0.00508
116 a 0.00508
117 B 0.00508
118 a 0.00508
119 - B 0,00508
120 B 0.00508
121 B 0.00508
122 B 0.00508
123 B 0.00508
124 B 1.00508
125 a 0.00508
126 B 0.00508
127 8 0.0508
128 -} 0.00508
17% B 0.00508
130 B 0.00508
131 8 ~ 0.00508
132 B 0.00508
133 B 0.00548
134 B 0.00508
i35 B 0.00508
138 8 0.00508
137 B 0.09508
138 B 0.00508
135 B 0.00508
140 B 0.00508




LOGKER
LOCKER,
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER

PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING

PARKING

PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
FPARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
FARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING

Unit

141
142
143
1d4
145
146
147

149

L NSO s LN

SCHEDULE "

TO THE CONDOMINI DECLARATION
Thornhill City Centra - Bulkding D

Level

TrRrODEO@TE@

nononnnonnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnnoononnnc:nnnnnoonoonnnonnnnnnoononc)

Proporllens of Common Interesi
and Praportions of Contribution
to tha Cammon Expenses as
expressed in percantages

0.068508
D.00508
D.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.01270

0.00953
0.008953
0.00853
0.00853
0.00953
0.00853
Q.00853
0.00853
0.00953
0.00953
0.00553
@.00943
0.00952
D.00553
4.00953
0.00853
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00952
0.00963
0.00953
5.005953
0.00833
0.00953
0.00853
0.00553
0.00g53
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00853
0.00953
0.051953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00853
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
b.O0953
0.06553
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.01525
0.01825
0.00953
0.00853
0.0a955
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
000253
0.00953
0.00953

Page &
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PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARIGNG
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
FARKING
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LGCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LGCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER
LOCKER

PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
PARKING
BARKING
PARKING
PARHING

Tokal

tnit

114
18
118
177
118
119
129
121
122

Lol =R - O X

TO THE CONDOMINIUM DECLARATION
Thoambill Clty Contra - Bulkding D

Level

oonooooDo nonnnnnnnnnonnnoonnnnnonnnoooonnn0nnnnnonnnlonnoononnﬂononnn

SCHEDULE p#

Proportione of Common Interest
and Proportions of Conlribulion
to the Common Expenses as
enpressed ln percentages

0.00053
0.00853
0.00853
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0,00853
0.00853
0.00953
0.00953
0.00853
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.06508
0.00508
4.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.09508
0.05508
0.00508
000506
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
£.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
€.08508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
@.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0.00508
0,00508
000508
©.00508
0.00508
0.01016
0.01270

0.00953
0.00353
0.00953
0.00953
0.00953
0.00853
0.00953
0.00853
0.00353

100.G0000

Page §
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SCHEDULE “E" 1O THE DECLARATION OF
1668633 ONTARIO INC.

COMMON EXPENSES

and Gost Shanng Agresment, and any oltier agreament or nstrument tmpasing obligations on the
Corporation and the by-laws or Rules of the Corporatian.

All sums of money payable by the Corporation for the qbtaining and maintenance of any insurance
Coverage required or permitted by the Act or the Declaration,

All sums of monay payable kor utilities and services serving the Unils (if seme are not separatal

metered for_such Units) or common elements ncluding, without limiting the genemlily of the
foregeing, monies payable on account ok

)} gas and elecinicily;
(M hydro and fuel:

(i) water;
{iv} waste and garbage disposal:
v} maintenance matsrals, lools and supplias; and

{vir off-site snow remaval (Al purchasers of a Unll{s) are advised that the Gily of Va:_.lgpan

save and provided that:

0 The cost of the maintenance, operation, repairs, replacement and inspection of the Shared
Servicing Systems, the Specilic Servicing Easements, the Exterior Landscaped Areas and
Faciiities, the Common Intariar Roadway, the Outdaor Pedestran Walkway, the 2 Storey
Comman Area and Residential Unit 8 Leve{ 1 (sollectively, the *Shared Faciltties") and the
Garage shall be shared as further stated below. .

{n The cost of the Corporation's PropoRionate or allocated share of the operation, maintenance,
repair, replacement and Inspection of certain Shared Facilities and the Garage 1= set forth
and described in the Easernent and Cast Sharing Agreement, and fhe Corporalion shail be
responsible for paying its Propartionate Share thereof, It bemng undersiood that such
allocations or responsibiliies may be further adjusted, qualified or amendad pursuant lo any
pravisions of the Easement and Cost Sharing Agreement in which avent the readjustment
ar qualified or amended adjustmonts shatl prevail, |tis understood that the Easement and

Pravided that all charges m respect of cable tatevision, televizion, talephane andintermet sensice shall
be bome by the Cwners directly and shall not form part of the comman expenses, -

All sums of money required by the Corporation for the acquisition or relention of real property for the
use and enjaymen! of the property, ar for the acquisition, repair, maintenance ar replacement of
personal property for the use and enjoyment of the comman elemants, save as in respect to any
common slement areas of the Comparation which constilute part of the Shared Facilities which shall
be shated hetween the Corporations as further stated hersin,

All sums of money pard or payable by the Corporation for legal, engineering, accounting, auditing,
expert appraising, maintenance, managerial and sacrelanal advics and professional advica services
required by the Corparation in the performance of its objects, dutles and pawers.

All sums of maney paid or payable by the Carporation to any and ail persans, firms or companies
engaged or retained by i, or by its duly authorized agents, servants and employees for the purpase
of perfarming any or al| of the duties of the Corporation,

All sums of money assessed by the Corporation for the reserve fund to be paid by every Owner as
part of their contribution towards common expenses, forthe major repair and replacement of comman
elements and assats of the Corporation, i accordance with the Act and this Dectaration,

All sums of money paid by the Corporation for any cleaning, repair, addition, alteratior, improvement
to or renavation of the cammon elsments or assets of tha Corporation.

All sums of money payable on accaount of realty faxes {including logal improvement charges) levied
agamst the property untit sugh ime ag such taxes are levied against the indlvidual Units.

25




(k}

)

2b

All expenisas incurred by the Cormporatian in enforcing any of the by-laws or Rutes of the Corparation

TTom time to time, and effecting compliance therewith by all Unit Cwners and their respective tenants,
Hieensees, residents or nviteag

All 3uUms of mona

Y payable on accoynt of the Residential Unit 8 Level 1 and the first Mmortgage in
relation ta same.

We'Pratecis-bepiThomshit Gity - 0 - NAICando Does . RegistrationdotT; . Aegistraion. wpy



02-431-05
Building D

SCHEDULE "p"

EXCLUSIVE USE OF PORTIONS OF THE COMMON ELE ENTS
sEeemeneen LT TURTIONS OF THE COMMON ELEMENTS

Subject to the provisions of the Declaration, tha By-laws and Ruigs of the Corporation and (he
right of entry in favour of the Corporation thereta and thereon. for the purposes of facilitating any
requisite maintenance andfor repair work, or to give access to the ulilify and services areas
appurtenant thergig:

1.

The owners of ceftain residentlal dwelling units shall have the exclusive use, subject to
the provisions of this Declaration, the By-laws of the Corporation and the Rules passed
pursuant therato of any baicony and terrace io which such unit provides sole and direct
access,

The owners of the grourd floor Residential Units 1 1o 7. Level 1 shall have the exclusive
use, subject to the provisions of this Declaration, the By-laws of the Corporation and the
Rules passed pursuant thereto, of a Patlo which ig designated by being numbered the
same number as the number of sach Unit, with the jetter "* preceding each such
number as Hustrated on Part 2, Shaef 1 of the Descripfion.

EY



SCHEDULE "G~
1666633 Ontario Inc.
T North Park Road, Thamhifl, Ontario
CERTIFICATE OF ENGINEER
{under clause 8 {1) (e} or (h) of the Condominmum Act, 1998)
| cenify that:
[Sirike out whichever 1 not applicable:
Eacit building on lhe properly
{In the case of an amendment to the declaration creating ? F}:u'ua.swe:
Each building on the land induded m the phase)]

has Saen constructed in accordanca with (he reguialicns made undar the Condommnitin Acl, 1968, with respect to the
followrng matters:

{Chach whithevar boxes arg applicabla}

1 fal T iy bailebirccianial Jeetie

S i g_y-m--ﬁl"3 Byrexoncrnal-sleddingrdassc-ondwinds ._
and saalanls, i weather resistant if required by the canslruclion decuments and has beeh complstedi
confermily with the construction docurments.

2. o Exceptas atharwise specified m the Tegufations, floor assamblies are constructed o

3. 0 Exceptas othemwise specified in the regulations, walls and ceilings afthes
structural walls and columns in a unll, are campleted to the dnywglldl
other final covenng.

mon elemenls, axclading wlenor
uding taping Bnd sanding), plaster or
4, 0 Allunderground garages have watls and foor ass

O There are no underground garages

5. 0 Allelevaling devices asg g
excapt for elsvaljpg

ned In the: Elevating Devicas Act are licensed under thatAct if it requites a ficence,
Uevices contained wholly in a unit and designed for use only within the: unit,

OR
AT no alevaling devices as defined inthe Elevating Davices Act, except for elevating devices contaied

6 b All lnstadalions with respact to the provision of water and 8Ewage sermces re m place,

7 b7 Allinstallations wilh respect o the provision of heal and verilation are \n place and heat and venlitalion can
be pravided,

8. 7 Al instaliations with respact to the provision of air conditioning ara in place.
OR
0 Fhereore-nonsedotionswith-reapectio-the Pravision-of-amr-coandifeniog.

9. 5 Alnsisltations with respect o the peovision of elecincily are in placs.

10. & Alwerm-prrd-uteomr-swmomog

GeipMGr-and tes, or
@ There are no indoor and outdoor swimming poals.

1. a T ' T
Dated thishOvn_day of _wpuem oo~ , 20071

L f

~Fgate

'S-LQ_UM LIkHe r P, E—q -
{pnnt name]
Engineer
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Schedole "G

Ceriiflente of Architest or Engtnecr
1666033 Omara Ine,
7 Narth Park Road, Tharadiitl, Omtara,

We ceniify that:

Each building oo the Property has been constructed ig secordanee with the repulmions made under (he Condomtmuun Act, 1998, with,
respect to the following marers:

(Check whichever bpyes are applicablef

1, ] Ther exterar building envelope, ncluding roafing bly, tar wull cladding, doors and windaws,
cavlking ond sealants, is weather fesistant if required by the construction documents mad hos been
completzd In generat conformity with the construction ducuments,

2. & Except as otherwise specified i the reguimtions, Moer assemblies noe constructed 1o the subiiboor

3. | Exeept us othenwise specified 1 the regulancns, walls gnd ceilings of the commeon elemets, excluding
ierior structural walls and COIMAS i 2 wnel, dre cemplete 1o the drywall {including lapung and sanding;,
plaster or other finai coverng,

4. 1] All undergmund garages hove walls nd floor assemblics in place.
R
] There arc no undergroond garages,
5. | All tlovating devices ac defined In the Elevanng Devices Aet are licensed under that Aet if i requires i
Heence, except for elevating devices contancd whally in & unit and designed for use aniy within (he uni.
OR
0 There are no elevating devices ar defined in the Elevating Devices dct, except for clevating devices
contained whally in a unit and designed far wse oaly within e waiL
4. 0 All installatinns with respect  the Provision of water and sewage services are in place ang operable,
7 ] Adl installagans with respect to the provision aff hegt and ventilation are 1n place and heat and ventilation
can be provided. i
3. 0 All installcions with respect to thy prevision of air condinoning are in placz.
OR
O Thrers are no installations with respect 1o the provision of air conditianng.
5 a Allinstalliions with respect to the brovision of dectricity are 1n ploce.
10. ] Adl indoor and ourdoar Swimming pools :m.-. roughed in to the extent thar they e ready o receive
finishes, equipment and necessones.
OR
el There are no indoer and outdeor sWimming poals,
I ] Excepl as atherwise specified in the reguihans, the boundaries o the units are completed 10 the dtywall
(not inctuding Ingng and sanding}, plaster or other final covermg, und perimeter daors h.re_in plnue._
Dec. 03, 2007

Dated as of (dave of signasure)
PAGE+STE INCORFORATED - ARC HITECTS

a.:;m Scl Wassarmuid. Q4
e Prasigent

I have autharily ta bind the Corporatian.

PMAclive Projecis\2464 Bathurst and Centre - Uaughan\SlalstogAdmm\Closmm\amedue G CumRegsuaﬁomArchitech&c




Vista of Thornhill City Centre

YORK REGIONAL STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

BY-LAW NO. 4

Vista of Thornhill City Centre - 7 North Park Road, Thornhill Ontario L4] 0C9
Telephone: (905)-597-0953 Fax: (905)-597-0947
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CERTIFICATE IN RESPECT OF A BY-LAW
{Under subsection 56(9) of the Condominium Act, 1998)

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112 (known as
the "Corporation") certifies that:

1. The Copy of By-law No. 4, attached as Schedule "A", is a true copy of the By-law.
2 The By-law was made in accordance with the Condominium Act, 1998.

3. The owners of a majority of the units of the Corporation have voted in favour of
confirming the By-law.

DATED this 14" day of May, 2012.

YORK REGION STANDARD
CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION
NO.1112

Name : SAM GROSSMAN
Title: PRESIDENT

Per:
Napie: JOCELYN ESTRIEN
Title: SECRETARY

I/We have the authority (o bind the corporation
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BY-LAWNO., 4

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

ARTICLE1 -
ARTICLE 2 -

ARTICLE 3 -
31
32
33

ARTICLE 4 -
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BY-LAW NO. 4
YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

BE IT ENACTED as a By-law of York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112
(the "Corporation") as follows:

By-law Nos. 1, 2 and 3 of York Region Condominjum Corporation No. 1112 are hereby
repealed. '

The terms used herein shall have ascribed to them the definitions contained in the Condominjum

Act, 1998 as amended, and the regulations made thereunder (the "Act") and in the declaration of
the Corporation (the "declaration™).

ARTICLE 1 - SEAL
The seal of the Corporation shall be in the form impressed in the margin beside this paragraph.

ARTICLE 2 - YEAR -END

The financial year-end of the Corporation shall be the 31st day of October in each year or such
other date as the board of directors (the "Board") may by resolution determine.

ARTICLE 3 - RECORDS OF THE CORPORATION
The Corporation shall maintain the following records:
3.1  Documents As Required By Section 43(4)
(a)  the seal of the Corporation;
{b)  the minute book for the Corporation including a copy of the registered declaration
and description, registered by-laws, current rules and minutes of owners' meetings -

and board meetings;

(© copies of any resolution of the Board changing the address for service or mailing
address of the Corporation;

(d)  copies of all agreements entered into by the Corporation, or the declarant or the
declarant's representatives on behalf of the Corporation, including management
contracts, deeds, leases, licences and easements;

{&)  copies of all policies of insurance and the related certificates or memoranda of
insurance and all insurance trust agreements;

6] bills of sale or transfers for all items that are assets of the"Corporatibn but not part
of the property; S

(g)  the records maintained under subsection 47 (2) and subsection 83 (3); the names
~ and addresses for service of owners and mortgagees who have provided the
Corporation in writing with this information;

(h})  copies of all notices sent on behalf of the Corporation;

@ copies of all requests for Status Certificates and copies of each certificate issued for
the preceding ten (10) fiscal years;

)] as required by the Condominium Act, 1998 (the "Act"):
(i)  notice delivered by an owner that his/her unit is leased;

(i)  the lessee's name, the owner's address and a copy of the lease or renewal
or summary of it; and

(iii)  notice by an owner that a lease of a unit is terminated and not rencwed;



(k)

2.

all records that it has related to the units or to employces of the Corporation.

3.2  Documents As Required By Section 43(5)

(a)

)

©

(@

©

ey

®

the existing warranties and guarantees for all the equipment, fixtures and chattels
included in the sale of either the units or common ¢lements that are not protected
by warranties and guarantees given ditectly to a unit purchaser;

the as-built architectural, structural, engineering, mechanical, electrical and
plumbing plans;

the as-built specifications, indicating all substantive changes, if any, from the
original specifications; :

all existing plans for underground site services, site grading, drainage and
landscaping, and television, radio or other communications services;

all other existing plans and information not mentioned in clause (b), (c) or (d) that
are relevant to the repair or maintenance of the property;

a table setting out the responsibilitics for repair after damage and maintenance and
indicating whether the Corporation or the owners are responsible; and

all reserve fand studies that have been completed or are required to have been
completed.

33 Other Records

(@
®
©

(d)

(&)
®
(8

G

@

@
(k)

all plans to increase the reserve fund under subsection 94 (8) of the Act;
a copy of all agreements entered into by or on behalf of the Corporation;

any report that the Corporation receives from an Inspector in accordance with
subsection 130 (5) of the Act;

a copy of any resolution of the Board changing the address for service or the
mailing address of the Corporation as registered;

a copy of all notices sent on behalf of the Corporation;
a copy of all easements, licenses, or leases entered into by the Corporation;

the names of directors and officers, their mailing address and respective terms of
office;

a copy of all annual notices of assossment and any extraordinary assessments;

a copy of all consents for alterations to units and/or the common elements in
accordance with the declaration and any by-law of the Corporation including any
agreement entered into with an owner under 5.98 of the Act;

proxies for meetings 1o be retained for ninety (90) days; and

any other information required to be maintained as records by the Act and the
regulations made thereunder.

ARTICLE 4 - DUTIES OF THE CORPORATION

4.1 Duties Of The Corporation

The Duties of the Cofporation shall include, but shall not be limited to the following:

(a)

the operation, care, upkeep, maintenance and repair of the common elements and
the repair of units when an owner fails to repair as provided for in the Act and in
the declaration;



(b)
(©)

(@

(e)
®
(e)
(h)
6y
G)

(k)

M

(m)
(m)

(0)
®

(@

{s)

®

“3-

the collection of contributions toward common expenses from the owners;

the arranging for the supply of utilities to the common elements and the units,
unless separately metered, except where prevented from carrying out such duty by
reason of any cvent beyond the reasonable control of the Corporation. The
Corporation shall not be liable for indirect or consequential damage or for darnages
for personal discomfort or illness by reason of the breach of such duty;

-obtaining and maintaining insurance for the property as may be required by the

Act, declaration or by-laws; -
the preparation of certificates of lien and status certificates as required by the Act;
the preparation of an estimated budget in accordance with Article 1 1.1(b) hereof;

the supervision of all public or private service companies which, at the request of
the Corporation, enter upon the common clements and into the units for the
purposc of supplying, installing, replacing and servicing their systems;

the employment and dismissal of personnel necessary for the maintenance and
operation of the common elements;

the obtaining and maintaining of fidelity bonds for any person dealing with
Corporation monies and in such amounts as the Board may deem reasonable;

the investment of monies held by the Corporation in accordance with the Act;

the settling, adjusting or referting to mediation and/or arbitration of any claim or
claims which may be made upon or which may be asserted on behalf of the
Corporation;

the purchase and maintenance of insurance for the benefit of all directors and
officers (with an extended discovery petiod clause in the case of change of insurers
to ensure that directors’ actions are protected when the Corporation changes
insurers) in respect of anything done, or required to be done or permitted to be
done by them in respect of the exccution of the duties of their offices except
insurance apainst a liability, cost, charge or expense of such directors or officers
incurred as a result of a contravention of any of the duties imposed upon them
pursuant to the Act;

the preparation and/or maintenance of the records to be kept by the Corporation in
accordance with Article 3 hercof;

causing audits to be made afier every year end and providing financial statements
to the owners in accordance with the Act; '

the calling and holding of meetings and the delivery of netices, as required;

the consistent and timely enforcement of the provisions of the Act, the declaration,
the by-laws and the rules of the Corporation; ‘

the entering into an insurance trust agreement to ensure the disposition of monies
in the event of an insurable loss where the damage to the property exceeds fifteen
per cent (15%) of the replacement cost of the property covered by the Corporation's
policy maintained in accordance with the Act;

establishing and maintaining adequate reserve funds for the major repair or
replacement of the common elements and of the assets of the Corporation in
accordance with the Act;

appointing members of the Board as representatives to the Shared Facilities
Committee and enacting a resolution as to the powers and duties of those
representatives; and

the carrying out of the duties of the Corporation and or the Board as required by the
Act, the Corporation's declaration and by-laws. '
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ARTICLE 5 - POWERS OF THE CORPORATION

51  Powers Of The Corporation

The powers of the Corporation shall include, but shall not be limited to the following:

(a)

(b)

(c)

@

(c)

03]

(@

(h)

@

the entering into of an agreement with a person or Corporatién to provide
professional management for the property. The management agreement shall be in
a form acceptable to the Board;

the authority to make a complaint under Section 40 of the Assessment Act, or any
successor thereof, on behalf of each and every owner;

the mediation and/or arbitration of those matters set out in the Act or any contract
or agreement to which the Corporation is a party;

the borrowing of such armounts for any fiscal year that the Board in its discretion
decides are necessary that the Corporation borrow up 10 one-twelfth (1/12) of the
annual budgeted common expenses for the current fiscal year, and 10 include such
amounts in the budget for the Corporation, provided that the total cumulative
borrowing at any one time does not exceed one-twelfth (1/12) of the annual
budgeted common expenses for the current fiscal year; '

any borrowing in excess of the amount set out in (d), even if included in the
Corporation's budget, must be approved by a vote of owners at ameeting called for
that purpose;

the borrowing of such amounts in any fiscal year (not included in the budget of the
Corporation) as the Board determines is necessary or desirable in order to protect,
maintain, preserve or ensure the due and continued operation of the property in
accordance with the Act, declaration and by-laws of the Corporation and the
securing of any loan of any amount by mortgage, pledge or charge of any asset
(other than the reserve fund) of the Corporation, subject in each case to approval as
required by the Act;

to charge, mortgage, hypothecate or pledge all or any of the real or personal
property of the Corporation, including book debts and rights, powers and
undertakings, to secure any such securities or any money borrowed, or other debts,
or any obligation or liability of the Corporation; '

conducting, periodically, a building and/or operations audit as deemed appropriate
by the Board; .

enfering into or amending any agreement with another corporation with respect to
shared services or facilities; and . o

the delegating to such one or more of the officers and/or directors of the
Corporation as may be designated by the directors all or any of the powers
conferred by the foregoing clauses of paragraph 5.1 of this by-law to such extent
and in such manner as the directors shall determine at the time of such delegation.

ARTICLE 6 - NOTICE

6.1  Notice to Owner/Morigagee

Subject always to any specific provision to the contrary in the Act, any notice, communication or
other document, including budgets and notices of assessment required 1o be given or delivered
by the Corporation to any owner or mortgagee shall be sufliciently given if:

@
)

delivered personally to the person to whom it is to be given; or

sent by prepaid ordinary mail addressed to the person at the address shown on the
records of the Corporation; or
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(c) sent by facsimile transmission, electronic mail or any other method of electronic
communication; or

(d) delivered at the person's unit or at the mail box for the unit, unless the person
giving the notice has been advised in writing by the person that delivery is not to be
effected in this manner or the address for service on the records of the Corporation
is not the address of the unit of the person;

6.2  Notice to Owner and Morigagee

The Corporation shall not be obliged to give notice to any owner who has not notified the
Corporation that he/she has become an owner or to any mortgagee who has not notified the
Corporation that he/she has become a mortgagee.

6.3  Notice To The Board Or Corporation

Except as otherwise provided in the Act or as herein before set forth, any notice, direction or
other instrument required or desired to be given, shall be given to the Corporation, by giving
same to any director or officer of the Corporation, either personally or by ordinary mail, postage
prepaid, addressed to the Corporation af its address for service.

6.4  Receipt of Notice
Any notice, communication or document shall be deemed to have been received:

(a) when it is delivered personally or delivered to the latest address shown on the
records of the Corporation; or

® when the recipient accepts by fax, if it is sent by means of facsimile transmission;
or

(c)  when sent by electronic mail or any other method of electronic communication and
the recipient has agreed to this method of communication; or

(d)  the date of delivery receipt if sent by an appropriate communication cofipany,
courier ot agency. :

6.5 Omissions And Errors

The accidental omission to give any notice to anyone entitled thereto or the non-receipt of such
notice or any error in any notice not affecting the substance thereof shali not invalidate any
action taken at any meeting held pursuant to such notice or otherwise founded thereon.

6.6  Notices Of Meetings

At least fifteen (15) days' written notice of each meeting of the owners of the Corporation
specifying the place, the date and the hour thereof and the nature of the business to be presented
shall be given to each owner and to each mortgagee or chargee, whose name and address for
service is listed on the records of the Corporation, twenty (20) days before the date of the
meeting and who is therefore entitled to vote in accordance with the Act.

ARTICLE 7 - BOARD OF DIRECTORS
7.1 Duties
(a) the affairs of the Corporation shall be managed by the Board; and

(b)  the Board shall have the obligation to perform all of the duties of the Corporation;
however, the Board may delegate certain specific duties to the manager by a duly
enacted resolution of the Board and pursuant to the terms of any management
agrecment.

7.2  Number and Quorum

The number of directors shall be five (5) of whom three (3) shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business at any meeting of the Board. Notwithstanding vacancies, the remaining
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directors may exercise all the powers of the Board so long as a quorum of the Board remains in

office.

73 Qualifications

No person shall be nominated, elected or appointed to the Board unless he/she meets the
following criteria:

@

(b)

{©)

(d)

(e)
6
(&)

the person must be eighteen (18) years of ape or older;

the person shall be a permanent resident and owner of a unit, or the spouse, parent,
son or daughter of the owner of the unit provided the person resides in the unit and
meets all other criteria of this section 7.3;

the person shall be capable of managing property within the meaning of the
Substituie Decisions Act, 1992;

the person shall not have a lien for common expenses registered against his/her
unit;

only one (1) person per unit can be a member of the Board;
the person shall not be an employee of the Corporation;
a person who is nominated, elected or appointed a director is not a director unless:

(i}  he/she was present at the meeting when he/she was elected or appointed
and did not refuse at the meeting to act as a director; or

(1) when he/she was not present at the meeting when he/she was elected or
_ appointed, he/she consented in writing to act as a director before his/her
election or appointment or within ten (10) days thereafter.

7.4  Disqualification

A person immediately ceases to be a director if:

(2)

(b)

(¢}

(d)

(e}
®

a person immediately ceases to be a director if the person is incapable of managing
property within the meaning of the Substitute Decisions Act, 1992;

a certificate of lien has been registered against a unit owned by the director and the
director does not obtain a discharge of the lien within pincty (90) days of the
registration of the lien;

the director misses three (3) consecutive board meetings or a total of five (5)
meetings in any year commencing at the date of the Annual General Meeting and is
unable to provide an explanation for his or her absence. that is satisfactory to the
Board, acting reasonable. The foregoing also applies to any director who is also the
Corporation’s representative with respect to the Shared Facilities Committee and in
relation to meetings of that Committee;

the director breaches the Board Members’ Code of Ethics, as approved by
resolution of the Board from time to time;

the director breaches the confidentiality provisions in 7.9; or

the director no longer meets the qualifications in Article 7.3(b) and (e).

7.5  Litigation, Mediation and/or Arbitration

Where the director or a member of the director’s household or family is a party to litigation,
mediation and/or arbitration against the Corporation:

(@)

the director shall not be present for any portion of meeting where the Jitigation,
mediation and/or arbitration is discussed and shall not participate in any decision
with respect thereto; and

{o
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scparate minutes shall be kept for the portion of the meeting where the issues of
litigation, mediation and/or arbitration are discussed. These minutes shall not be
available to those persons set out in clause 7.5¢a).

7.6 Election And Term

Subject to the Act,

(a)

(b)

©
@

(©)

®

the directors of the Corporation shall be elected in rotation and shall be cligible for
re-election. Those directors who have been elected to office and whose terms have
not expired at the meeting, at which the owners approve this By-law, will complete
the terms for which they have been elected;

at cach annual meeting a ‘number of directors equal to the number of directors
retiring at the end of their terms in such year shall be elected for a term of three (3)
years; -

the term of office for members of the Board shall be three (3) years;

where the Board is clected by acclamation, the directors at their first ineeting shall
determine the distribution of terms. Directors may be removed before the
expiration of their term in accordance with the procedure set forth in the Act;

clection to the Board shall be by written ballot, unless the election is by
acclamation; and

the person receiving the highest number of votes will serve the longest term and the

person receiving the next greatest number of votes will serve the next longest term,
elc.

7.7  Calling Of Meetings

(2)

(b)

(c)

meetings of the Board shall be held from time to time at such places and at such
times and on such days as either the President or a Vice-President who is a director,
or any two directors may determine, and the Secretary shall call meetings when
directly authorized by the President or by the Vice-President who is a director
and/or any other director, Notice of any meeting shall be given personally, by
ordinary prepaid mail, electronic communication, courier, facsimile or telephone to
each director not less than forty-cight (48) hours (excluding any part of a Sunday or
of a holiday as defined by the Interpretation Act of Canada and any amendments
thereto) before the time when the meeting is to be held, save that no notice of a
meeting shall be necessary if all the directors are present or if those absent waive
notice of or otherwise signify in writing their consent to the holding of suc

meeting; ‘ L

the Board may appoint a day or days in any month or months for regular meetings
at a place and hour to be named. A copy of the resolution of the Board fixing a
place and time of regular meetings of the Board shall be sent to each director
forthwith by ordinary prepaid post after being passed, but no other notice shall be
required for any such regular meeting; and

a meeting of the directors may be held or convened by way of teleconference or
other form of communication system that allows all of the directors to participate
concurrently and io communicate with each other simultaneously and
instantaneously, provided that all of the directors participating in the meeting held
or convened by such means have consented thetreto, and a director so participating
in any such mecting held or convened by such means shall be deemed (for the
purposes of the Act and this by-law) to be present at such meeting.

7.8 Declaration Of Interest

(@)

the provisions in the Act relating to the declaration of interest of any director in any
contract or arrangement entered into by or on behalf of the Corporation shall be
followed and complied with; and

it
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(b)  in addition, the Board shall, prior to voting on any contract in which a director is
interested, obtain at least two (2) other independent bids from other contractors to
supply or provide the same supplies or services to the Corporation,

7.9  Confidentiality

All matters discussed at a Board meeting, including all documents and information, are not
privileged and confidential, unless specified as such by a board resolution and documented in the
minutes accordingly.

7.10  Conflict of Interest

Any information gained, including but not limited to any information respecting units, unit
owners, tenants or residents, as a result of a director's position on the Board, may not be used for
personal benefit, whether monetary or otherwise. Any director has an obligation to disclose an
interest in accordance with and subject to section 40 of the Act, as amended, and section 41 of
the Act, as amended, in the case of officers.

7.11  Protection Of Directors And Officers
No director or officer of the Corporation shall be liable for:
(a) the acts, neglect or default of any other director or officer;

()  any loss or expense incurred by the Corporation through the insufficiency or
deficiency of title to any property acquired by order of the Board for or on behalf
of the Corporation;

(c) the insufficiency or deficiency of any certificate or instrument in or upon which
any of the monies of the Corporation shall be invested, provided always that the
investment certificate or instrument conforms with the provisions of the Act;

(d)  any loss or damage arising from the bankruptcy, insolvency or tortious act of any
person with whom any of the monies, certificates, term deposits, instruments or
effects of the Corporation shail be deposited;

{e) any loss occasioned by an error of judgment or oversight on his’her Vpart provided
the board member has acted in accordance with his/her obligations and dutics
pursuant to the Act; or

()] any other loss, damage or misfortune whatsoever which shall happen in the
execution of the duties of his/her office or in relation thereto;

uniess the same shall happen through his/her own dishonest or fraudulent act or acts, bad faith,
failure to meet the standard of care established in the Act or wilful misconduct.

7.12 Indemnity Of Directors And Officers

Every director or officer of the Corporation and his/her heirs, executors, successors and assigns,
respectively, shall from time to time and at all times be indemnified and saved harmless out of
the funds of the Corporation from and against: o

{a)  all costs, charges and expenses whatsoever, which such director or officer sustains
or incurs in or about any action, suit or proceeding which is brought, commenced
or prosecuted against him/her for or in respect of any act, deed, matter or thing
whatsoever made, done or permitted by him or her in or about the execution of the
duties of his/her office; and

(b)  ali other costs, charges and expenses which he/she properly sustains or incurs in or
about or in relation to the affairs of the Corporation. '

{¢)  Notwithstanding, the above, no director or officer shall be indemnified by the
Corporation in respect of any lability, costs, charges or expenses that the person
sustains or incurs in our about an action, suit or other proceeding as a result of
which the director or officer is adjudged to be in breach of the duty to act honestly
and in good faith. If a director or officer is adjudged to be in breach of the duty to

L2~
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act honestly and in good faith, any costs incurred by the Corporation, including but
not limited to all legal costs and disbursements, in the matter will be recoverable
from the director or officer and wiil be added to the common expenses payable for
the board member or officer’s unit and will be recoverable in the same manner as
COmmon expenses. :

7.13 Minutes

While the Corporation may produce, circulate and/or maintain minutes of any meeting that
contain a more detailed narrative description of the proceedings at any meeling of directors, the
Corporation shall prepare, and maintain a minute record of each meeting which records the
following, and only the following, information:

(a) the date, time and place of the meeting;

‘(b) those names of those in attendance and those absent from the meefing;
(c)  the identity of the Chair and the Secretary of the meeting; V
(d}  confirmation that the meeting was duly called;

{¢)  confirmation that there was a quorum;

6] the disposition of each agenda item including the name of the moving and
seconding parties and the outcome of the vote;

e the disposition of every other motion made at the meeting; and '
¢hy  the adjournment of the meeting.
7.14 Consents

Any consent required under the provisions of the Act, the declaration, the by-laws or the rules
shall be given by the Board in writing after a resolution for same has been passed.

715 Execution Of Instruments

(@)  deeds, transfers, assignments, contracts and obligations of the Corporation must be
signed by the President or a Vice-President together with the Secretary or any other
director;

(b)  subject to the Act and the declaration but notwithstanding any provisions to the
contrary contained in the by-laws of the Corporation, the Board may by resolution
at any time and from time to time direct the manner in which and the person or
persons by whom any particular deed, transfer, assignment, contract, cheque or
obligation or any class of deed, transfer, assignment, contract, cheque or obligation
of the Corporation may or shall be signed; -

(c)  any member of the Board, or by resolution of the Board, any authorized agent may
execute a status certificate and cause the corporate seal to be affixed thereon
provided there is delivered with the certificate a statement under the signature of

the authorized agent that he/she has examined the records and confirms that the -

particulars set out in the certificate are accurate; and

(d}  the manager, any two members of the Board or the Corporation's solicitor may
execute a notice of lien or discharge of lien.

ARTICLE 8 - OFFICERS
8.1  Election Of President _
At the first meeting of the Board, after each election of directors, the Board shall elect from

among its members a President. In default of such election the then incumbent President, if a
member of the Board, shall hold office until his/her successor is elected.

t5
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8.2  Appointed Officers

The Board shall appoint a Secretary and may appoint one (1) or more Vice-Presidents, a
Treasurer and such other officers, including a Privacy Officer, as the Board may determing,
including one (1) or more assistants to any of the officers so appointed. The officer so appointed
may, but need not be, a member of the Board. One (1) person may hold more than one (1) office

and if the same person holds both the office of Secretary and the office of Treasurer, he/she may 7

be known as Secretary-Treasuret.
8.3  Term Of Office

At the first meeting of the Board, afier each election of directors, and then from time to time, the
Board shall appoint the officers of the Corporation. In the absence of written agreement to the
contrary, officers shall hold office until removed by the Board, provided always that officers
shall adhere to and be govemed by the same qualifications as hereinbefore applied to directors
pursuant to Articles 7.3 and 7.4. Officers shall have such authority and perform such duties as
the Board may, from time to time determine that are consistent with the Act, and the declaration
and by-laws of the Corporation.

8.4 President
The President shall;

(@  when present, be the chairperson at all meetings of the Board and of the owners or
designate the chairperson at all such meetings;

(b}  have one (1) vote (only) at all meetings of the Board;
() co-ordinate the activities of the remaining members of the Board and officers;

(d)  in the absence of a resolution of the Board specifying another officer, deal directly
with the property manager and the Corporation's solicitor in all areas of concermn;

(¢)  in the absence of a resolution of the Board specifying another officer, cast votes on
behalf of the Corporation for units owned by the Corporation, except for units that
arc intended for parking or storage purposes or for the purpose of housing services

o facilities or mechanical instalfations; and

H dircct the enforcement of the Act, the declaration, the by-laws and the rules and
regulations of the Corporation by all lawful means at the Board's disposal.

8.5 Yice-President

The Vice-President shall during the absence of the President, perform his/her duties and exercise
his/her powers. If there is more than one (1) Vice-President then the Vice-Presidents, in order of
seniority as determined by the Board, shall perform the functions of the President. The Vice-
President shall not preside at a meeting of the Board or the owners if the Vice-President is not
qualified to attend such meeting as a director or owner, as the case may be. If a Vice-President
exercises any such duty or power, the absence of the President shall be presumed. - A Vice-
President shall also perform such duties and exercise such powers as the Board may prescribe
from time to time. '

8.6 General Manager

The General Manager, if one is appointed by the board, shall have the general management and
direction subject to the authority of the Board and the supervision of the President, of the
Corporation’s business and affairs and the power to appoint and remove any and all employees
and agents of the Corporation not elected or appointed directly by the Board and to setile the
terms of their employment and remuneration.

8.7  Secretary
The Secretary shall:

“P
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(a) give or cause to be given all notices required to be given to the owners, directors,
mortgagees and all others entitled thereto pursuant to the Act or the declaration, by-
laws or rules or any contracts to which the Corporation is a party;

(b)  attend all meetings of the directors and of the owners:

() enter or cause to be entered in books kept for that purpose minutes of all
proceedings at such meetings;

(d)  be the custodian of all books, papers, records, documents-and other instruments
belonging to the Corporation. This does not require the Secretary to keep these
documents in his/her personal custody; and

(¢)  cause to have the by-laws registered and notice of the by-laws and of the rules and
regulations to be sent to all owners and mortgagees as required by the Act.

8.8 Treasurer

The Treasurer shall;

(@)  prepare or causc to be prepared, in consultation with property management, the
annual budget and the annual financial statements to be presented to the owners at
the annual peneral meeting;

(b)  prepare or cause to be prepared, in consultation with property management and
others as selected by the Board, a Reserve Fund Plan, if required; and

{c)  prepare or cause to be prepared, in consultation with those selected by the Board,
an investment plan for the Corporation's funds.

8.9 Officers

The officers of the Corporation shall bave such additional responsibilities as may be approved by
resolution of the Board,

8.10 Committees

(a) in order to assist the Board in managing the affairs of the Corporation, the Board
may ffom time to time constitute such advisory committees 1o advise and make
recommendations 1o the Board in connection with the activities, management,
budgets, house rules, or any other matter related to the common elements or any
other property to which the Condominium Corporation has any rights or shares or
obligations; and

(t)  the members of such committees shall be appointed by the Board to hold office and
may be removed at any time by resolution of the Board.

8.11 Delegation of Duties

When the performance of any duty is delegated by an officer of the board of directors, that
person's performance shall be supervised by such officer.

ARTICLE 9 - MEETINGS OF THE OWNERS
9.5  Annual Meetings

(@)  the anmual meeting of the owners shall be held within the City of Thornhill at such
time and on such day in each year as the Board may determine, for the purpose of
hearing and receiving the reports and statements required to be read and presented
before the owners at an annual mecting; electing directors; and for the transaction
of such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting; and

(b)  the annual meeting is to take place no later than six (6) months following the end of
the Corporation's fiscal year.

5
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9.2 Special Meefings

The Board shall have the power at any time to call a special meeting of the owners for the
transaction of any business, the nature of which shall be specified in the notice calling the
meeting,

93  Persons Entitled To Be Present
The only persons entitled to attend a meeting of owners shall be:

(2)  the owners and mortgagees entered on the record and who are entitled to receive
notice of and entitled to vote at the meeting in accordance with the Act;

(b)  any other person entitled to vote thercat;

{©) others who, although not entitled to vote, are entitled or required under the
provisions of the Act or the by-laws of the Corporation to be present at the
meeting; and : '

(d)  any other person on the iu-vitation of the Chairperson of the meeting or with the
consent of the meeting,

9.4 Quorum

A gquorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of the Unit Owners is those Owners who
own together at least twenty five per cent (25%) of the units. If a quorum is not present within a
reasonable time after the time appointed for the holding of any meeting of the owners (such
reasonable time to be determined by the Chairperson of the Mecting) the meeting shall be
adjourned and the Board shall cali a further meecting of the owners in accordance with the Act.

9.5  Voting

(@)  at each meeting of owners, subject to the provisions of the Act, every owner shall
be entitled to vote who is entitled to receive notice of the meeting and is not in
arrears of common expenses;

(b)  if the unit has been mortgapged and the right 10 vote has been gi\ren to the
mortgagee, the owner (or his/her proxy) may, subject to clause 9.5(c), nevertheless
represent such unit at meetings and vote in respect thereof:

() in the cvent the morigagee has notified the Corporation and the owner of the
mortgagee's intention to exercise such right at least four (4) days before the date
specified in the notice of meeting, the mortgagee or the mortgagee's proxy may
exercise the right to vote; -

(d)  any dispute over the right to vote shall be resolved by the Chairperson of the
meeting upon such evidence as he/she may deem sufficient;

(¢)  the Chairperson shall not, in the case of a tie, cast a deciding vote;‘ and

3] unless otherwise provided by the Act, the declaration or the by-laws, any vote shall
be decided by a majority vote of those owners present in person or by proxy at a
meeting calied for the purpose of holding such vote.

9.6  Method Of Voting

(@)  atany annual or special meeting any question may be decided by a show of hands,
A declaration by the Chairperson that such question has by a show of hands been
carried, is prima facie proof of the fact without further proof of ownership of the
votes cast in favour of such question;

(b)  a vote for the election of directors shall be by secret ballot only, unless board
members are elected by acclamation;

A
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(c) anyonc, who has a right to vote, may demand a vote by secret ballot and upon such
demand the vote shall be a secret ballot voie unless the demand is withdrawn
before the ballots are distributed: '

(d)  all voting by owners shall be on the basis of and in accordance with the Act;
(&)  all ballots including the ballot portion of a proxy shall be confidential; and

(3] when all ballots have been deposited into the ballot box the scrutineers shall then
tabulate the votes for and against the matter being voted upon.

9.7  Representatives

An executor, administrator, committee of a mentally incompetent person, guardian, trustee or
representative of a Corporation, upon filing with the Secretary of the meeting sufficient proof of
his/her appointment shall represent the owner or mortgagee at all meetings of the owners and
may vote in the same manner and to the same extent as such owner. If there be more than one
(1) executor, administrator, committee, guardian or trustee, the provisions relating to co-owners
shall apply.

9.8 Proxies

Every owner or mortgagee entitled to vote at meetings of owners may by instrument in writing
appoint a proxy, who need not be an owner or mortgagee, to attend and act at the meeting in the
same manner, to the same extent and with the same power as if the owner or mortgagee were
present at the meeting. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing and signed by the
appointor or his’her attorney authorized in writing. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be
deposited with the Secretary before any vote or in accordance with procedures established by
resolution of the Board.

2.9 Co-Owners

If a unit or 2 morigage on a unit is owned by two (2) or more persons, any one (1) of them
present or represented by proxy may, in the absence of the other or others, vote, but if more than
one (1) of them are present or represented by proxy, the majority of the owners of that unit,
present at the meeting in person or by proxy, may exercise the right to vote in respect to that unit.

The vote shall not be counted if two (2) or more owners of the unit present at the meeting are

evenly divided on how to exercise the vote.

ARTICLE 10 - ADDITIONAL RIGHTS OF THE CORPORATION
10.1 Rights of the Corporation

The contravention of any provisions of the Act, declaration, by-laws and/or rules of the
Corporation, shall give the Board, subject 1o its duty to act reasonably in addition to any other
rights set forth in the Act and the declaration, the right to: -

(a)  prohibit any person from using the facilities or any part of the common ¢lements
of the Corporation for any period of time that the Board, acting reasonably,
determines appropriate;

{b)  upon reasonable notice, enter the unit, or any part of the common elements in
which or with respect to which such contravention exists and to summarily abate
and remove at the expense of the owner of the unit, any structure, item or
condition that may exist in or about the unit or any part of the common elements
contrary 1o the intent and meaning of the provisions of the Act, declaration, by-
laws and/or rules and the Board shall not be deemed guilty of any manner of
trespass; or '

(c)  cnjoin, abate or remedy by appropriate legal proceedings, either at law or in
equity, the continuance of any such breach, including without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, any proceeding for compliance pursuant to the
provisions of the Act; and

(7
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deem all costs incurred by the Corporation pursuant to Article 10 to be common
expenses attributable to the unit and collected in the same marner as common
expenses,

10.2  Occupancy

@

®)

(©)

the Corporation hereby adopts as the maximum occupancy for each unit, the
occupancy load determination in the Ontarjo Building Code as prescribed in Q.
Reg. 350/06 or O. Reg. 403/97 as applicable, being two (2) persons per sleeping
room or sleeping area (bedroom) in a dwelling unit in accordance with either the
architectural plans contained in the Description registered in the Land Registry
Office and/or the plans, as amended, if applicable, which were filed with the local
municipality or region and approved by such tocal munijcipality or region for the
construction of the condominjum building(s), which ever is more resirictive;

in the event of a contravention of the standards for the occupancy of units of the
Corporation adopted in accordance with this by-law, in addition to any other rights
of the Corporation, the Board is authorized, in accordance with the provisions of
the Act, by resolution, to levy an assessment against the unit. The assessment shall
form part of the contribution to the common expenses payable for the unit. The
assessment shall be applied from the first day of the month in which there isa
contravention through to the last day of the month in which the contravention is
cured; and

no person shall occupy a unit in contravention of the occupancy standard adopted
in 10.2(a).

10.3  Non-Resident Access to Common Elements

Pursuant to S. 56(1)(k) of the Act those persons who are not residents or guests of residents are
not entitled to use any of the facilities or amenities, which are common element areas of the

Corporation.

104 Todemnification by Owners

@)

(b)

(c)

the owner of a unit is responsible for the lesser of the amount of the deductible
contained in the Corporation’s insurance policy and the cost to repair the damage
to the owner's unit, that may have been caused by the owner or any person, thing or
animal for whom or for which the owner is Tesponsible; '

pursuant to subsection 105(3) of the Act, the owner of a unit is responsible for the
lesser of the amount of the deductible contained in the Corporation’s insurance
policy and the cost to repair the damage to the owner's unit, the common elements
or other umits, that may have been caused by the owner or any person, thing or
animal for whom or for which the owner is responsible. -

each owner shall indemnify and save the Corporation harmless from and against
any and all damages, loss and/or cost, which the Corporation may suffer or incur
resulting from, or caused by an owner, or any person, thing or animal for whom or
for which the owner is responsible including, but not limited to: .

()  alllegal costs and disbursements incurred by the Corporation; and
(i)  any costs incurred by the Corporation:

(A)  to redress, rectify and/or obtain relicf from any injury, loss or
damage;

(B) by reason of breach of the Act, declaration, by-laws and/or any
rules of the Corporation in force from time to time; and/or

(C)  in relation to the enforcement of any rights or duties pursuant to

the Act, the declaration, the by-laws and/or the rules of the
Corporation, including the need for an oppression remedy;

it 2L T
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all amounts for which the unit owner is responsible pursuant to this by-law shall
form part of the contributions to the common expenses payable for the particular
unit.

ARTICLE 11 - ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION OF COMMON EXPENSES

11.1 Common Expenses and Budget

(@

(b)

all expenses, charges and costs of maintenance, repair or replacement of the
common clements and the assets of the Corporation and any other expenses,
charges or costs which the Board may incur or expend pursuant to its duties shall
be assessed by the Board and levied against the owners in the proportions in which
they are required to contribute to the common expenses as set forth in the
declaration or in accordance with the provistons of the Act; and

the Board shall from time to time and at least annually prepare a budget for the
property and determine by estimate the amount of common expenses for the next
ensuing fiscal year or remainder of the current fiscal year as the case may be, The

Board should allocate and assess such common expenses as set out in the budget

for such period among the owners, according to the proportion in which they are
required to contribute to the common expenses as set forth in the declaration.

11.2 Reserve Fund

(@)

®)

©

the Board shall establish and maintain a reserve fund(s) in accordance with the
Act;

the reserve fund(s) shall be kept in a separate interest bearing account with an
institution in accordance with the Act; and

shall be invested in accordance with the Act.

11.3 Extraordinary Expenditures

Any expenditure not contemplated in the budget and for which the Board shall not have
sufficient funds may be assessed at any time during the year, in addition to the annual
assessment, by the Board serving notices of such further assessment on all owners, which shall
include a written statement setting out the reasons for the extraordinary assessment,

11.4  Delivery of Assessments

(@)

(b)

the Board shall give notice to all owners of the amount of common expenses
payable by each of them respectively, and shall deliver copies of each budget on
which such common expenses are based, to all owners and mortgagees entered on
the record; and - o

extraordinary assessments shall be payable by each oWﬁer within ten (10) days
after the delivery of notice thereof to such owner, unless a further period of time
has been determined by resolution of the Board and set out in such notice.

11.5  Owners' Obligations To Pay Assessments

(a)

(b)

notwithstanding that common expenses are levied on the basis of an annual
assessment, the Board shall permit owners to make their common expense
payments in twelve (12) instalments due on the first day of each month. Each
owner shall be obliged to pay to the Corporation the full amount of such annual
assessment within ten (10) days after the delivery or mailing of the notice of the
annual assessment to the owner;

if the Board enacts a resolution requiring owners to pay their common expense
payments either by pre-authorized chequing or by post-dated cheques, the owners
shall arrange for the payment of their proportionate shares of the common expenses
by means of a pre-authorized chequing or post-dated cheques or other similar plan
approved by the Board, Each owner who does not pay common expenses by pre-
authorized chequing, shall deliver to the corporation, prior to the date the first
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common expense payment is due for the next fiscal year, twelve (12) equal
consccutive monthly payments by post-dated cheques payable to the Corporation
on the first day of each and every month during the annual fiscal period
commencing the first day that year. Where the Board approves a pre-authorized
chequing plan the Corporation shall be entitled to debit the bank account of the
owner each month to collect one-twelfth (1/12) of the annual assessment, which
may, at the Board’s discretion be applied towards the payment of any other
amounts owing to the Corporation. The Board may, by reselution, authorize such
alternate methods of payment as it may reasonably determine provided always that
any such method of payment shall apply consistently to and for the convenience of
all owners. The acceptance by the Board of this alternate method of payment by the
owner does not constitute a waiver of the owner's obligation to pay his/her
proportionate share of the annual assessment as hereinbefore provided; and

(c) the Board may, by resolution, authorize such altemnate methods of payment as it
may reasonably determine provided always that any such method of payment shall
apply consistently to and for the convenience of all owners. The acceptance by the
Board of this alternate method of payment by the owner does not constitute a
waiver of the owner's obligation to pay his/her proportionate share of the annual
assessment as hereinbefore provided.

11.6  Defauit In Payment

(a) arrears of payment required to be made under the provisions of the Act,
declaration, by-laws or rules shall bear interest at the rate of twenty-four per cent
(24%) per annum compounded monthly or such other rate as the Board may by
resolution determine, until payment has been received in full from the owner,
Interest at the aforesaid rate shall be charged from time to time on the unpaid
balance of common expenses plus unpaid interest and any legal costs incurred by
the Corporation in the collection or attempted collection of the unpaid amount and
interest shall be charged upon the aggregate total amount monthly and shall be
compounded monthly until paid; and

(b)  in any collection or attempted collection proceedings, including lien proceedings
and/or sale or other court proceeding instituted by the Corporation to collect
common €xpenses, or other amounts deemed to be common expenses, from the
owner, there shall be added to any amount found due all costs incurred by the
Corporation and all legal costs on a substantial indemnity basis {formerly known as
solicitor and client costs) incurred in such action.

ARTICLE 12 - BANKING ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
12.1 Banking Arrangements

The banking business of the Corporation or any part thereof shall be transacted with such bank or
trust company as the Board may designate or authorize from time to time by resolution, and all
such banking business, or any part thereof, shall be transacted on the Corporation’s. behalf by at
least two people, one of whom shall be a member of the Board, and another person(s), as the
Board may designate or authorize from time to time by resolution, and to the extent therein
provided, including, without restricting the generality of the foregoing, the operation of the
Corporation’s accounts, the making, signing, drawing, accepting, endorsing, negotiating,
lodging, depositing or transferring of any cheques, promissory notes, drafts, acceptances, bills of
+ exchange and orders relating to any such banking business, and the defining of the rights and
powers of the parties thereto and any act or thing on the Corporation’s behalf to facilitate such
banking business.

12.2 Execution of Instruments

Subject to the provisions of the Act, all deeds, transfers, assignments, contracts and obligations
on behalf of the Corporation may be signed by the President or the Vice-President, together with
the Secretary or any other director. Any contract or obligation within the scope of any
management agreement entered into by the Corporation may be executed on behalf of the
Corporation in accordance with the provisions of such management agreement. Notwithstanding
any provisions of the Act, the Board may at any time and from time to time, direct the manner in
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which, and the person(s) by whom any particular deed, transfer, contract or obligation or any
class of deeds, transfers, contracts or obligations of the Corporation may or shall be signed,

12.3 No Seal

Despite anything contained in this by-law to the contrary, any document or instrument that
would otherwise require a seal need not be exccuted under the seal of the Corporation, provided
that same has been duly executed by the person or persons expressly authorized and empowered
to execute same on behalf of the Corporation, nor shall any such document or instrument be duly
witnessed, in order to be valid, effective and binding upon the Corporation, provided that the
name of the signatory, his or her office in the Corporation, and the phrase “I/We have the
authority to bind the Corporation™ are clearly set out below the signature(s) of the person(s)
expressly authorized and empowered to execute same on behalf of the Corporation, and any such
duly executed document or instrument shall have the same validity and binding effect on the

Corporation (for all purposes) as if same had been duly executed under the seal of the
Corporation. '

12.4  Execution of the Status Certificate and Notices of Lien and Discharges of Liens

The Status Certificate, Notices of Lien and Discharges of Liens, as required by the Act, may be
signed by any officer or any director of the Corporation, or any person authorized by resolution
of the Board of Directors with or without the seal of the Corporation affixed thereto, provided
that the Board may, by resolution, direct the manner in which, and the person(s) by whom, such
certificates may or shall be signed.

ARTICLE 13 - MISCELLANEOUS
13.1 Invalidity

The invalidity of any part of this by-law shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity and
enforceability or effect of the balance thereof.

13.2 Waiver

No restriction, condition, obligation or provision contained in this by-law shall be deemed to
have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same irrespective of the
number of violations or breaches thereof which may occur.

13.3 Headings

The headings in the body of this by-law form no part thereof but shall be deemed to be inserted
for convenience of reference only,

13.4 Amendment

This by-law or any part hereof may be varied, altered or repealed by a by-law passed in
accordance with the provisions of the Act and the declaration.

13.5 Conflicts

(@)  in the case of a conflict between the provisions of the Act and any provision in the
declaration, by-laws or rules and regulations, the Act shall prevail;

(b)  in the case of a conflict between the provisions in the declaration and any provision
in the by-laws or rules and regulations, the declaration shall prevait, unless the by-
law or rule has been amended after the registration of the declaration as provided
for in the Act; and

(c)  inthe event the provisions of the Act or the declaration are silent the provisions of
the by-laws shall prevaii.

York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112 hereby enacts the foregoing By-Law
passed by the board of directors and confinned by a vote of owners who own not less than a
majority of units, in accordance with the Act.
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WITNESS the corporate seal of the Corporation this 14" day of May, 2012,

™  YORK REGION STANDARD
CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. ‘
1112
Per:
~ -
Print Name: SAM GROSSMAN
Title: PRESIDENT
Per:

ame: JOCELYN ESTRIEN
Tile: SECRETARY

We have authority to bind the
Corporation

e
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CERTIFICATE IN RESPECT OF A BY-LAW
(Under subsection 56(9) of the Condominium Act, 1998)

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112 (known as
the "Corporation"} certifies that:

1. The Copy of By-law No. 5, attached as Schedule "A", is a true copy of the By-law.
2 The By-law was made in accordance with the Condominium Act, 1998,

3, The owners of a majority of the units of the Corporation have voted in favour of
confirming the By-law.

DATED this 14" day of May, 2012,

YORK REGION STANDARD
CONDOMINIUM CORFORATION
NO. 1112

Per: A

Name : SAM GROSSMAN
Title: PRESIDENT

Per:

e: JOCELYN ESTRIEN
itle: SECRETARY

1/We have the authority (o bind the corporation
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BY-LAWNO.5
YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

A By-law to establish procedures with respect to the mediation and arbitration of disputes
described in Sections 125 and 132 of the Condominium Aci, 1998 (“Disputes™) and any amended
or successor legislation (the “4cs”).

WHEREAS:

A, The Act intends that all Parties described in Sections 125 and 132 resolve Disputes which
may arise between them through mediation and arbitration;

B. It is within the power of the Corporation, and it is encouraged by the 4ct, to enact a by-
law to establish the procedure for mediation and arbitration of Disputes;

C. The Corporation intends that procedures in this By-law be deemed incorporated into the
agreements and documents described in Sections 125 and 132 of the Act and that this
procedure be employed for all Disputes, governed by these sections and any amended or
successor legislation.

ARTICLE 1 - GENERAL
1.1  Disputes

Disputes relating to the breach, termination, existence, validity, performance, interpretation or
enforceability of any of the agreements listed in Section 132(2) of the Act or Disputes arising in
connection with the documents referred 1o in Section 125 of the Act, other than those which must
be resolved in the Courts or those which may be resolved in the Courts unless the Parties agree to
submit their dispute to mediation and arbitration, shall be addressed and resolved in accordance
with the provisions of this By-law.

1.2 Definitions

(@  Deliver — means serving, giving to or Delivering any Notice or Document to a
Party pursuant to Article 1.3(a) of this By-law.

(b)  Party — means any person or corporate entity named as a Party in relation to a
Dispute in a Notice of Dispute, Notice of Mediation ot Notice of Arbitration. For
the purposes of paying costs and for Delivery/service of documents pursuant to
this By-law, co-owners who have not given the corporation notice of separate
addresses for service shall be deemed to be one Party.

{c) Recipient — means the person to whom a Notice or Document has been Delivered .
in accordance with this By-law. -

1.3  Delivery/Service of Documents
(a)  All notices and documents required to be Delivered or provided to the

Corporation shall be Delivered in accordance with subsection 46(2)(c) of the Act;
{o an owner in accordance with subsection 47(7) of the Act; to a mortgagee in
accordance with subsection 47(8) of the Act; and to all other Parties either:
(i)  personally;

(i) by pre-paid mail to that Party’s last known address;

(iiiy by pre-paid registered post;

(iv) by facsimile transmission; or

(v)  electronic mail or any other method of electronic communication if the

Party agrees in writing that the Party giving the notice or document may
give the notice or document in this manner.
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(b)  If a Party is represented by an agent or solicitor, any document to be Delivered to
that Party may be Delivered to that Party’s agent or solicitor in accordance with
Article 1.3(a).

©) Notices and documents will be deemed to have been reccived the day of hand
Delivery, facsimile transmission or electronic communication and for Delivery by
pre-paid mail and registered post, forty-cight (48) hours afier posting or
registration thereof,

1.4  Confidentiality

Settlement efforts and statements made by the Parties during negotiation, mediation and/or
arbitration shall, in all respects, be kept confidential and shall be strictly without prejudice.

ARTICLE 2 - NEGOTIATION
Any Party may Deliver a written Notice of Dispute 10 any other Party, which shal! include:
(=) an outline of the nature of the Dispute; and
(b)  the names of the Parties involved in the Dispute.

The Parties who have received and are named in the Notice of Dispute shall meet for the purpose
of trying to resolve the Dispute as soon as possible after receiving a Notice of Dispute, as many
times as the Parties reasonably deem necessary, in order to gather and fumish to the other Party
or Parties all information with respect to the matters in issue which the Parties believe will assist
with its resolution. The specific format for such discussions shall be left to the Parties and may

include the preparation of an agreed upon statement of facts or written statements of position
furnished to the other Party or Parties.

ARTICLE 3 - MEDIATION
i1 Notice of Mediation and Selection of Mediator

(a)  Notwithstanding that the Partics may still be in negotiations pursuant to Article 2,
& Notice of Mediation may be Delivered by any Party to the other Party or Parties
on or after the fifth (5th) day after the Notice of Dispute has been Delivered and

must be Delivered no later thirty (30) days after Delivery of the Notice of
Dispute, and shall include:

(iy a statement that the Party has made a good fuith effort to reach a
settlement in accordance with Article 2;

(ii)  the names of two qualified individuals to act as mediator, who have
indicated a willingness to act as mediator, ranked in order of preference;

(iii)  astatement of any facts agreed by all Parties, if 'any; and
(iv)  awritten statement of the Party’s position;

(b)  Within five (5) days of receipt of a Notice of Mediation the Recipichts shall each
Deliver to the other Party or Parties the names of two qualified individuals to act

as mediator, who have indicated a willingness to act as mediator, ranked in order

of preference and each Recipient shall include a written statement of his/herfits
position;

(c) For purposes of Section 132 of the Act, a Dispute will be deemed to be submitied
to mediation by the Parties on the day the Notice of Mediation is Delivered;

(d)  The Parties shali unanimously appoint, from the names submitted, a mediator who
shall be a qualified and experienced mediator;

(¢)  If the Parties are unable to reach unanimous agreement on the selection of a
mediator within ten (10) days after the date the Notice of Mediation is Delivered,
the mediator shall be selected at random by draw by the Party who Delivered the

-7
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Notice of Mediation and in the presence of the other Parties from among the
names of the mediators submitted by the Parties:

(D The Party who Delivered the Notice of Mediation, must notify the mediator of his
or her appointment, within three (3) business days of such appointment and shall
provide the mediator with a copy of this By-law; '

(8)  If aParty fails to submit names in accordance with Article 3.1(b), the mediation
will be deemed to have failed and the mediator seilccted by the other Party or
Parties shall Deliver to all the Parties a Notice stating that the mediation has failed
and the notice may specify how the mediator’s fees and expenses are to be bome
by the Parties.

3.2 Role of Mediator

(a) The mediator’s role is to assist the Parties in resolving the Dispute in accordance
with the procedures set out in this By-law. The mediator will not make decisions
for the Parties about how the matter should or must be resolved;

(b)  If the mediator selected by the Parties is a qualified lawyer, he/she will not
provide legal representation or Jegal advice to either Party;

{(¢)  The mediator has no duty to assert or protect the legal rights of any Party, to raise
any issue not raised by the Parties themselves, or to determine who should
participate in the mediation,

3.3 Location, Time and Place of Hearing

The place of mediation shall be determined by the mediator in consultation with the Parties and
the mediator will promptly advise the Parties of the location and time of the mediation and the
estimated cost of the mediation. The mediation shall be held within thirty (30) days of the Notice
of Mediation. In emergency situations, as determined by the Corporation, involving the safety
and security of persons or property, the mediation shall be held as soon as possible following the
Delivery of the Notice of Mediation in which case the following shall apply:

{a) A Notice of Mediation may be Delivered by any Party to the other Party or Parties
along with the Deljvery of the Notice of Dispute;

(b) A written mediation brief shall be submitted by each Party to the mediator and all
other Partics, at least two (2) days before the hearing date, or such shorter time as
may be acceptable to the mediator.

34 Mediation Brief

Each Party shall submit to the mediator and all other Parties, at least five (5) days before the
hearing date, a written mediation brief of not more than ten (10) pages, single spaced on 3%” by
117 paper, setting out the relevant facts and the Party’s positions concerning the matlers in the _
Dispute. .

3.5  Fees and Expenses

(a) Each Party shall Deliver to the mediator, with its mediation brief, or no later than
twenty-four (24) hours before the commencement of the mediation, a certified
cheque payable to the mediator for such Party’s proportionate share, based on the
number of parties to the mediation, of the mediator’s anticipated fees and
expenses of the mediatioxn;

(b)  Fees and expenses of the mediation shall be borne as specified in a settlement, if a
settlement is obtained. If no seftlement is obtained, the mediator's fees and
expenses shall be borne as specified in the notice stating that the mediation has
failed;

(¢)  If a Party fails to Deliver to the mediator a certified cheque in accordance with
Article 3.5(a), the mediation will be deemed to have failed and the Mediator will
issue a notice stating that the mediation has failed and which Party or Parties
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failed to Deliver to the mediator a certified cheque in accordance with Article
3.5(a);

(d) A Party who has failed to Deliver to the mediator a certified cheque in accordance
with Article 3.5(a) may not Deliver a Notice of Arbitration unless that Party has
withdrawn from the mediation in accordance with Article 3.7(a);

(¢)  IfaParty who has Delivered to the mediator a certified cheque in accordance with
Article 3.5(a) when a Party has not complied with Article 3.5(a), and the mediator
deducts an amount for fees from the certified cheque provided in accordance with
Article 3.5(a), the Party who has complied with Article 3.5(a) may add amounts
paid to the mediator to the Dispute.

3.6  Authority to Settle and Legal Representation

(a) The Partics or representatives of the Parties with full authority to settle the
Dispute shall attend the mediation in person;

(b)  The Parties arc entitled to seek legal representation or advice prior to or during the
mediation and may have lawyers present at the mediation who shall be permitted
to fully participate in all aspects of the mediation,

3.7 Withdrawal from Mediation

{a) Any Party and/or the mediator may withdraw from mediation at any time by
giving written notice to the other Party or Parties at least twenty-four (24) hours
prior to the scheduled commencement of the mediation hearing;

(b) If a Party or the mediator has withdrawn from mediation in accordance with
Article 3.7(a), the mediation will be deemed to have failed and the mediator will
issue a notice stating that the mediation has failed.

3.8  Termination of Mediation
The mediation shall end on the earlier of:

{a) The date that the Partics enter into 2 binding settlement agreement with respect to
all or a part of the matters in Dispute;

(b)  The date the mediator issues a notice stating that the mediation has failed;

(c) The date that any Party or the mediator withdraws from the mediation, in
accordance with Article 3.7(a); and

(d)  Sixty (60) days after the Parties submitted their Dispute to mediation if in that
time they failed to select a mediator. i

ARTICLE 4 - ARBITRATION
4.1  Application

If all or part of the matters in a Dispute are not resolved or settled through the procedures
provided under Article 2 and Article 3, the remaining matters of the Dispute shall be determined
by final and binding arbitration conducted by a single arbitrator in accordance with the
procedures provided in this Article. Except as otherwise provided in this Article, the arbitration
of the Dispute, including its procedures, decision and enforcement, shall be in accordance with
the Arbitration Act, 1991 (Ontario) and any amended or successor legislation and the other
applicable laws of the Province of Ontario regarding arbitration and the enforcement of arbitral
awards (collectively, the “Arbitration Ac”) and any applicable federal laws of Canada.

4.2 Notice of Arbitration

(a)  Any Party, subject to Article 3.5(c) may initiate the arbitration by Delivering a
- written Notice of Arbitration:
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(i)  sixty (60) days after the Parties submitted their Dispute 10 mediation if the
Parties failed to select a mediator, or if a Party withdrew from the
mediation in accordance Article 3.7(a); or ‘

(ii) thirty (30) days after the mediator selected under Articles 3.1(a) to 3.1(g)
Delivers a notice stating that the mediation has failed;

A Party may Deliver a Notice of Arbitration prior to the expiry of the time frames
set out in this Article 4.2 with the agreement of the other Party or provided the
other Party does not object in writing to Delivery of the Notice of Arbitration;

The Notice of Arbitration shall include:
(i)  an outline of the issues to be arbitrated;
(i) the names of the Parties involved in the dispute;

(i)  a statement indicating the date that mediation was terminated under
Article 3 hereof: and '

(iv)  the names of at least two (2) persons who the Party has selected to act as
arbitrator ranked in order of preference.

4.3 The Arbitrator

(a)

(&

©

@

&)

®

The arbitrator shall be either:;

(i)  an individual selected by the Corporation with experience in Arbitration
and Condominium Law;

(ii) a member of the Arbitration and Mediation Institute of Ontario; or

(iii)  a Canadian former Judge who carries on business as a professional
arbitrator and who is based in Ontario.

The Arbitrator shall be impartial and independent of the Parties to the Dispute and _
shall, if requested, confimm to the Parties that he/she has no current or past
relationship of any kind with any of the Parties that might give rise to justifiable
doubts as to his or her impartiality;

Within five (5} days of receipt of a Notice of Arbitration the Recipients shall each
Deliver to the other Party or Parties the names of two qualified individuals to act
as the arbitrator, who have indicated a willingness to act as arbitrator, ranked in
order of preference. Such Recipients shall include a written statement of position;

The Parties shall unanimously appoint, within ten (10)- days of Delivery of the
Notice of Arbitration, an arbitrator from the names submitted. The arbitrator shall
be qualified and experienced to act as an arbitrator;

If the Parties are unable to reach unanimous agreement on the selection of an
arbitrator within ten (10) days after the date the Notice of Arbitration is Delivered,
the arbitrator shall be selected at random by draw by the Party who Delivered the
Notice of Arbitration and in the presence of the other Parties from among the
names of the arbitrators submitted by the Parties;

If a Party fails to submit names in accordance with this Scction, such Party shall
be deemed to accept as the arbitrator, the person selected, by the other Party or
Parties, in accordance with this Section.

4.4 Location, Time and Place of Arbitration

The place of arbitration shall be defermined by the arbitrator in consultation with the Parties and
the arbitrator will promptly advise the Parties of the location, time for commencement, schedule
for and estimated cost of the arbitration. The arbitration shail be held within thirty (30) days of
the Delivery of Notice of Arbitration. In emergency situations involving the safety and/or
security of persons or property, as determined by the Corporation in its sole discretion, the
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arbitration shall be held as soon as possible following the Delivery of the Notice of Arbitration in
which case the following shall apply:

@

(b)

A Notice of Arbitration may be Delivered by any Party to the other Party:

@) as soon as possible following the deemed failure of the mediation to have
failed,

(i)  afler the Parties submitted their Dispute to mediation if the Parties failed
to select a mediator, or if a Party withdrew from the mediation in
accordance Article 3.7(a); or ’

(i)  after the mediator selected under Articles 3.1 (a) to 3.1(g) Delivers a notice
stating that the mediation has failed;

A written arbitration brief shall be submitted by each Party to the arbitrator and all
other Parties, at least two (2) days before the hearing date, or such shorter time as
may be acceptable to the arbitrator.

4.5 Arbitration Brief

Within ten (10) days after the date of the appointment of the arbitrator each Party shall Deliver to
the arbitrator and to the other Party or Parties a written arbitration brief which shall set forth each
Party’s position concerning the matters in dispute and shall include:

(a)
®

©

@

A statement of fact and law;

Copies of all relevant documents that are in that Party’s possession or within the
Party’s control;

A statutory declaration of the Party presenting the brief declaring that the
documents included in the brief are all the documents relevant to the Dispute that
are in that Party’s possession or control, including those documents that are or
might be unfavourable to that Party’s position in the arbitration; and

A statement of the relief sought.

4.6  Fees and Expenses

(a)

(b)

©

d

Each Party shall Deliver to the arbitrator, with their arbitration bricf, or no later
than twenty-four (24) hours before the commencement of the arbifration, a
certified cheque payable 1o the arbitrator for such Party’s pro rata share of the
arbitrator’s anticipated fees and expenses of the arbitration;

The fees and cxpenses of the arbitration shall be bome as specified in the
arbitrator’s award subject to Article 4.12(b);

If a Party fails to Deliver to the arbitrator a certified cheque in accordance with
Article 4.6(a), the arbitrator may continue the arbitration and make an award on
the evidence before him/her except that the arbitrator may not take into account
any documents, briefs or evidence provided by the Party who failed to pay fees in
accordance with Article 4.6(a); and

If the Party who fails to Deliver a certified cheque to the arbitrator in accordance
with Article 4.6(a) is the Party who commenced the arbitration, the arbitrator may
make an award dismissing the claim. :

4.7 Additional Parties

Upon reviewing the Notice of Arbitration and Arbiiration Briefs, the Arbitrator may make a
request of the Parties that another Party or Parties be joined in the arbitration. Any other Party or
Parties may only be joined with that Party’s consent and the consent of the original Parties to the

Dispute,



4.8 Hearing

The arbitration shall be an oral hearing, conducted in the English language, unless the Parties and
the arbitrator agree otherwise, and shall consist of examination in chief and cross examination of
witnesses under oath, and oral arguments to be presided over by the arbitrator. Except for the
statutory declaration provided pursuant to Article 4.5(c), there shall be no oral or documentary
discovery under oath,

4.9  Representation

The Parties are entitled to be represented and assisted by legal counsel in connection with all
aspects of the arbitration and any Party’s legal counsel shall be permitted to attend and fully
participate in all aspects of the arbitration, :

4,10 Duration of Arbitration

The hearing shail begin not more than thirty (30} days afier the Arbitration Notice is Delivered
and shall be conducted over no more than five (5) consecutive business days whereby:

(@)  Each Party shall be given a maximum of two (2) full business days to present his
or her case to the arbitrator; '

(b)  The arbitrator shall have the discretion to regulate, among other things, the length
of a Party’s cross examination of the other Party’s witnesses to ensure the fair and
equal treatment of all Parties with regard to the time limits of the hearing; and

(©) On the fifth (5th) business day of the hearing or carlier, each Party shall be given
the opportunity to present oral and written arguments to the arbitrator,

4.11 Powers of the Arbitrator

(a) Subject to Article 4.11(b), the arbitrator shall have the discretion to determine ail
procedural matters, including but not limited to those relating to evidence,
witnesses, documents and interpreters, and may require the Parties to attend at a
preliminary meeting, whick may be held by teleconference, to discuss and
determine any procedural matters that, in the discretion of the arbitrator, should be
determined prior to the commencement of the arbitration hearing.

(b)  The arbitrator may make whatever award he/she considers just having regard to
the dispute, the interest of the Parties, the Act, the regulations, the agreement, the
declaration, the by-laws and the rules and may do one or more of the following:

(i)  order an amendment to any document in dispute between the Parties, said
amendment to be effective as between the Parties to the arbitration;

(ii)  order a Party to do something;
(iii)  order a Party to refrain from doing something; .

(iv)  order a Party to pay money as damages, compensation or reimbursement;
and

(v)  any other order as may be permitied by the Arbitration Acr.
4.12 The Arbitrator’s Award

(a) The arbitrator shall be required to make an award, in writing, signed by the
arbitrator, within thirty (30) days afier the conclusion of the hearing and a copy of
the award is to be Delivered to the Parties in accordance with this By-law.

(b)  The award of the arbitrator shall be final and binding, The arbitrator shall include
reasons for the award.

(¢}  The arbitrator’s award may include an order for costs, specifying the Party or
Parties entitled to costs, the Party or Parties who must pay the costs, the amount
of the costs and the manner of payment. If the arbitrator does not make an order

{o



-B-

respecting costs, a Party may, within twenty (20) days after being notified of the
award, apply 1o the arbitrator for an order respecting costs. If no application is
made to the arbitrator for an order respecting costs or, if following an Application
the arbitrator does not make an order respecting costs, then subject to any
agreement to the contrary, the Parties must bear their own costs of the fees and
disbursements of the arbitrator in equal shares,

{d)  An arbitrator’s award and/or order for costs may be filed in the Superior Court of
Justice and, on being filed, will have the same effect as if it was an order of the
Superior Court of Justice. Once filed, proceedings may be taken on both the
award and/or the order for costs.

4.13 Defence to Action

Other than an action to enforce the award of the arbitrator, the provisions of this By-law
represent a complete defence to any suit, action or other proceeding instituted in any Cowrt or
before any administrative tribunal with respect to any Dispute. Nothing in this By-law prevents
the Parties from exercising any other rights they may have pursuant to the Aef, the repulations,
the agreements described in Section 132(2) of the Act, the declaration, the by-laws or the rules.

ARTICLE 5 - FORMS
51 Forms

Precedent forms are attached to this By-law as Schedule “A” through Schedule “E”. These formns
may be used by any Party for purposes of the procedures contained in this Mediation and
Arbitration By-law. These forms need not be used and may be altered, if required, to mect the
circumstances of a specific situation. The forms attached include:

(a) Schedule “A” Notice of Dispute;

()  Schedule “B” Notice of Mediation;

() Schedule “C” Response to Notice of Mediation;

(d) Schedule “D” Notice of Arbitration; and

()  Schedule “E” Response to Notice of Arbitration.
York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112 hereby enacts the foregoing By-Law
passed by the board of dircctors and confirmed by a vote of owners who own not less than a

majority of units, in accordance with the Act,

WITNESS the corporate seal of the Corporation this 14™ day of May, 2012,

YORK REGION STANDARD
CONDOMINIUM CORFORATION
NO. 1112

Per:

Print Name: SAM GROSSMAN
Title: PRESIDENT

Per:

ame: JOCELYN ESTRIEN
Tifle: SECRETARY

I/'We have the authority to bind the cotporation

{



DATE:

TO:

FROM:

4.

SCHEDULE A
NOTICE OF DISPUTE
®
[include address, telephone, fax number, and ¢-mail address, if known]
[include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known ]

Statement of Dispute:

{Signature)

(2



SCHEDULE B
NOTICE OF MEDIATION
DATE: °
TO: [include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
FROM: [include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]

1. I/We, [insert name of party giving notice] have made a good faith effort to reach a
settlement of the dispute through negotiation.

2. Proposed Mediators (include name and contact information):

2

3 Statement of Facts Agreed by All Parties, if any:

4, Statement of Position:

5, Documents:
(If you are relying on any documents then a summary of each document must be set out
below or on an attached schedule. Each summary must include the date of the
document’s creation, its author and a brief surnmary of its contents.)

DOCUMENTS ‘

DATE AUTHOR BRIEF SUMMARY OF CONTENTS

(Signature)

Each Recipient of this Nolice of Mediation shall Deliver to the other Party or Purties the names of two (2) quelified individuals 1o act as
Mediator, who have indicated a willingness 1o act Mediator, tanked in order of preference and each Recipient shall include o written stalement of
his/herfits position, ’ .

I{ the Partics arc unable to reach unanimous egreement on the selection of a mediator within ten (10) days afier the date the Notice of Mediation
is Delivered, the mediator shall be selected at random by drsw by the Party who Delivered the Notice of Medigtion and in the presence of the
other Parlies from among the names of the mediators submitted by the Pariics.

The Party who Delivered the Notice of Mediation, must nolify the mediator of his or her appointment, within three (3) business days of such
appeintmen and shall provide the medialor with a copy of this By-law.

If a Party fails to submil names in accordance with Article 3,2, the Mediation will be deemed (o have failed and the mediator selected by the other

Party or Parties shall Deliver to all the Parties a Notice staiing that the mediation has (ailed and the natice may specify how (he mediator's fees
and expenses are 10 be bome by the Parties.

L3



SCHEDULE C

RESPONSE TO NOTICE OF MEDIATION

DATE: L4
TO: [include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
FROM: [include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
1. Proposed Mediators (include name and contact information):

1.

2.

Note: You may propose a mediator who has been propoesed by another Party.

2. Statement of Position:

3. Documents: _
(If you are relying on any documents then a summary of each document must be set out

below or on an attached schedule. Each summary must include the date of the
document’s creation, its author and a brief summary of its contents.)

DOCUMENTS
DATE AUTHOR BRIEF SUMMARY OF CONTENTS

(Signature)

If the Parties arc unable 10 reach unanimous agreement on the seicction of a mediator within ten (10) days after the date the Notice of Mediation
is Delivered, the mediator shall be sclected at mndom by draw by (he Party who Delivercd the Notice of Mediation and in the presence of Lhe
other Parties from among the names of the mediators submitied by the Parfies.

The Party who Delivered the Natice of Mediation, must nolify the mediator of his or ber appoiniment, within three (3) business days of such’
appointment and shall provide the mediator with a copy of this By-law. - -

Ifa Party fails (o submit names in accordance with Article 3.2, the Mediation will be deemed to have failed and the mediator selected by the other
Party or Parlies shall Deliver to all the Parties a Nolice stating thal the mediation hes failed and the notice may specify how the mediator's fees
and expenses are Lo be bome by the Parties, :
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SCHEDULE D

NOTICE OF ARBITRATION
DATE: ®

TO: [include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
FROM: finclude address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]

1. This matter is proceeding to arbitration because: {place an “X” in the appropriate
response)

() sixty (60) days have passed from the date of the Notice of Mediation, a copy of which is
attached hereto and the Parties have not selected a mediator; or

()  thirty (30) days have passed from the Delivery of the mediator’s notice indicating that the
mediation has failed. A copy of the mediator’s notice is attached hereto.

2. Proposed Arbitrators (include name and contact information):

(Signature)

The Parties shall unanimously appoint, within ten (10} days of Delivery of the Notice of Arbitration, an arbilvator from the names submitted. The
arhitrator shall be qualified and expericnced (o act w5 an arbiiralor.

I the Parlies are unable to reach unanimous agresment on the selcction of an arbitrator within ten {10} days after the dale the Notice of
Arbitration is Delivered, the arbitrator shall be selected at random by draw by the Party who Delivered the Notice of Arbitration and in the
presence of the other Parties from amang the names of the arbitrators submitied by the Partics.

1fa Perty fails to submit names in accordance with this Section, such Party shall be deemed to accepl es the arbitrator, the person selected, by the
other Party or Parlics, in accordance with this Section.

Within ten (10) days after Ihe date of the appointment of the erbitrater each Party shall Deliver 1o the arbitrater and to the other Party or Parties a
writien arbilration brief which shall sct forth each Party's position conceming the matters in dispule and shall include:

(a) a siatement of fact and law,
(b} copies of all relevant documents that are in that Party’s possession or within the Panty’s control;
(c) a statulory decleration of the Party presenting the brief declaring that the documents included in the brief are dll

the documents relevant to the Dispute that are in that Party’s possession or control, including those documents
that are or might be unfavourable to that Party’s position in the arbitration; and v

(d) a stalcment of the rolief sought,
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SCHEDULE E

RESFONSE TO NOTICE OF ARBITRATION

DATE: e
TO: [include address, telephone, fax number, and e-mail address, if known]
FROM: [include address, telephone, fax number, and ¢-mail address, if known]

1. Proposed Arbitrators (include name and contact information):

Note: You may propose an arbitrator who has been proposed by another Party.

(Signature)

The Partics shall unanimously appoint, within ten (10) days of Delivery of the Notice of Arbitralion, an arbitrator lrom the names submitied. The
arbitrator shall be quolified end experi  to act a9 an arbi ]

if the Partics are unable to reech unenimous agreement on the selection of mn arbitrator within ten (10) days after the date the Notice of
Arbitration is Delivered, the arbitrstor shall be selected &l random by drew by the Perty who Delivered the Notice of Arbitration and in the
presence of the other Parties from among the names of the atbitrators submitied by the Parties.

If a Party fails lo submit names in scoordance with this Section, such Party shall be deemed to accept as the arbitrator, the person sclected, by the
other Party or Parties, in socordance with this Section.

Within ten (10) days after the dete of the appointment of the arbitrator each Party shall Deliver 1o ihe arbitrator and to the other Party or Parties a
writien arbitration brief which shall set forth each Party's position conceming the matiers in dispute and shall include:

(a) a statement of fact and law;
(b) copics of ell relevant documents that are in that Party’s possession or within the Party’s control;
[(] a statutory declaration of the Party presenting the brief. declaring that the documents included in ihe brief are atl

the documents relevant to the Dispule that are in that Party’s possession or control, including those docusments
that are or might be unfavourable lo thel Party’s position in the arbitration; and

(d) a slatement of the relief songht.

7633034,1
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YORK REGIONAL STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

- BY-LAW NO. 6

Vista of Thornhill City Centre - 7 North Park Road, Thornhili Ontario L4J 0C9
Telephone: (905)-597-0953 Fax: (905)-597-0947
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CERTIFICATE IN RESPECT OF A BY-LAW
(Under subsection 56(9) of the Condominium Act, 1998)

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112 (known as the
"Corporation") certifies that:

1. The Copy of By-law No.6, attached as Schedule "A", is a true copy of the By-law.

2 The By-law was made in accordance with the Condominium Act, 1998,
3. The owners of a majority of the units of the Corporation have voted in favour of confirming the
By-law. .

DATED this 14™ day of May, 2012.

YORK REGION STANDARD
CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION
NO. 1112

Per:

Name : SAM GROSSMAN
Title: PRESIDENT

I;?é: JOCELYN ESTRIEN
e: SECRETARY

1/We have the authority to bind the
corporation

7808365.1
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BY-LAW NO. ¢

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

BE IT ENACTED as a By-law of York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1075 (the
"Corporation”) as follows:;

The schedule appended hereto as Schedule “A”™ shall constitute the standard unit(s) for
residential unit(s) for purposes of Section 99(5) of the Condominium Act, 1998,

York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112 hereby enacts the foregoing By-Law passed
by the board of directors and confirmed by a vote of owners who own not less than a majority of units, in
accordance with the Act.

WITNESS the corporate seal of the Corporation this 14" day of May, 2012.

YORK REGION STANDARD
CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION
NO. 1112

Per:

Name: SAM GROSSMAN
Title: PRESIDENT

Ny =)

N%IOC'ELYN ESTRIEN
Title: SECRETARY

I/We have the authority to bind the
corporation :

T808365.1
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SCHEDULE "A"

RESIDENTIAL UNIT CLASS - STANDARD UNIT

For the purpose of Section 99(5) of the Ontario Condominium Act, 1998, the Standard Unit is defined as
follows:

The boundaries of the Residential Units of all classes are as defined in the Declaration for York Region
Standard Condominium Corporation No, 1112.

Ceilings *8 FT ceiling, except PH floor, all LPH floors, 16 floor
and ground floor _

*White stippled ceilings throughout, except for the
kitchen, laundry and bathrooms, which are smooth and
painted with semi-gloss paint.

Walls eInterior walls painted with latex paint throughout, except
for the kitchen, bathrooms and all woodwork and trim
painted with semi-gloss paint.

*All load-bearing structural concrete columns, partitions,
framing along with all plumbing, electrical and venting
conduits that form part of the unit as described by the
Corporation’s Declaration

Doors slnterior doors hollow with brushed chrome finish
hardware
*Closet doors - mirrored stiding door in the foyer
- white laminate double sliding doors for
walk-in closets or interior doors hollow
with brushed chrome finish hardware, as

per original plans
Baseboards & Casings oMDF paint grade colonial style 4 %4” baseboards
*MDF 2 4” trim casings
Hardware sEntry door — unit side brushed chrome finish turning
handle
eInterior doors - brushed chrome finish turning handle
Wiring, Receptacles & Other *Washer and dryer wiring & receptacles, along with dryer

venting to exterior

*Hook-up and drain for washing machine

sstandard electrical stove outlet in the kitchen

*Rough-in for plumbing and electrical for automatic
dishwasher

*Smoke and heat detectors in each suite, as required by
law

¢Individual electrical service panel with circuit breakers | -
eIndividually controlled fan coil heating and air
conditioning equipment, as per original architectural plans
sAlarm ~ intrusion alarm on interior entry door. Ground
floor suites have intrusion alarm .also installed on all
exterior doors.

*Capped ceiling light outlet in the kitchen, bathrooms,
bedrooms, living room, den, walk-in closets and hallway
*Pre-wired for cable TV outlets in living room, den and
bedroom(s)

sPre-wired telephone outlets in living room, bedroom(s)
and kitchen :

*Cable outlet with broadband, high-speed internet access
sWhite Decora-style receptacles and switches throughout

Windows *Double glazed thermal windows with frame as per
original architectural plans, and only those components
that form part of the unit as described by the Corporation’s
Declaration

*Wood windowsills on all windows

7808365.1
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Kitchen

*Custom quality European-style cabinets with stained
solid wood doors and pressboard sides ‘

s(ranite countertop

*Ceramic tiles backsplash (4X4)

»Stainless steel double sink with single lever faucet and
vegetable spray

*Variable speed overhead exhaust fan vented to exterior

Main Bathroom *Melamine [aminate vanity cabinets

sLaminate countertop

sSingle white sink with single lever faucet

51t white acrylic soaker tub or shower stall as per original
plans, with single lever chrome faucet, chrome shower
head and pressure balance water temperature controls.

Tub and/or shower surround to the ceiling by ceramic tiles
(12X8). Shower stalls have glass enclosure.

ewhite low-flow, American standard toilet

sfull width vanity mirror

scxhaust fans in all bathrooms

sone towel bar

Powder Rooms (if applicable) » White low-flow, American standard toilet

*One pedestal sink with single lever faucet
*Above sink mirror as per original plans
*One towel bar

eExhaust fan

NOTE:

7808365.1

. Should a dispute/disagreement arise over the quality and/or finish of any item listed above

. Any of the aforementioned materials, models or brands may be replaced with materials,

models or brands that are of similar or better quality and finish, should the original
materials, models or brands not be available for any reason.

the final and unfettered determination of same shall be reserved to the board of directors,

- The Standard Unit shall not include any flooring material of any sort (i.e. without limiting

the generality of the foregoing, carpet, wood floor and/or tiles, and any underlying and
adhesive of any sort) unless same is specifically provided for above.

» The Standard Unit shall not include any appliances in any room.

. Reference to “plan” or “plans” is a reference to the architectural plans contained in the

Description registered in the Land Registry Office and/or the plans, as amended, if
applicable, which were filed with the local municipality or region and approved by such
local municipality or region for the construction of the condominium building(s).



Do Process Software « (416) 322-6111

.1 Province
of Document General
! ' @ Ontario [ Form 4 — Land Registration Reform Act 5297.7-20 D
— ~
;E%?é.?‘ar:{( gi;F‘!EtE: (1) Registry I:I Land Titles E (2) Page1 of 4 pages _—)
<
(3) Property Block Property Honat:
Identifier(s) 29643-0001 to 29643-0636 - inclusive S
Schedule ")
<
(4) Nature of Document
Y%én&.r‘}:gﬁ]é T Condominium By-law 7 (under Section 56(9) of the Condominium Act,
CERTIFICAT OE RECEPISSE 1998)
u (5) Consideration
5 | 0
% I\OV 2 5 202 il Dollars § Y,
YORK REGION \?)'.‘b (6) Description A
No.65
= LAND REQISTRAR ___REGISTRATEUR All Units and Common Elements comprising the property included in
i W York Region Standard Condominium Plan No. 1112
! City of Vaughan,
- Regional Municipality of York
| Land Titles Division of the York Region Registry Office ( No. 65)
New Property Identifiers P
See
Schedule
Executions _ )
N (7) This (a)Redescription : (b) Schedule for: h
itional: Document New Easement Additional
§§ﬁedu,e Contains: Plan/Sketch N i Description O paties [ other
L :
(8) This Document provides as follows: )
See attached Schedule
\_ Continued on Schedule

CQ} This Document relates to instrument number(s)

((10) Party(ies) (Set out Status or Interest)

J\__/@

Name(s) Dgte of Sianatuge
York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No,. 1112 e, 2020.5 105,23,
by its authorized solicitors, Horlick Levitt Di Lella LLP .

(11) Address . .
for Service ¢/o Management Office, 7 North Park Road, Thornhill, Ontario L4J 0C9 )
({1 2) Party(ies) (Set out Status or Interest) A
Name(s) Signature(s) Date of Signature
Y M D
(13) Address
\_ for Service )
r{14) Municipal Address of Property (15) Document Prepared by: Fees and Tax A
Registration Fee
7 North Park Road HORLICK LEVITT DI LELLALLP /'P (ﬂ ! l£<
Thornhill, Ontario 100 Sheppard Avenue East il
L4J 0C9 Suite 870
Toronto, Ontario
M2N 6N5
L A Total )

Document prepared using The Conveyancer



CERTIFICATE IN RESPECT OF A BY-LAW
(under subsection 14 (1) of Ontario Regulation 48/01 and subsection 56 (9) of the Condominium
Act, 1998, and referred to in subsection 38 (1) of Ontario Regulation 49/01)
Condominium Act, 1998

York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112 (known as the “Corporation”)
certifies that:

1. The copy of by-law number 7, attached as Schedule A, is a true copy of the by-law.

2.  The by-law was made in accordance with the Condominium Act, 1998.

3. (Please check the statement that applies)

X The majority of the owners present or represented by proxy at a meeting of owners have
voted in favour of confirming the by-law with or without amendment (if clause 56 (10) (a)
of the Condominium Act, 1998 and subsection 14 (2) of Ontario Regulation 48/01 apply).

4, (Please check the following statement, if the by-law is a joint by-law under section 59 of
the Condominium Act, 1998)

Dated this L0 _day of November, 2020.

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

Name: Sam Grossman
Title:  President

o Jonaltl STl

Name: Gérald Frank
Title: Vice-President

By: /’bl c)]fpém-/ |

Name: Itia’Golan
Title: Secretary

We have authority to bind the Corporation.




SCHEDULE A

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112
BY-LAW NO. 7

MEETINGS OF OWNERS AND VOTING VIA TELEPHONIC OR ELECTRONIC MEANS
Pursuant to subsection 52(1)(b)(iii) of the Condominium Act, 1998 and subsection 14(0.1)(p) of
Ontario Regulation 48/01 made under the Condominium Act, 1998

WHEREAS:

A The board of directors may, by by-law, authorize York Region Standard Condominium
Corporation No. 1112 (the “Corporation”) to allow votes at meetings of owners to be cast
by a recorded vote that is indicated by way of telephonic or electronic means in
accordance with subsection 52(1 )(b)(iii) of the Condominium Act, 1998 (the “Act”); and,

B. The board of directors may, by by-law, govern the manner in which an owner or a
mortgagee may be present at a meeting of owners or represented by proxy in accordance
with subsection 14(0.1)(p) of Ontario Regulation 48/01 made under the Act,

NOW THEREFORE By-law No. 4 of the Corporation shall be amended by this By-law No. 7 of
the Corporation, as follows:

1. By deleting Section 9.6, Method of Voting, and replacing it with the following:

9.6 Method of Attendance and Method of Voting

(a) Method of Attendance
(1) Electronic Meetings of Owners

The board of directors may, by resolution of the board, determine that any annual
general or special meeting of owners be attended by owners, mortgagees and any other
persons entitled to attend the meeting, by telephenic or electronic means, referred to as
an “Electronic Meeting of Owners” and may specify the telephonic or electronic means
of attending the meeting.

(2) Combined Electronic/In-person Meetings of Owners

The board of directors may, Dy resolution of the board, determine that any annual
general or special meeting of owners be attended by owners, mortgagees and any other
persons entitled to attend the meeting, either in person or by telephonic or electronic
means, referred to as a “Combined Electronic/In-person Meeting of Owners” and may
specify the telephonic or electronic means of attending the meeting.

(3) In-person Meetings of Owners

The board of directors may, by resolution of the board, determine that any annual
general or special meeting of owners be attended by owners, mortgagees and any other
persons entitled to attend the meeting in person only.

(4) Representation by Proxy

Notwithstanding anything above in this by-law, owners and mortgagees shall be entitled
to be represented at any meeting of owners by proxy.

(5) Electronic Attendance

An owner or a mortgagee who, personally or by proxy, votes at the meetin g by telephonic
or electronic means or establishes a communications link to the meeting shall be
deemed to be present at the meeting or represented by proxy, as the case may be.

L N




{b) Method of Voting

(1) At any annual general or special meeting of owners, any question shall be decided
by a show of hands or on a recorded vote, which may be requested by a person entitled
to attend such meeting as aforesaid either before or premptly after the vote. Unless a
recorded vote is so requested, a declaration by the Chairperson that such question has
by the show of hands been carried is prima facie proof of the fact, without proof of the
number of votes recorded in favour of, or against, any such question. A demand for a
recorded vote once given may be withdrawn. Notwithstanding the above, the voting for
the election of directors shall be by recorded vote only.

A recorded vote may be:

(i) marked on a ballot cast personally or by proxy;
(i) marked on an instrument appointing a proxy; or,
(iii) indicated by telephonic or electronic means.

“telephonic or electronic means” means any means that uses the telephone or any
other electronic or other technological means to transmit information or data, including
telephone calls, fax, e-mail, automated touch-tone telephone system, computer or
computer networks.”

{2) The board of directors may, by resolution of the board, specify the telephonic or
electronic means of indicating a recorded vote at any annual general or special
meeting of owners.

2. Definitions: All terms used in this by-law shall have the meaning ascribed to them in the Act,
as amended, or any successor legislation.

3. Headings: The headings in the body of this by-law form no part hereof but shall be deemed
to be inserted for convenience of reference only.

4. Statutory References: Any references to a section or sections of the Actin this by-law shall
be read and construed as a reference to the identical or similarly appropriate section or
sections (as the case may be) of any successor legislation.

The forgoing by-law is hereby enacted as By-law No. 7 of York Region Standard Condominium
Corporation No. 1112, said by-law having been passed by the board of directors on the 30* day
of July, 2020, and duly approved by the majority of owners present or represented by proxy at a
meeting of owners voting in favour of confirming it on the 20" day of October, 2020, without
variation, pursuant to the previsions of the Act.

DATED this [ & day of November, 2020.

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

By: /%/\9

Name: Sam Grossman
Title:  President

By: jMM%M

Name: Gerald Frank
Title:  Vice-President

By: r@éd JH//% g

Name: Itia Golan
Titla* Canratamy




Vista of Thornhill City Centre

YORK REGIONAL STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

RULES &
REGULATIONS

Y.R.S.C.C. 1112

Vista of Thornhill City Centre - 7 North Park Road, Thornhill Ontario L4J 0C9
Telephone: (905)-597-0953 Fax: (905)-597-0947



Definitions

“Act’ shall mean the Condominium Act, 1998, S.0. 1998, c. 19 and any regulations and amendments
thereto.

‘Board” shall mean the Board of Directors of the Corporation.
“Corporation” shall mean York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112, The Vista.
“‘Guest(s)” shall include any Owner's or Resident's guest(s), visitor(s), or invitee(s).

“Management’ shall mean the property manager, including his staff, hired and supervised by the
Board pursuant to a property management agreement.

“‘Owner(s)’shall mean the owner(s) of a unit.

‘Resident(s)’ shall mean any person occupying a unit, including without limitation, the unit owner,
members of his/her family, tenants, servants and agents.

Rules for Vista

General

a) No Owner or Resident or his Guest(s) shall injure, harass, threaten, annoy or initiate any
defamatory, threatening, hateful or discriminatory statement or action, or participate in any
illegal or harmful conduct toward any other Owner, Resident, his Guest(s), Management, or
any of the Corporation’s Representatives.

b) Any losses, costs or damages, including reasonable legal fees incurred by the Corporation by
reason of a breach of any Rules in force from time to time by any Owner or Resident or his
Guest(s), shall be borne and/or paid for by the Owner of the Resident’s unit (regardless of
whether the Owner is a Resident within the meaning of these Rules) and may be recovered by
the Corporation against such Owner in the same manner as common expenses.

c) All Owners, Residents and their Guests shall hold harmless the Corporation, Management,
and their officers and employees from any and all liability and from all claims and demands
arising out of misuse of the facilities, damage or injuries to person(s), and all suits which may
be brought out against the Corporation, Management, and their officers and employees in
respect of any such claim or demand and pay all judgments that may be rendered against the
Corporation, Management, and their officers and employees on account thereof.

d) In addition to familiarizing themselves with these Rules, all Owners and Residents shall also
be familiar with the Shared Facilities Rules governing the use of the common elements that
are shared by Residents of both The Vista and The Beverley.

Proper Use of Common Elements

a) The exterior surfaces of all units are part of the common elements. No painting or other
permanent changes shall be made to the exteriors of the units, including but not limited to
railings, doors, windows, or any other part of the common elements, without written consent of
the Board. Residents may place temporary decorations for religious holidays and other
occasions on the exteriors of the front doors of their units for reasonable periods of time
around those occasions. A Resident may affix Christmas lights and decorations to the interior
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surfaces of his unit windows provided such decorations are affixed no earlier than December
15" and removed by January 15" and provided that the quantity and type of same are
approved by the Board.

b) No sale or auction of goods or personal property is allowed in the common elements or on the
property.

c) Each Owner shall comply with the Act, the Declaration, the By-laws and the Rules, and shall
ensure that all members of his family, Residents, Guests, visitors, tenants, invitees and
licensees comply with same.

d) No person shall use the common elements, without the written consent of the Board, for any
commercial purpose including but not limited to charging for admission, sale of goods and or
services, personal services, canvassing, solicitation, or business meetings. No person shall
distribute advertising or publicity material or shall canvass or solicit in the building on a door-
to-door basis except as provided by law in connection with political campaigns.

e) No person shall create on any part of the common elements any noise or other nuisance
which, in the sole opinion of the Management or the Board does or may unreasonably interfere
with the comfort of Residents or their use or enjoyment of any part of thee Corporation
property.

f) No person shall loiter, play, entertain or conduct business in the lobby.

) No person shall gamble on any of the common elements.

) No changes shall be made to any of the landscaping associated with the ground floor patios

without the written consent of the Board.

i) Roller-skating, skate-boarding, bicycling, ball throwing, street games (i.e. ball hockey, soccer)
and other similar activities are strictly prohibited upon the common elements and within any
parking unit(s).

j) No person shall take or remove, temporarily or otherwise, any property of the Corporation
including, without limitation, equipment, furniture or supplies, except upon the order of
Management or the Board.

Consumption of Food and Beverages

a) No person shall consume any alcoholic or non-alcoholic beverages or any food on any
common element, other than in the party room and on exclusive use common areas, except as
permitted in the Rules governing specific aspects of the common elements.

Smoking

a) Smoking is prohibited at all times in all elevators and on all common elements, including any
area within 15 feet of any entrance or exit, unless otherwise specified.

b) The Smoke Free Ontario Act prohibits smoking anywhere in the common areas. Under this
Act any individual convicted of an offence could be subject to a maximum fine of $4,000 for a
first offence and $100,000 for a fourth offence or more.

Notices

a) The notice boards installed in the Mail Room shall be used by Management to advise Owners
and Residents of important events. No advertisements, signs or notices shall be displayed in
or on any part of the common elements except notices displayed or authorized by
Management. Unauthorized notices will be removed by Management.

Page 3



b) No Owner or Resident shall place any notices or signs on the windows of his unit or on any
part of the common elements where such signs would be visible from anywhere outside the
units.

c) Elevator notice boards are for the exclusive use of Management to share important
Corporation information. No person shall place anything on any elevator notice board without
the written consent of the Board.

Humidifiers
a) Owners and Residents shall not operate humidifiers in their units. Humidifiers cause excessive

moisture that can cause damage to walls and can cause mould.

Alterations to Unit

a)

b)

No Owner or Resident shall make any alterations, additions or improvements (collectively
referred to hereinafter as “alterations”) to his unit, excluding painting and decorating, without
prior written permission from the Board. As well, no Resident who does not own his unit shall
make any alterations to his unit without prior permission from the unit Owner.

The Board shall consider all details of the proposed alterations and whether such alterations
would have an adverse effect on the common elements or on other units in determining
whether such alterations are to be permitted.

No portion of a unit shall be partitioned or divided for use as a single family residence.

All work within a unit, excepting emergency repairs, shall be conducted Monday to Friday only
(excluding statutory and religious holidays), between 9:00 am and 5:00 pm.

Any Owner or Resident making alterations to a unit shall arrange for the contractor to remove
all waste and discarded material produced by such alterations from the building and the
property. Such waste shall not be discarded by way of the garbage chute.

No Owner or Resident shall overload existing electrical circuits in his unit or alter in any way
the amperage of the existing circuit breakers in his unit.

Balconies/Open Terraces

a)

Some parts of the common elements are designated in the Declaration as being for the
exclusive use of the Residents of specified units, including but not limited to balconies, patios
and terraces. Exclusive use common elements shall not be partitioned, subdivided or altered
in any way without the written consent of the Board.

Only seasonal furniture shall be permitted on the balconies, patios or terraces.

No plants other than securely placed non-hanging plants shall be placed on balconies, patios
or terraces.

No type of floor covering shall be affixed to balconies, patios or terraces as the installation of
such flooring can cause structural damage. Should any Owner or Resident of a unit install any
type of floor covering on that unit’'s exclusive use common elements, the Owner of that unit will
bear responsibility for the cost of any future repairs or maintenance of the structural slab
underlying the balcony, patio or terrace. In the alternative, the Board may order the floor
covering to be removed and, if the Owner does not comply with such order, may remove the
floor covering itself. In the event that the Board orders the floor covering removed or removes
the floor covering, the Owner of the unit will bear responsibility for the cost of the removal as
well as the cost of any repairs to the structural slab underlying the balcony, patio or terrace.
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e) No barbecues or similar apparatuses shall be used or placed by any person on balconies,
patios or terraces.

f) No hanging or drying of clothes shall be permitted on any balcony, patio or terrace.

g) No balcony, patio or terrace shall be used for any activity that, in the sole opinion of
Management or the Board does or may interfere with the use or enjoyment of any other unit or
of the common elements by Residents.

h) No part of any balcony, patio or terrace shall be painted except by the Corporation. No
apparatus of any kind, including but not limited to supports for flower boxes, shall be installed
on the railing of any balcony, patio or terrace.

Bicycles

a) No person shall bring a bicycle into the elevators or units or onto the common elements. All
bicycles shall be taken to and stored in the bicycle storage areas located in the garage or
other designated areas.

b) Bicycles shall not be stored on balconies, patios or terraces.

Television Antennas and Satellite Dishes

a)

No television antenna, radio antenna, satellite dish, aerial or similar structure or any
appurtenances thereto shall rest upon, be erected on or fastened to any common element,
including the exterior wall of any unit, or any part of any balcony, patio or terrace.

Door Locks

a)

b)

c)

No Owner or Resident shall install any additional door locks without written consent of the
Board. However, a safety chain or other device that can only be locked from inside the unit is
acceptable if the Owner wishes to install one.

The Act gives the Corporation the right of entry to any unit to perform its duties. Therefore, if a
lock is added or changed and Management cannot gain access to the unit in an emergency,
the Owner of that unit shall be held fully liable for any damage that might result and the cost of
repairing such damage.

Building access doors shall not be left unlocked or wedged open for any reason.

Window Coverings

a)

b)

c)

All windows shall have drapes, blinds or shutters, and the exterior facing surface of such
window coverings shall be white or off-white in colour to ensure that the exterior of the building
is uniformly attractive. Any Owner or Resident who wishes to have window coverings in other
colours for the interior decor of the unit shall use white or off-white liners on such coverings to
preserve the exterior appearance of the building. No Owner or Resident shall cause anything
to be affixed, attached to, hung, displayed or placed on the inside of any window other than
drapes, blinds or shutters specifically designed for the window, including but not limited to
flags, banners, sheets, slogans, foil, wood, plastic, or metal.

No Owner or Resident shall install reflective material on any window. Installation of reflective
material may cause a heat build-up which might damage or shatter the window.

No Owner or Resident shall install solar film on any window without prior written approval of
the Board. Once such film has been installed, the Corporation will not be held liable for any
cracked window if that window is covered in the solar film. The Corporation will replace the
cracked window at the Owner's or Resident’s expense. The Corporation will not be
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responsible for the re-installation of the solar film on any window that may need to be replaced
for any reason.

Housekeeping

a) No Owner or Resident shall shake mops, brooms or dusters out of windows or doors or off of
balconies, patios or terraces.

b) No Owner or Resident shall throw anything out of a window or door or place anything on the
common elements, including an outside window sill, such that it might fall or be projected from
the common elements.

c) Owners and Residents shall keep exclusive use common elements, including balconies, patios
and terraces, free from clutter and litter.

d) Shopping carts are not permitted in the building or on the common elements.

e) Any Owner or Resident who discovers insects in a unit or in any of the common areas shall
promptly inform the Concierge so that pest control can be called to clear the problem.
Responsibility for the charges associated with this service shall be determined by the Board, at
its sole discretion, based on the circumstances.

f) No Owner or Resident shall keep any flammable materials or any toxic or offensive goods or
substances in his unit. These toxins can create fire and poisoning hazards.

g) No Owner or Resident shall overload existing electrical circuits or plumbing facilities in his unit.

h) No auction or garage sale shall be held in any unit.

i) No portable or window air-conditioning unit, or any appurtenances thereto, shall be installed
within any unit or on any common element.

J) No person shall bring or keep a natural Christmas tree or any part thereof into thee building.

Security

a) All Owners and Residents shall notify Management immediately if they witness any suspicious
individuals or activities anywhere on the property at any time.

b) No Owner or Resident shall allow any person to enter the building whom that Owner or
Resident does not know or is not expecting.

c) No Owner, Resident or Guest shall unlock or prop open any exterior door.

d) Additional access transmitters ("key fobs”) for building doors, beyond those supplied to each
unit, may be obtained from Management for a non-refundable fee. The maximum permitted
key fobs for a three-bedroom unit is five, for a two-bedroom unit is four, and for a one bedroom
unit is three. No key fobs shall be issued if such issue would exceed this maximum.
Additionally, the Board shall have, at its sole discretion, the authority to restrict the number of
building access keys and/or fobs.

e) All Owners and Residents shall immediately notify Management if a garage remote or key fob
is lost or stolen so that the access transmitter may be deactivated. Replacements may be
obtained from Management for a non-refundable fee.

f) Non-Resident Owners shall not acquire more than one key fob. Any key fob issued to a non-
Resident Owner shall be programmed to allow access only to the front and rear entrances to
the building.

Safety
a) Residents shall update their Resident Information Forms annually and upon any change in

their living arrangements. This includes information such as the name of new children or
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babies living with them, new license plate numbers and new business telephone numbers.
This information will be kept confidential and used only if requested by emergency personnel.

b) Residents are encouraged to advise the Concierge staff of any extended absence from the
unit (such as for a vacation) so that staff will know, in the event of an emergency, that the
Resident’s unit is unoccupied.

c) All corridors shall be kept free of obstructions including but not limited to shoes, boots, baby
carriages and/or boxes. They are a danger in cases of an emergency and will be removed by
Management after one written notice to the Owner or Resident.

d) No Owner or Resident shall tamper with, paint over, tape over, remove the batteries or in any
way hinder the use of the fire system devices (speakers, heat detectors, smoke alarms, etc.)
that are in his unit. Should any of these devices bear evidence of tampering, the Owner of the
unit will be responsible for the cost of replacing such device(s).

Unclaimed Property

a) Any property found on the common elements that can be identified as belonging to a Resident
or former Resident and either appears to be abandoned or is not claimed within a reasonable
period of time after such person is requested to take possession of sae shall be disposed of
by Management in such manner as it deems appropriate in its sole discretion.

b) Any property found on the common elements that cannot be identified as belonging to a
particular person shall be held by Management for a period of 30 days, during which
Management shall, by posted notice, notify Residents that such property is available to be
collected by its rightful owner upon reasonable identification of the property. If the property
remains unclaimed after 30 days have passed, it shall be disposed of by Management in such
manner as it deems appropriate in its sole discretion.

c) The Corporation, its employees and agents shall not be held liable for loss, damage or
destruction of ay such property while same is in the possession of Management.

Clothing

a) All Owners, Residents and Guests shall wear proper attire when in all public areas, including
the lobby, hallways, entrances and elevators. Shoes and shirts must be worn at all times.

Noise

a) Owners and Residents shall not hit the walls on their way to or from the elevators. Some units
share a common wall with the hallway and Residents of these units will be disturbed by these
noises.

b) Owners and Residents or any person hired by same shall not use power tools or hammers
outside the hours of 9:00 am to 5:00 pm, from Monday to Friday only, excluding statutory and
religious holidays.

c) No Owner, Resident or Guest shall create an unreasonable amount of noise which would
disturb the comfort and quiet enjoyment of the property by other Residents and their Guests.
High volume on stereos, radios and televisions are obvious examples of things to be avoided,
but other noises such as dog barking, sliding pieces of furniture or wearing heavy soled shoes
on wooden floors can also be a nuisance and annoyance to others. Residents shall place and
use area rugs on all hard surface flooring in their units with the exception of kitchens,
bathrooms and utility rooms.
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k)

two weeks prior to the tenant move in date. Both of these documents shall be supplied by
Management upon request of an Owner.

The Owner shall provide his tenant with a copy of the Corporation’s Declaration, By-laws and
Rules.

Tenants assume the rights of Residents with regard to the common elements. As such, any
Owner who has leased his unit to a tenant does not maintain a right to use the common
elements.

No animal, livestock or fowl, other than a “pet”, shall be kept on the property.

For the purpose of these Rules, a “pet” shall be defined as a dog, domestic cat, caged bird,
fish, hamster or guinea pig.

Excepting fish, no Owner or Resident shall keep more than one pet. No pet may exceed
twenty-five pounds (25Ibs) in weight at the age of maturity. The Board or Management may at
their sole discretion request proof of the weight of the pet, which shall be provided without
delay in the form of a veterinarian’s certificate or equivalent document, failing which the pet
shall be deemed to exceed twenty-five pounds in weight. Any pet which exceeds this size limit
shall be ordered removed by the Board.

Each unit Owner or Resident shall submit a Pet Registration Form which includes all pertinent
information as listed on the form, a copy of current vaccinations and a recent photograph of
the pet. These forms can be found at the Concierge Desk.

Pets shall be kept clean and groomed at all times and may not be permitted to create any
inconvenience, noise or disturbance or soiling on or about the premises. Paws must be wiped
on entering the building.

If a pet causes any damage to the common elements or any additional cleaning or
maintenance is necessary, the Owner of the unit in which the pet is resident will be
responsible for the costs.

No pets shall be allowed under any circumstances in the public or common areas of the
building, except to enter or exit the building. Pets are not allowed in the recreational areas.
When transporting the pet from the unit, the Owner or Resident shall either carry the pet or
hold it on a short leash.

An Owner’s or Resident’s pet shall at all times wear a collar with proper identification
containing the name and address of its owner.

Pets are not allowed on the balcony unattended. An Owner or Resident or his Guests shall not
permit any pet to cause a disturbance from any of the common elements, including any
balcony, patio, or terrace.

When a pet pollutes the grounds and/or common areas, its Owner or Resident shall clean up
after it immediately. Failure to comply with this rule will result in a charge for the removal of the
excrement from the property, chargeable against the Owner in whose unit the pet is resident
and such charge shall be collectible in the same manner as common expenses in arrears.

No breeding of pets for sale shall be carried on, in or around any unit.

Disturbing noises or other objectionable behaviour by pets may result in those pets being
deemed a nuisance by the Board.

No pets that are likely to be dangerous by virtue of their species or breed, at the sole and
reasonable discretion of the Board, shall be kept on the property. No animal shall be kept
illegally or contrary to any federal, provincial or municipal law, regulation, by-law or ordinance.
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d) No noise caused by any instrument or other device or equipment, which in the opinion of the
Board disturbs the comfort of other Residents, shall be permitted.

e) The door to each unit has a door closer that prevents the door from slamming. Residents shall
notify the Concierge if the door closer is broken or needs adjustment.

f) No Owner or Resident shall permit his children or the children of any Guest of his unit to play
in any hallway.

g) As noted above, all construction work within a unit, excepting emergency repairs, must be
conducted from Monday to Friday only (excluding statutory and religious holidays), between
9:00 am and 5:00 pm.

Elevator

a) Any Owner or Resident moving any items with the elevator shall reserve the elevator. Owners
and Residents can pick up the appropriate application and rules at the Concierge Desk.
Elevators may be booked from 9:00 am to 6:00 pm, Monday to Saturday, for up to three hours.
No move shall be made outside these hours, on a Sunday, or on any statutory holiday.

b) A refundable security/damage deposit in such amounts as determined by the Board from time
to time in the form of money order or certified cheque payable to the Corporation shall be
deposited with Management when making the reservation and signing the elevator reservation
application.

c) The Owner or Resident reserving the elevator shall notify Management and request an
inspection of the elevator immediately prior to using the elevator. Upon completion of such
use, the Owner or Resident shall forthwith request a re-inspection of the elevator and affected
common elements. The Owner or Resident reserving the elevator shall be liable for the full
cost of all repairs to any damage to the elevator or common elements caused by such use.

d) Management shall have the right to withhold all or part of the security deposit as it deems
necessary to pay for the cost of repairs. If the cost of repairs should be less than the amount
of the security deposit, the balance shall be returned to the Owner or Resident reserving the
elevator. If the cost of repairs exceeds the amount of the security deposit, and the Owner or
Resident reserving the elevator still owns or resides in the building, the full cost of repairs less
the amount of security deposit shall be assessed against the unit owned by or occupied by the
person reserving the elevator as a common expense and shall be collected as such.

Leased Units

a) No unit shall be used for any commercial or transient use, which shall include, but not be
limited to
(1) The carrying on of a business;
(ii) Use as a hotel, boarding or lodging house; or
(iii) Use under any arrangement commonly known as time sharing.

b) For the purposes of this Rule, any transient use of a unit includes, but without limiting its
general meaning, more than one short-term use or occupancy of a particular unit for a period
of less than twelve months in any particular period of twelve consecutive months.

¢) The initial term of any lease, sublease, or licence of a unit shall be for a period of not less than
twelve months, except where the Owner intends to complete a sale of the unit upon the expiry
of the lease, in which case the lease may be for a term of less than twelve months.

d) Any Owner who intends to lease his unit shall provide the Corporation with a copy of the
Resident’s Information Form and an executed copy of the Tenant’s Undertaking Form at least
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0)

Any pet which is deemed a nuisance by the Board or which is deemed by the Board to be in
violation of any other rule shall be ordered removed by the Board. Any Owner or Resident
who keeps a pet on the property or any part thereof shall, within two weeks of receipt of a
written notice from the Board or Management requiring the removal of such pet, permanently
remove such pet from the property.

Sale of Units

a)

b)

An Owner who wishes to offer his or her unit for sale through a realtor shall inform and explain
to the realtor the applicable condominium Rules which shall be followed.

Realtors shall be admitted to the building by the Owner personally, or the Owner shall have
provided the realtor with a key to the unit and specifically authorized the realtor in writing to
enter the building and unit. No staff member shall open any unit for a realtor.

Open houses are not allowed and no sign advertising an Open House shall be placed on the
property.

Lock boxes shall not be placed on the unit door, on any stairway railing or on any of the
common elements.

The Owner may not leave the unit door key at the front desk. Any prospective buyer of a unit
shall be accompanied, at all times while in the building, by either a realtor or the Owner.
Common element areas shall not be shown to prospective buyers by Management or the
Concierge staff. Realtors and prospective buyers shall not enter the Recreation Center in
order to protect the privacy of other Residents.

Garbage Disposal and Recycling

a)

There is a garbage disposal room on each floor. All Residents are encouraged to use the
garbage chute for any kind of kitchen waste. Recyclable goods shall be disposed of according
to the instructions in place.

Garbage shall be put in plastic bags and securely tied. Supermarket plastic bags are most
suitable for this purpose because they are not large and will not get wedged in the chute.
Residents are encouraged to double bag their garbage to avoid spills onto the hallway carpet
and for cleanliness in the chutes. All Residents using the garbage chute shall ensure that any
garbage goes all the way into the chute, past the flap, and falls through.

The garbage chutes shall not be used from 11:00 pm to 7:00 am.

Garbage shall not be left on the floor of the refuse room or in the vicinity of the refuse room.
Pet litter shall not be disposed of in the garbage chute. It must be brought down to the
recycling room.

Corrugated cartons and large boxes shall be broken down and placed in the recycling room on
the ground level.

Storage Lockers

a)

b)

No storage locker shall be used for the storage of dangerous, noxious, inflammable or
explosive materials, or for any other purpose that might constitute a nuisance or danger to
Owners, Residents, Guests, or any part of the property.

No person shall store anything above, on, or outside a locker. Effects stored in any locker shall
not be placed close to any sprinkler head or hung from any pipe or beam.
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YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112
(the “Corporation”)

CANNABIS RULE

Preamble

WHEREAS the Corporation's board of directors may, in accordance with Section 58 of the
Condominium Act, 1998 (the “Act’), enact rules respecting the use of the units within the
Corporation to:

(a) promote the safety, security or welfare of the owners and of the property and assets of the
Corporation; or,

(b) prevent the unreasonable interference with the use and enjoyment of the common
elements, the units, or the assets of the Corporation,

AND WHEREAS cannabis smoking and second-hand smoke from burning cannabis are
dangerous and can also be a nuisance that unreasonably interferes with the use and enjoyment
by others of the common elements;

AND WHEREAS the cultivating or growing of cannabis plants presents a risk of resulting humidity,
condensation, and mould in the units that cultivate or grow the plants;

AND WHEREAS this rule shall be interpreted and applied in accordance with the applicable
provisions of the Ontario Human Rights Code regarding accommodating persons with disability
related needs:

AND WHEREAS it is intended that this preamble shall form an integral part of this rule;

NOW THEREFORE the Corporation’s board of directors hereby enacts the following Cannabis
Rule:

Definitions
For this rule:

1.01 “Smoking Cannabis” is defined as the holding or inhaling of lit or burning cannabis to
inhale the smoke that is created.

1.02 “Vaping” is defined as creating or inhaling the vapour produced by an electronic
cigarette or similar device.

1.03 “Production of Cannabis” is defined as obtaining cannabis by any method or process,
including by manufacturing, synthesis, altering its chemical or physical properties by any
means, or cultivating, propagating or harvesting cannabis or any living thing from which
cannabis may be extracted or otherwise obtained.

1.04 “Units” is defined in accordance with the Corporation’s declaration.



No Smoking or Vaping Cannabis on Common Elements and Shared Facilities

2. Smoking or Vaping cannabis or any illegal substance is prohibited on all indoor and all
outdoor common element areas, including all exclusive-use common elements such as
balconies, terraces and patios as well as the Shared Facilities.

No Producing Cannabis

3. The Production of Cannabis is prohibited in all Units and on all indoor and all outdoor
common element areas, including all exclusive-use common elements such as balconies,
terraces and patios as well as the Shared Facilities.

The foregoing rule is hereby enacted by York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No.
1075, said rule having been passed by the board of directors pursuant to section 58 of the Act.
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RULES SHARED FACILITIES
Vista and Beverley

DEFINITIONS

“Act” shall mean the Condominium Act, 1998, S.0. 1998, ¢. 19 and any regulations and
amendments thereto.

“‘Boards” shall mean the Boards of Directors of the Corporations.

“Corporations” shall mean York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112, Vista,
and York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1075, Beverley.

“Guest(s)” shall include any Owner’s or Resident's guest(s), visitor(s), or invitee(s).

“Management” shall mean the property manager, including his/her staff, hired and supervised
by the Boards pursuant to a property management agreement.

“Owner(s)"shall mean the owner(s) of a unit.

“Resident{s)” shall mean any person occupying a unit, including without limitation the unit
owner, members of his/her family, tenants, servants and agents.

“Shared Facilities Committee” shall mean the Shared Facilities Committee which is comprised
of members drawn in equal numbers from each of the Boards and which is responsible for the
management of the Shared Facilities described herein.

‘“The BVC" shall substitute for the name “Shared Facilities Committee”.

GENERAL RULES

a) These Rules govern the use of the Shared Facilities of Vista, YRSCC No. 1112, located
at 7 North Park Road, Thornhill, Ontario, and Beverley, YRSCC No. 1075, located at 15
North Park Road, Thornhill, Ontario.

b) These Rules have been developed to promote the safety, seéurity and welfare of all
Owners, Residents and Guests; to provide an atmosphere of quist enjoyment for all
Residents and Guests; and to provide for the protection of all property.

¢) Every Owner shall comply with these Rules and shall require all members of his family,

Residents, Guests, visitors, tenants, invitees and licensees to his unit to comply with
these Rules.
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d)

g)

h)

)
k)

All Residents and their Guests of both Vista and Beverley shall have equal right to the
use of and access to the Recreational Facilities regardless of their building of residence,
subject to applicable restrictions herein.

Owners who lease their units to tenants and do not themselves live in either Vista or
Beverley shall not retain any rights to use any of the Recreational Facilities.

The Recreational Facilities shall be used in strict accordance with any authorized sign(s)
posted by Management setting out permitted uses. All Residents and Guests shall use
the Recreational Facilities at their own risk. The Boards and Management hereby
disclaim any responsibility and liability for any loss, damage or injury suffered by anyone
using or traveling through the Shared Facilities, whether as a result of any negligence or
otherwise, and each of the Corporations, their respective Boards and Management shall
be fully indemnified and saved harmless with respect to (and be released from) any loss,
costs, damage and/or liability whatsoever arising or incurred in connection with any
injury or damage to persons or property occasioned by the use of the Shared Facilities
by any Owner, Resident(s) and/or Guest(s).

No person shall modify any aspect of the Shared Facilities discussed herein without
authorization of the Shared Facilities Committee.

No person shall use any of the Shared Facilities for any place of worship or any
commercial purpose including, but not limited to, charging for admission, sale or auction
of goods and/or services, personal services, canvassing, solicitation, and business
meetings. No service provider shall place advertisements on any notice board provided
for the display of residents’ advertisements without the authorization of Management.

No person shall use or consume any alcoholic or non-alcoholic beverages or any food in
any of the Shared Facilities other than in the Party Room (with the exception of bottled
water).

No person shall gamble on any of the Shared Facilities.

No person shall smoke in ahy of the Shared Facilities. Any person violating this rule is
liable to be convicted under the Smoke Free Ontario Act and could be subject to a -
maximum fine of $4,000 for a first offence and $10,000 for a fourth offence or more.

No person shall ride, wheel or carry a bicycle in or through any of the Shared Facilities
except the Garage, and only then for the purpose of taking such bicycle to or from the
designated bicycle storage area. No person shall bring a commercial shopping cart in or
through any of the Shared Facilities. As well, no person shall ride or use a skateboard,
roller skates or blades, a scooter or any other similar wheeled contrivance in or through
any of the Shared Facilities.

m) No pet deemed by the Shared Facilities Committee, at its sole and absclute discretion,

to be a nuisance to users of any of the Shared Facilities shall be brought or allowed to
be on any of the Shared Facilities by any person. For the purpose of these Rules, a
“pet” shall be defined as a dog, domestic cat, caged bird, fish, hamster or guinea pig.
No animal whatsoever, aside from those defined as pets, shall be brought or allowed to
be in any of the Shared Facilities.
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THE CONCIERGE

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

g)

h)

)

Residents and Guests shall not call the Concierge Desk unnecessarily. Residents and
Guests shall refrain from asking Concierge staff to make outside calls on their behalf
from the Concierge phone. Concierge Desk telephones shall be used by the Concierge
and Management only.

The Concierge has the authority to act on behalf of the Corporations to enforce the
Rules and Regulations of the Corporations. The Concierge and other security personnel
have the authority to restrict Owners, Residents or Guests from using any of the Shared
Facilities. o ' -

The Concierge Desk is staffed 24 hours per day, 7 days per week.

The Concierge and Management are the only persons authorized to operate any
controls at the Concierge Desk. No Owner, Resident or Guest shall operate such
controls under any circumstances.

The Concierge keeps a log of standing authorizations for deliveries and cleaning staff
and/or trades. No unit shall be entered for the purpose of delivering goods or allowing
entry of repair or service personnel without signed authorization by the Owner or
Resident for such entry.

The Concierge keeps a Visitor's Register for Guests who have gained advance written
authorization from an Owner or Resident to enter the building in the absence of same.
Such Guests shall show proper identification to the Concierge and shall sign the Visitor's
Register upon entering and leaving the building.

Small deliveries, if properly wrapped, will be accepted on a Resident’'s behalf by the
Concierge. No Resident shall leave personal property with the Concierge. Neither the
Concierge nor the Corporations are responsible for loss of or damage to any delivered
goods or personal property that are left with the Concierge or on any common element.

The Concierge shall not accept delivery of large objects and shall not leave the
Concierge Desk to escort such deliveries to a Resident’s uriit under any circumstances.
As such, Residents shall arrange for the delivery of any large objects to take place at
such time that the Resident can accept delivery personally..

The Concierge shall be immediately notified of any mechanical or other malfunctions on
any common element or in any unit so that such malfunctions can be properly logged
and repaired.

During an Open House, the Realtor or his associate shall remain in the main lobby
throughout, and the Realtor shall accompany all clients through all showings. All
Realtors must be authorized by the Owner to enter the building and the Owner’s unit.
The Concierge shall not accept keys from any Realtor. No lock boxes are permitted on
the premises and no Real Estate adverlising signs are allowed on the property.
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RECREATION CENTRE

a)

The Recreation Centre includes an indoor Swimming Pool, an indoor Whirlpool, Men's
and Ladies’ Change Rooms and Saunas, a Billiard Room, an Exercise Room, and a
Multi-Media Room. All rules herein regarding Shared Facilities apply to all parts of the
Recreation Centre, except as otherwise noted.

No pet shall be brought or allowed to be in the Recreation Centre.
Up to two Guests per unit may use the recreational facilities at any one time. Guests
shall either be accompanied by an adult Resident at all times, or registered personally

with the Concierge.

No food or drinks are permitted in the recreational facilities except water, which is
permitted if kept in a covered plastic container.

No children under the age of 14 shall use any of the Recreational Facilities unless
accompanied/supervised by an adult Resident.

Swimming Pool

a)

The Swimming Pool shall be used at the user’'s own risk. The Board, agents of the
Corporations, and employees of the Corporations shall not be responsible for accidents,
lost or stolen personal property, or any other damages howsoever caused.

The Swimming Pcol is normally available daily from 6:00 am to 12:00 noon and from
1:00 pm to 12:00 midnight. These hours of availability may change as needed at the
sole discretion of the Shared Facilities Committee.

No person shall poliute the Swimming Pool by spitting, blowing his nose, relieving his
bodily functions or in any other manner. - Residents shall ensure that children have used
washroom facilities prior to swimming. No child who is under the age of two or who is
not toilet-trained, or any other person who may lose control of elimination functions, -shall
use the Swimming Pool unless leak-proof plastic or rubber pants are worn.

Proper swimming attire shall be worn in the Swimming Pool. Persons with shoulder-
length hair or longer shall wear a bathing cap or shall put their hair up or pull it back in a

ponytail.

No person shall engage in diving, horseplay, running, splashing, spitting, water-spouting
or yelling in or around the Swimming Pool.

No person shall use scuba diving gear or inflatable toys in the Swimming Pool. No
person shall use buoys in the Swimming Pool except in case of an emergency.
Approved therapeutic flotation equipment may be used at the discretion of and with the
prior written approval of Management.
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)

- h)

)

Due to Ontario Department of Health regulations, all persons using the Swimming Pool
shall take a thorough soap shower and rinse before entering the Swimming Pool or re-
entering the Swimming Pool after sunbathing or using the Sauna. Staff has the authority
to inquire and restrict or prohibit the use of the Swimming Pool if it is determined at their
sole discretion that any person has not abided by this rule. All persons using the
Swimming Pool are encouraged to take a soap shower in a Change Room immediately
before entering the Swimming Pool area. However, if a Resident or Guest has mobility
or other issues which prevent him/her from being able to use the Change Room
showers, he/she may shower in his/her (or hisfher host's) unit prior to entering the
Swimming Pool area.

No person with skin lesions or communicable diseases shall use the Swimming Pool.

Suntan oils and sunscreen shall be washed off before entry or re-entry into the
Swimming Pool. The introduction of suntan oils into the Swimming Pool filtration system
may result in damage to that system.

The Swimming Pool may not be reserved for private parties except for classes which are
authorized by the Shared Facilities Committee and which may be offered to Residents.

Proper attire, including appropriate footwear, shall be worn throughout all common
areas, even if one is on his way to or from the Swimming Pool. No street shoes are
allowed in the pool area.

No more than 25 people shall be permitted in the Swimming Pool and deck area at any
one time.

m) No person shall bring breakable objects into the Swimming Pool area.

n) No person shall cut or dye hair or shave in the Swimming Pool area.
o) No person shall smoke on the pool patio.
Whirlpool

a) Pregnant women, young children, elderly persons or persons suffering from heart
disease, diabetes or high blood pressure should not enter the Whirlpool without prior
medical consultation with their doctor.

b} Due to Ontaric Department of Health regulations, all persons using the Whirlpool shall
take a thorough soap shower and rinse before entering the Whirlpool or re-entering the
Swimming Pool after sunbathing or using the Sauna. The staff has the authority to
inquire and restrict or prohibit the use of the Whirlpool if it is determined at their sole
discretion that any person has not abided by this rule.

c) No person shall use the Whirlpool while under the influence of alcohol, tranquilizers or

other drugs that cause drowsiness or that raise or lower blood pressure.
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d} No person(s) who may lose control of elimination functions shall be allowed in the
‘Whirlpool. No person(s) are allowed to add any substance (as soap, bubble bath, gels,
etc) to the water in the whirlpool.

e) Each person shall enter and exit slowly to and from the Whirlpool, and each person shall
observe reasonable time limits of not more than 10-15 minutes and shall cool down
before returning to the Whirlpool. Long exposure to the Whirlpool may result in nausea,
dizziness or fainting.

f) No person shall bring breakable objects into the Whirlpool area.

~g) No person shall cut or dye hair or shave in the Whirlpool area.

Sauna

a) The Sauna is used at the user's own risk. The Shared Facilities Committee, the agents
of the Condominium Corporations and the employees of the Corporations are not
responsible for accidents, lost or stolen personal property, or any other damages
however caused.

b) Due to Ontario Department of Health regulations, all persons using the Sauna shall take
a thorough soap shower and rinse before entering the Sauna or re-entering the Sauna
after sunbathing or using the Swimming Pool or Whirlpool. Staff has the authority to
inquire and restrict or prohibit the use of the Sauna if it is determined at their sole
discretion that any person has not abided by this rule.

¢) The Sauna is designed for dry heat and is powered by electricity, so for the safety and
comfort of all persons using the Sauna no person shall add water to the Sauna stones.

d} The Sauna door shall not be left open.

e) Prolonged use of the Sauna may be injurious to the health of the user.
f) Glass containers are not permitted in fhe Sauna.

g) No person shall drink any beverage in the Sauna.

h) No person shall cut or dye hair or shave in the Sauna.

i} No person shall perform any religious or similar ritual in the Sauna.

Change Rooms

a) All lockers in the Men's and Ladies’ Change Rooms are for day use only. Persons using
lockers may supply their own locks, which must be removed when leaving the Change
Room. Any lockers found locked after midnight shall be opened and the contents held
for pick-up at the Concierge desk for 7 days.
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b)

d)

All persons leaving items in the Change Rooms, however valuable, do so at their own
risk. The Shared Facilities Committee, Management, and employees of the Corporations
are. not responsible for lost or stolen personal property or any damages to personal
property howsoever caused.

No person shall cut or dye hair or shave in the Change Rooms.

Children over 2 years of age shall not use the Change Room intended for the use of the
opposite gender.

Billiard Room

a)

b)

g}

The Billiard Room shall only be used by Residents and Guests, at a maximum of two
Guests per unit. The Billiard Room is not available for private bookings.

The Billiard Room is available for use from 6:00 am to 12:00 midnight daily with the
exception of routine cleaning, which typically takes place from 12:00 noon to 1:00 pm.
These hours of availability may change as needed at the sole discretion of staff. The
Billiard Room is locked and the reservation of and access to the Billiard Room shall be
through the Concierge.

Reservations in 60 minute time slots must be made through the Concierge desk.
Consecutive or double bookings shall not be allowed. No one shall use the Billiard
Room for longer than 60 minutes unless the Billiard Room has not been reserved. At

‘the end of the reserved time, players shall yield the Billiard Room to others who wish to

play.

Billiard accessories, including cues, cue rests, billiard balls, and other accessories, are
available from the Concierge and shall be signed out. Upon completion of play, all
accessories shall be returned to the Concierge.

Proper etiquette shall be observed at all times. Vulgar language, shouting, and
boisterous behaviour which infringes on the ability of others to enjoy the Billiard Room or
other Shared Facilities shall not be permitted. Af the sole discretion of staff, any person
acting in an inappropriate manner may be asked to leave the Billiard Room at any time.

Proper attire, including shirts and shoes, shall be worn at all times.

Players shall take proper safety precautions and shall act to prevent damage to the
Billiard Room and all equipment and accessories. No jump, massé or other trick shots
that could potentially cause damage to billiard equipment or accessories shall be
allowed. Damage to the Billiard Room, as well as any damaged or missing equipment or
accessories, shall be charged to the unit of the Resident or Guest using the Billiard
Room at the time. All players shall report any damage or missing equipment or
accessories immediately. Any damage or missing equipment or accessories not
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h)

reported immediately shall be the responsibility of the Owner of the unit of residence of
the last Resident or Guest who signed for use of the Billiard Room.

No person shall climb or sit on the billiard fable at any time, and all players shall keep at
least one foot on the floor at all times. Players shall use a cue rest or other means if
they are unable to make a shot while keeping at least one foot on the floor.

Any person found violating any of these rules may be banned from future use of the
Billiard Room at the sole discretion of the Shared Facilities Committee.

Exercise Room

a)

b)

g)
h)

The Exercise Room is only for the use of Residents and Guests, to a maximum of two
Guests per unit. All equipment in the Exercise Room shall be used at the user's own
risk. Consultation with a physician prior to the use of any exercise equipment is
recommended. Due to safety concerns, children under the age of 14 shall not use any
equipment in the Exercise Room.

All equipment in the Exercise Room is available on a first-come, first-served basis.
However, in the interest of minimizing wait times for popular equipment, no person shall
use any single piece of equipment for more than 30 minutes at any one time.

Radios, music players or other noise-producing devices shall not be used without
earphones so as to not disturb other users of the Exercise Room.

Prior to using any equipment in the Exercise Room, Residents shall ensure that they and
their Guests understand the proper use of said equipment. All equipment shall be
treated with reasonable care and attention, and users of any equipment shall be
responsible for any damage resulting from their negligence or misuse of that equipment.

Residents and Guests shall ask staff at the Concierge desk to change the channel on
the television in the Exercise Room. Staff will be happy to help Exercise Room users
with any channel changes that are requested.

No person shall move Exercise Room equipment '(wit_h'_":the _e*ception of smaller
equipment that is clearly designed to be moved, such as individual mats or exercise
balls) from its original place in the Exercise Room. ‘

No person shall drop any free weights or barbells on the floor.

No person shall add or remove any equipment to or from the Exercise Room. All users
shall return free weights, barbells, and all other movable equipment to their intended
place of storage when finished using them.

Proper attire, including clean soft-soled shoes, shorts or sweat pants, and shirts shall be

worn at all times in the Exercise Room. Cut-off shorts and bathing suits are not proper
attire. No person using the Exercise Room shall do so while wearing street clothes.
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)

All persons using any machinery or equipment shall, with a dry towel, wipe the
machinery or equipment dry of any perspiration when finished.

Multi-Media Room

a)

b)

d)

The Multi-Media Room is available for use by Residents and their Guests.

The Multi-Media Room is available by reservation only, on a first-come, first-served
basis, between the hours of 6:00 am and 12:00 midnight. No person shall reserve the
Multi-Media room for more than three consecutive hours at any one time, and
consecutive or double bookings shall not be allowed. All reservations shall be made
through the Concierge.

No food or drinks are permitted in the Multi-Media room except water, which is permitted
if kept in a covered plastic container.

No person shall view or cause to be displayed any pornographic or X-rated materials
within the Multi-Media Room.

Party Room

a)

b)

d)

Residents who wish to reserve the Party Room for private functions may do so through
the Concierge or Management. As certain dates or times of year may be in greater
demand, Residents are encouraged to book as far ahead as possible, but the Party
Room may not be booked more than six (6) months in advance. The Party Room may
be reserved only by Residents.

The Party Room Rental Application/Agreement outlines costs, deposits and rules and
regulations governing the reservation and use of the Party Room. This form is available
through the Concierge or Management. Residents reserving the Party Room shall
submit the rental charge plus a damage deposit by certified cheque or money order
made payable to SFBVVI, in such amount as determined by the Shared Facilities
Committee from time to time. Depending on the number of guests invited, additional
security may be required at the host Resident’s cost.

A list of Guests must be lodged with the Concierge no later than twenty-four hours
before the scheduled start of the event. Failure to provide the Concierge with such list
within the specified time may automatically cancel the event. No more than sixty (60)
people may attend any such event.

The Resident renting the Party Room shall be present in the Party Room throughout the
event and is responsible for ensuring that his Guests observe the Rules of the
Corporations, including these Rules. In the event of rowdy or objectionable behaviour by
the Resident or any Guest, or of damage which, in the opinion of management, is
unreasonable, the Shared Facilities Committee may withdraw the privilege of renting the
Party Room to the Resident concerned and others residing in his unit.
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d)

h)

The rental is for the use of the Party Room and adjacent washrooms only. The Resident
renting the Party Room shall ensure that his/her Guests do not use any other of the
Shared Facilities or access any other part of either Vista or Beverley, except to enter or
exit the Party Room.

~ No decorations shall be affixed to any walls or other surfaces in the Party Room. All

decorations used must sit on tables or be floating or otherwise able to stand alone. The
Resident renting the Party Room shall ensure that any decorations are removed post-
event and that any furniture that may be moved during the course of the event is
returned to its original location. All garbage shall be properly bagged, secured and
disposed of in the appropriate chutes or bins. All equipment shall be cleaned by the

Resident after use, including coffee pots, the microwave, and the refrigerator. -

Following the event, a Management representative shall inspect the Party Room for any
damage and/or missing items. Should damage and/or missing items be discovered
during the course of this inspection, the costs of replacement and/or repair shall be
deducted from the Resident's damage deposit. Should the damage deposit be
insufficient to cover these costs, the balance shall be added to the common expenses
payable by the Owner of the unit in which the Resident renting the Party Room resides.
If the Management representative is satisfied that there is no damage and/or missing
items, the damage deposit shall be refunded in full to the Resident.

The Board, at its sole discretion, may withdraw from any person, in whole or in part, the
right to use the Party Room if such person engages in conduct detrimental to the
Residents or contravenes the Party Room Agreement to which such person is a party.

The foregoing rules shall not apply to social events open to all residents of either or both
buildings providing that such events have been approved by either the Board or BVC,
whichever is applicable. Such events shall take precedence in booking over any private
functions, subject to exceptions approved by Management.

Guest Suite

a)

b)

The Guest Suite may be rented for a maximum of severi_'icons_eéﬂtive nights unless
otherwise approved by Management.

The Guest Suite Reservation Agreement and an outline of the costs and rules and
regulations governing the reservation and rental of the Guest Suite is available at the
Concierge desk. A damage deposit and the rental fee, in the form of a certified cheque
or money order made payable to SFBVVI in such amount as determined by the Shared
Facilities Committee from time to time, shall be required.

The Guest Suite key shall be picked up from the Concierge by the Resident making the

booking. Upon vacating, the Guest shall lock the Guest Suite door and leave the key
with Management.
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d)

e)

f)

The Guest Suite shall not be occupied prior to 3:00 pm on the day of the reservation and
shall be vacated no later than 11:00 am on the last day of use.

As with other Shared Facilities, no smoking is permitted in the Guest Suite. Should a
guest smoke in the Guest Suite, the cost of cleaning the Guest Suite shall be deducted
from the damage deposit. As well, the costs of replacement and/or repair of any
damage and/or missing items shall be deducted from the damage deposit. Should the
damage deposit be insufficient to cover these costs, the balance shall be added to the
common expenses payable by the Owner of the unit in which the Resident renting the
Guest Suite resides. If a Management representative, following an inspection of the
Guest Suite, is satisfied that there is no damage and/or missing items, the damage
deposit shall be refunded in full to the Resident.

No food is permitted in the Guest Suite.

Garage

All rules pertaining to the use of the Garage govern both the shared areas of the Garage and
the portions of the Garage of which any person has the exclusive use, such as parking units.

a)

b)

d)

f)

A Resident shall not park a vehicle in any parking unit other than the parking unit of
which he has the exclusive use, or in a parking unit rented from another Resident. No
person shall park any vehicle other than a motorcycle, private passenger automobile,
station wagon, light duty van or light duty pick-up or sports utility truck in the Garage.

All vehicles parked in the Garage shall be in good working order and repair. No vehicle
that leaks any fluid shall be parked in any part of the Garage or on any part of the
Common Elements.

Parking stalls shall not be used for storage of parts, equipment, or materials. Repairs
and maintenance to any motor vehicle shall not be made in any part of the Garage or on
any part of the Common Elements.

For security reasons, no person shall rent his parking unit to- any person who is not a
Resident of either Vista or Beverley, and no person shall sell his parking unit to any
person who is not an Owner of either Vista or Beverley. Any Resident who wishes to
rent or sell his parking unit shall contact Management for assistance, and rental or sale
of any parking unit shall be coordinated through Management.

All Residents who are entitled to the use of a parking unit shall register their vehicle
details (make and licence plate number) with Management. Upon registration, where
available, Residents will be given a tag that shall be displayed inside the car at all times
while parked in the Garage. All registered users of the Garage will also be given a
remote door opener for the purpose of entering the Garage. Replacement of the remote
door opener battery, if necessary, is the responsibility of the user.

Any vehicle that is improperly parked in an unauthorized parking space or in a common
driveway, fire route or loading area may be ticketed and/or towed at the discretion of
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9)

h)

}

k)

-Management. Should Management be absent, the Concierge shall have the authority to

enforce such ticketing and/or towing without prior consultation with Management. Such
towing shall be at the expense and risk of the vehicle owner.

The Garage is washed as required. Reasonable notice of the garage washing shall be
given to all registered users of the Garage and all Garage users shall remove their cars
from the Garage on the day of the cleaning. Any additional cleaning costs caused by
leaking oil shall be charged to the unit of the registered user of the parking unit on which
the leak occurred, and that person shall remove his vehicle from the Garage until the
leak is repaired.

The cost to repair any damage to any part of the Garage including, without limitation,
garage doors, mirrors and signs, shall be borne by the unit of the Owner or Resident
responsible for such damage. If the damage is caused by a Guest, the unit of the
Resident whom such Guest is visiting shall bear the cost of the repair.

No Owner, Resident or Guest shall place, leave, park or permit to be placed, left or
parked in or on the common elements or a parking unit any motor vehicle which does
not have a visible current licence plate, and/or which in the opinion of the Board or
Management may pose a security or safety risk caused either by abandonment, its
physical condition or its potential damage to the property. Upon seventy-two (72) hours’
written notice by the Board, the owner of such vehicle shall be required to attend to or
remove the vehicle as circumstances require as directed by the Board. Should the
owner of such vehicle fail to do so, the vehicle will be removed at its owner’'s expense.

Neither the Corporation nor Management, a parking control officer, police officer, tow
truck operator, pound operator, agent or authorized person involved in ticketing, tagging,
towing, storing and/or dealing with a vehicle or thing shall be liable for any loss or
damage howsoever caused to the violating vehicle or object and any property contained
therein or for any cost, expense or damages suffered by the owner of the vehicle or thing
or by any other person arising as a result thereof, and each owner of a vehicle or object
who is in breach of any of the Guest Parkmg Rules hereby releases and indemnifies
such persons accordingly.

All residents and guests driving shall obey the posted SlgnS governlng driving directions,
speed and ingress and egress.

No trailer, boat, snowmobile, mechanical toboggan, machlnery or eqmpment of any kind
shall be parked in the underground garage.
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Guest Parking

a) All Guests and Visitors shall park in the separate Guest Parking area. Residents shall
not park in the designated Guest Parking spaces.

b) Guest Parking is given on a first come first served basis. Guest Parking cannot be
reserved in advance.

¢} Guests must register with the Concierge before parking in the Guest Parking spaces.

d) Residents are allowed an unlimited number of daytime parking and ten night time
parking permits per unit per month for use by the Resident’'s Guest(s). The Resident of
the unit being visited must initial each overnight parking pass. No Guest may park for

e) Service vehicles are permitted to park in Guest Parking during the time that they are on
site performing the work required.

f) No trailer, boat, snowmobile, mechanical toboggan, machinery or equipment of any kind
shall be parked in the Guest Parking spaces or on any part of the common elements.

g) Neither the Corporation nor Management, a parking control officer, police officer, tow
truck operator, pound operator, agent or authorized person involved in ticketing, tagging,
towing, storing and/or dealing with a vehicle or thing shall be liable for any loss or
damage howsoever caused to the violating vehicle or thing and any property contained
therein or for any cost, expense or damages suffered by the owner of the vehicle or thing
or by any other person arising as a result thereof, and each owner of a vehicle or thing
who is in breach of any of the Guest Parking Rules hereby releases and indemnifies
such persons accordingly. '

Vehicle Washing and Servicing

a) No person shall wash a vehicle anywhere on the property.

b) No person shall repair or service a vehicle anywhere on the property. Should the vehicle
of an Owner, Resident, Guest or any other person stall or fail to start, the operator of the
vehicle shall ensure that the vehicle is parked so as not to obstruct other traffic and shall
make arrangements to have the vehicle immediately removed for servicing elsewhere.
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Date:

4 Atrens-Counsel
i Insurance Brokers

Part of Arthur J. Gallagher Canada Limited

NAMED INSURED:

ADDITIONAL NAMED
INSUREDS.:

PROPERTY INSURED:

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

This is to certify that insurance described below has been effected with the Insurer(s) shown,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy applicable.

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

ALL REGISTERED UNIT OWNERS FROM TIME TO TIME AND ALL REGISTERED
MORTGAGEES FROM TIME TO TIME

7 North Park Road
Thornhill, Ontario

L4J 0A1
TERM: November 1, 2020 TO November 1, 2021
COMMERCIAL PACKAGE POLICY NO. 7106540
PROPERTY: Form: Comprehensive All Risk Policy

Amount of Insurance: $79,412,768.00
Deductibles:  $ 10,000.00 STANDARD
$ 25,000.00 SEWER BACKUP
$ 25,000.00 WATER
$ 25,000.00 FLOOD
$ 100,000.00 EARTHQUAKE
Company:  Wawanesa Insurance 26%
Aviva Insurance Company of Canada 40%
Travelers Canada 19%
Chubb Insurance Company of Canada 15%

COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY:

Wawanesa
Novex

Limit of Liability: $5,000,000.00
Excess Limit of Liability: $10,000,000.00

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY:

Wawanesa
Novex

Limit of Liability: $5,000,000.00
Excess Limit of Liability: $5,000,000.00

EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN INSURANCE:

Limit per Accident: $79,412,768.00
Company: Aviva Insurance Company of Canada
Policy Number: 81638409-0581

This document is furnished as a matter of courtesy and only as information of the fact that Policies have been concurrently prepared.
It is not a contract, confers no right upon any person and imposes no liability on the Insuring Companies.
A photocopy of this executed Certificate may be relied upon to the same extent as if it were an original executed certificate.

November 3, 2020

ATRENS-COUNSEL INSURANCE BROKERS
Part of Arthur J. Gallagher Canada Limited

Authorized Representative

Your Protection is Our Business
www.atrens-counsel.com



AS Atrens-Counsel

Insurance Brokers
Part of Arthur J. Gallagher Canada Limited

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE

This is to certify that insurance described below has been effected with the Insurer(s) shown,
subject to the terms and conditions of the policy applicable.

NAMED INSURED: SHARED FACILITIES FOR YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1075 AND
YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

ADDITIONAL NAMED ALL REGISTERED UNIT OWNERS FROM TIME TO TIME AND ALL REGISTERED
INSUREDS: MORTGAGEES FROM TIME TO TIME
PROPERTY INSURED: 7 & 15 North Park Road
Thornhill, Ontario
L4J OA1
TERM: November 1, 2020 TO November 1, 2021
COMMERCIAL PACKAGE POLICY NO. 7106541
PROPERTY: Form: Comprehensive All Risk Policy
Amount of Insurance: $30,505,614.00
Deductibles: $ 10,000.00 STANDARD
$ 25,000.00 SEWER BACKUP
$ 25,000.00 WATER
$ 25,000.00 FLOOD
$ 100,000.00 EARTHQUAKE
Company: Wawanesa Insurance 50%
Novex Insurance Company 50%
COMPREHENSIVE GENERAL LIABILITY:
Wawanesa Limit of Liability: $5,000,000.00
Novex Excess Limit of Liability $5,000,000.00
DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS LIABILITY:
Limit of Liability: N/A
EQUIPMENT BREAKDOWN INSURANCE:
Limit per Accident: $30,505,614.00
Company: Wawanesa Insurance
Policy Number: 7106541

This document is furnished as a matter of courtesy and only as information of the fact that Policies have been concurrently prepared.
It is not a contract, confers no right upon any person and imposes no liability on the Insuring Companies.
A photocopy of this executed Certificate may be relied upon to the same extent as if it were an original executed certificate.

ATRENS-COUNSEL INSURANCE BROKERS
Part of Arthur J. Gallagher Canada Limited

Date: November 3, 2020

Authorized Representative

Your Protection is Our Business
www.atrens-counsel.com



YRSCC 1112 - Vista at Thornhill
2020 BUDGET & PROJECTED REVENUES &

REVENUE

OPERATING INCOME

3001&3005 Common Expense Contribution
3090-0000 Prior Years Surplus/(Deficit) Applied
3099-0000 Allocation to Reserve Fund

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

3360-0000 Interest Income

3438-0000 NSF Fee

3499-0000 Miscellaneous Income

3510-0000 Cable/Internet/Satellite TV - Income
3520-0000 Cable/internet/Satellite TV - Expense

TOTAL REVENUE
EXPENDITURES
UTILITIES
4010-0000 Gas
4020-0000 Hydro
4030-0000 Water
TOTAL UTILITIES

CONTRACTS - ON SITE PERSONNEL
4405-0000  Cleaning

TOTAL CONTRACTS - ON SITE PERSONNEL

CONTRACTS

5045-0000 Elevators

5050-0000 Fire Alarm Monitoring

5055-0000 Fire Protection

5075-0000 HV.A.C. - Al Inclusive
5080-0000 H.V.A.C. - Fan Coils/Heat Pumps
5105-0000 Management Fees

5120-0000 Pest Control

5155-0000 Window Washing

TOTAL CONTRACTS

BUILDING SAFETY FEATURE EXPENSES
5325-0000 Fire Equipment R & M

TOTAL BUILDING SAFETY FEATURE EXPENSES

C/A - HOUSEKEEPING & MAINTENANGE

5401-0000 General CA - H & M - Expenses
5405-0000 Carpets
5455-0000 Waste Disposal

TOTAL C/A - HOUSEKEEPING & MAINTENANCE

ELECTRICAL EXPENSES

5501-0000 General Electrical Expenses
5505-0000 Electrical - Bulbs & Parts
5555-0000 Elevators - Licenses

5560-0000 Elevators - Repairs & Maintenance

TOTAL ELECTRICAL EXPENSES

City Centre (ys1112)
EXPENSES AND 2021 BUDGET

2020 2020 2021
Budget Projected Budget
1,563,225 1,563,218 1,655,044
0 0 20,000

-287 669 -287 669 -321,610
1,275,556 1,275,549 1,353,434
1,200 1,072 600
150 200 50

100 1 0
127,393 127,402 131,215
-127,393 -127,393 -131,215
1,277,006 1,276.830 1,354,084
113,105 106,213 107,420
77,670 79,804 114,468
176,601 171,656 172,000
367,376 357,673 393.888
59,460 58,295 60,954
59 460 58,295 60,954
23,640 23,357 24,480
288 288 300
5,859 5,859 5,859
35,030 35,030 35,991
18,297 17,497 17,497
100,207 102,029 106,930
1,500 1,981 1,500
6.200 367 6,400
191,022 186,408 198,957
3,000 8,643 12,000
3,000 8,643 12,000
36,000 11,441 12,000
13,680 13,246 13,680
3,600 2,550 3,000
53,280 27,236 28,680
1,200 2,100 7,200
2,400 2,332 2,400
400 372 400
1.200 4,911 1,800
5,200 9.715 11,800

% Budget
Change

5.87



YRSCC 1112 - Vista at Thornhill City Centre (ys1112)
2020 BUDGET & PROJECTED REVENUES & EXPENSES AND 2021 BUDGET

MECHANICAL EXPENSES
5901-0000 General Mechanical Expenses
5999-0000 Plumbing - Miscellaneous

TOTAL MECHANICAL EXPENSES

SHARED COST EXPENSES
6115-0000 SC - Recreation Centre

TOTAL SHARED COST EXPENSES

INSURANCE EXPENSES
6505-0000 Building Comprehensive

TOTAL INSURANCE EXPENSES

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
7001-0000 CAO Fee

7010-0000 Audit Fees

7020-0000 Bank Charges

7050-0000 Legal Fees

7055-0000 Meeting Costs

7060-0000 Office Expenses - General

7065-0000 Telephone

7099-0000 Miscellaneous-General & Administration

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS

2020 2020 2021
Budget Projected Budget
3,600 2,900 3,600
30,000 34,503 30,000
33,600 37,403 33,600
521,608 521,608 530,709
521,608 521,608 530,709
56,448 54 981 69,000
56,448 54,981 69,000
2772 2,194 2,657
3,720 3,729 3,720
420 404 420
3.600 1,561 2,100
2,400 3,060 2,500
2,400 2,568 2,400
600 555 600
100 0 100
16,012 14,071 14,497
1,307,006 1,276,033 1,354,084
-30.000 797 0

% Budget
Change



Beverly and Vista Shared (sfbvvi)

2020 BUDGET & PROJECTED REVENUES & EXPENSES AND 2021 BUDGET

REVENUE

OPERATING INCOME

3201-0000 Contribution from Phase |
3202-0000 Contribution from Phase Il
3094-0000 Allocation to Capital Fund
3099-0000 Allocation to Reserve Fund

TOTAL OPERATING INCOME

3305-0000 Access Control - Keys etc.
3355-0000 Guest Suites Income
3360-0000 Interest Income

3375-0000 Multi-Purpose Room Income

TOTAL REVENUE
EXPENDITURES

UTILITIES

4010-0000 Gas
4020-0000 Hydro
4030-0000 Water
4040-0000 Telephone

TOTAL UTILITIES

ON SITE WAGES & BENEFITS - PAYROLL
4185-0000 Superintendent

4187-0000 Superintendent - Assistant
4205-0000 C.P.P.

4210-0000 E.l

4220-0000 WSIB

4225-0000 Group Insurance

TOTAL ON SITE WAGES & BENEFITS - PAYROLL

CONTRACTS - ON SITE PERSONNEL
4405-0000 Cleaning
4428-0000 Security

TOTAL CONTRACTS - ON SITE PERSONNEL

CONTRACTS

5050-0000 Fire Alarm Monitoring

5060-0000 Garage Cleaning

5075-0000 HV.A.C. - All Inclusive

5080-0000 H.V.A.C. - Fan Coils/Heat Pumps
5095-0000 Landscaping & Snow Removal (combined)
5105-0000 Management Fees

5120-0000 Pest Control

5140-0000 Recreation Area - All Inclusive

5155-0000 Window Washing

TOTAL CONTRACTS
AMENITIES & RECREATION EXPENSES

5245-0000 Exercise/Fitness
5299-0000 Miscellaneous-Amenities & Recreation

TOTAL AMENITIES & RECREATION EXPENSES

BUILDING SAFETY FEATURE EXPENSES

5301-0000 General Building Safety Feature Expenses
5310-0000 Camera Equipment

5320-0000 Emergency Generator R & M

2020 2020 2021
Budget Projected Budget
546,604 546,604 556,141
521,608 521,608 530,709
-16,810 -16.810 -16,810
-221,413 -221.413 -257,946
829,989 B829.988 812,094
1,500 1,432 1,500
4,800 1.900 0
1.200 1.498 1,200
3.600 4,325 0
841,089 839,143 814,794
5.647 4,105 5,488
126.688 115,325 123,238
17,626 16,365 16,996
10,800 10,543 10,800
160,761 146,338 156,523
51,000 50.685 52,020
47,940 48,324 48.899
5015 5134 5,281
2,292 2,253 2,281
2,276 2,018 2,321

T HT 6,772 6.666
115,639 115,185 117,468
71.784 70,606 71.820
238,227 238,227 238,227
310,011 308,834 310.047
900 903 927
9,025 10,718 10.800
8,640 8,630 8.940

0 0 0
37.152 36,752 40,426
7,652 7,522 7.736
326 302 324
12,529 7178 3,600
300 0 300
76,525 72,006 73.053
6,000 1,422 0
9,000 4,798 960
15.000 6,219 960
12,000 9,923 7,200
4,800 3,525 4,800
4,800 4 577 4,800

% Budget
Change



2020 BUDGET & PROJECTED REVENUES & EXPENSES AND 2021 BUDGET

TOTAL BUILDING SAFETY FEATURE EXPENSES

CI/A - HOUSEKEEPING & MAINTENANCE

5401-0000 General CA - H & M - Expenses
5405-0000 Carpets

5410-0000 Cleaning Supplies

5415-0000 Decorating

5427-0000 Garage Doors

5435-0000 Hardware & Doors

5445-0000 Signage

TOTAL C/A - HOUSEKEEPING & MAINTENANCE

ELECTRICAL EXPENSES
5501-0000 General Electrical Expenses
5505-0000 Electrical - Bulbs & Parts

TOTAL ELECTRICAL EXPENSES

EXTERIOR R & M EXPENSES

5601-0000 General Exterior R & M Expenses
5655-0000 Irrigation

5665-0000 Plants

5670-0000 Roadways

5685-0000 Snow Removal

TOTAL EXTERIOR R & M EXPENSES

MECHANICAL EXPENSES
5901-0000 General Mechanical Expenses
5999-0000 Plumbing - Miscellaneous

TOTAL MECHANICAL EXPENSES

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
6305-0000 CEC Expense

TOTAL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

REALTY TAXES EXPENSE
6415-0000 Property Taxes - Condominium

TOTAL REALTY TAXES EXPENSE
INSURANCE EXPENSES

6505-0000 Building Comprehensive
6515-0000 Deductibles

TOTAL INSURANCE EXPENSES

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

7010-0000 Audit Fees

7020-0000 Bank Charges

7050-0000 Legal Fees

7055-0000 Meeting Costs

7060-0000 Office Expenses - General

7070-0000 Uniforms

7099-0000 Miscellaneous-General & Administration

TOTAL GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) FROM OPERATIONS

Beverly and Vista Shared (sfbvvi)

2020 2020 2021
Budget Projected Budget
21,600 18,025 16,800
4,200 2.840 4,200
3.000 2,245 3,000
6,000 12,725 9,000
1.800 1,792 1,800
1,200 2,976 2,400
600 200 600
600 200 200
17,400 22,978 21.200
6,000 5,998 6,000
900 700 900
6,900 6,698 6,900
600 0 600
2.400 3.368 2,400
33,776 20,452 30,671
7,200 7.200 7,800
6,000 1,510 750
49,976 41,530 42221
1,200 1,416 1,200
6,000 1.453 1,200
7,200 2,869 2,400
6,720 6.681 7.392
6.720 6,681 7.392
50 50 50

50 50 50
19,776 18,910 24,000
2,500 0 2,500
22,276 18,910 26.500
2,600 2.542 2,600
180 138 180
6.000 13,902 9,000
1,750 803 1.000
12,000 11,768 12,000
1,000 1.000 1.000
7.500 11,366 7,500
31,030 41,520 33.280
841,089 B07.844 814,794
0 31,299 -1

% Budget
Change



NOTICE OF FUTURE FUNDING OF THE RESERVE FUND

(under subsection 94 (9) of the Condominium Act, 1998)

Condominium Act, 1998

TO: All Owners of York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112
7 North Park Road, Thornhill, Ontario

The board has received and reviewed a reserve fund study update (class 2) dated January
13, 2020 prepared by EXP Services Inc., and has proposed a plan for the future funding
of the reserve fund that the board has determined will ensure that, in accordance with the
regulations made under the Condominium Act, 1998, the reserve fund will be adequate
for the major repair and replacement of the common clements and assets of the
corporation.

This notice contains:

1. A summary of the reserve fund study.

2. A summary of the proposed funding plan.

3. A statement indicating the areas, if any. in which the proposed funding plan differs

from the reserve fund study.

At the present time, the average contribution per unit per month to the reserve fund for
the fiscal year 2019/2020 is $103.78. There is an increase of $12.24 for the fiscal year
2020/2021 and an increase of $13.69 for fiscal year 2021/2022 and an increase of $15.31
for fiscal year 2022/2023.

The proposed funding plan will be implemented beginning Nov'  (, 2olo
4
Dated this V0 h day of (/-a '7““"? , ROA0

York Region Standard ngommlum Corpo tlo.n No. 1112

{SIgnd, ture)
GERND FRANK - Viee -freciclent YRScCur2
(print name)
(signature)

BERNARY Lu - /rea.cwer 7@5&: 2~

(print name)

Affix corporate seal above

The above persons signing have the authority to bind the corporation.



SUMMARY OF RESERVE FUND STUDY

The following is a summary of the reserve fund study update (class 2) dated January 13.
2020 prepared by EXP Services Inc. for York Region Standard Condominium
Corporation No. 1112,

Subsection 94(1) of the Condominium Act, 1998, required the corporation to conduct
periodic studies to determine whether the amount of money in the reserve fund and the
amount of contributions collected by the corporation are adequate to provide for the
expected costs of major repairs and replacement of the common elements and assets of
the corporation. As a result, the corporation has obtained the Reserve Fund Study.

The estimated expenditures from the reserve fund for the next thirty (30) years are set out
in the CASH FLOW TABLE. In this summary, the term “annual contribution™ means the
total amount to be contributed each year to the reserve fund, exclusive of interest earned
on the reserve fund. The recommended annual contribution for the 2019/2020 fiscal year
is $287.669.00 based on the estimated expenditures and the following:

Opening Balance of the Reserve Fund: $1,270,766
Minimum Reserve Fund Balance during the projected period £627.146
Assumed Annual Inflation Rate for Reserve Fund Expenditures: 2.00%

Assumed Annual Interest Rate for interest earned on the Reserve Fund:  3.15%

The Reserve Fund Study can be examined by providing a written request and reasonable
notice to the corporation’s address for service:

Attn: York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112 ¢/o Crossbridge
Condominium Services Ltd.
7 North Park Road
Thornhill, Ontario
L4J 0A1



CASH FLOW TABLE

Opening Balance of the Reserve Fund: $1,270,766

Minimum Reserve Fund Balance during the projected period $627,146

Assumed Annual Inflation Rate for Reserve Fund Expenditures: 2.00%

Assumed Annual Interest Rate for interest earned on the Reserve Fund:  3.15%

Percentage
! Recommended | Esimated Inflation { & oy oo d Interest | |, Inorease in Closin
Year Opening Balance Annual Contribution E:;E:mdres Eamed Rem;m ded Balanc‘g
Contribution
2019/2020 $1,270,766 $287,669 -$168,106 $40,788 NIA $1,431,117
| 202072021 $1,431,117 $321,610 -§215,152 $45,284 11.8% §1,582,859
2021/2022 $1,582,859 $359,560 $43,107 $54,794 11.8% $1,954,106
2022/2023 $1,054,106 $401,988 $586.392 $54,306 11.8% $1,824,008
2023/2024 $1,824,008 $449.423 $0 $64,839 11.8% $2,338,270
2024/2025 $2,338,270 $502,455 $0 $82,046 11.8% $2,922,770
2025/2026 $2.622,770 $561.744 -$5,080 $101,468 11.8% $3,580,892
202672027 $3,580,892 - $572,979 0 $122,786 2% $4,276,658
2027/2028 $4,276,658 $584,439 $477.955 $133.778 2% $4,516,919
2028/2029 $4,516,919 $596,127 -$302,502 $145815 2% | $4,956,360
2029/2030 $4,856,360 $608,050 -$1,691,066 $126,882 2% $4,000,226
203012031 $4.000,226 $620,211 $345,165 $128,635 2% $4,403,906
2031/2032 $4,403,506 $632,615 $357.801 $141,415 2% $4.820,136
2032/2033 $4.820,136 $645,267 54,108,905 $65,345 2% $1,421,844
2033/2034 $1,421,844 $658,173 594,764 $40,827 2% $1,526,079
203472035 $1,526,078 $671,336 -5560,274 $45 173 2% $1,682,314

2035/2036 $1.682,314 $684,763 -$568,377 $50,168 2% $1,848,868
203612037 $1,848,868 $698,458 -$692,086 $52,737 2% $1,807,977
203772038 £1,907.977 §712 427 -51,814,044 $28,043 2% $834 404
2038/2039 $834,404 ~ §726676 S0 $37,250 2% $1.598,330
203972040 $1,588,330 $741,200 51,379,677 $28,937 2% $988,799
2040/2041 $988,799 $756,034 -$66.225 $41,031 2% §1,719.638
2041/2042 £1,719,639 5771,154 -564,055 564,660 2% $2,491,399
2042/2043 $2,491,399 $786,577 $2.428.724 $33,003 2% $882,345
2043/2044 $882,345 $802,309 -§7,270 $38710 | 2% $1,717,094
2044/2045 $1.717.094 $818,355 $0 $66,795 2% $2,602,245
2045/2046 $2,602,245 ~ sBaaf22 -§325,246 $87 557 2% $3,199 278
2046/2047 $3,199,278 $851,417 -$3,858 $114,553 2% 4,161,391
2047/2048 $4,161,391 $868,445 54,448,195 $45,506 2% $627.146
2048/2049 $627,146 $885,814 $445 488 §22,308 2% $1,089,780




SUMMARY OF PROPOSED PLAN
FOR FUTURE FUNDING OF THE RESERVE FUND

The following is a summary of the board’s proposed plan for the future funding of the
reserve fund.

The Board of York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112 has reviewed
the reserve fund study update (class 2) dated January 13, 2020, prepared by EXP Services
Inc.. and has proposed a plan for the future funding of the reserve fund that the board has
determined will ensure that, in accordance with the regulations made under the
Condominium Act, 1998, the reserve fund study will be adequate for the major repair and
replacement of the common elements and assets of the corporation.

The board has adopted the funding recommendations of the Reserve Fund Study and will
implement them as set out in the Contribution Table.

The total annual contribution recommended under the proposed funding plan for the
2019/2020 fiscal year is $287,669.00.

The Reserve Fund Study can be examined by providing a written request and reasonable
notice to the corporation’s address for service:

Attn: York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112 c/o Crossbridge
Condominium Services Ltd.
7 North Park Road
Thornhill, Ontario
L4] 0A1



CONTRIBUTION TABLE

A B A+B
Year Recommergdeq Annual Percemagq Increase Oth{a; :’o:;ﬁ';""s Total Contribution Each
Contribution Over Previous Year oo loan) Year to Reserve Fund
2018/2020 $287,669 N/A $287,669
2020/2021 $321,610 11.8% $321,610
2021/2022 $358,560 11.8% $359,560
2022/2023 $401,988 11.8% $401,988
2023/2024 5448 423 11.8% $449,423
202412025 $502,455 11.8% $502,455
2025/2026 $561,744 11.8% $561,744
202672027 $572,979 2% $572,979
2027/2028 $584,439 2% $584,439
202872029 $596,127 2% $596,127
2029/2030 $608,050 2% $608,050
203072031 $620,211 2% §620,211
2031/2032 $632,615 2% $632,615
2032/2033 $645 267 2% $645,267
2033/2034 $658,173 2% $658,173
2034/2035 $671,336 2% £671,336
2035/2036 $684,763 2% $684,763
2036/2037 $698,458 2% $698,458
2037/2038 §712,427 2% $712,427
2038/2039 §726,676 2% $726,676
2039/2040 $741,209 2% £741,209
2040/2041 $756,034 2% $756,034
2041/2042 §771,154 2% $771,154
2042/2043 §786,577 2% $786,577
2043/2044 $802,309 2% $802,309
2044/2045 $818,355 2% $818,355
2045/2046 $834,722 2% $834,722
2046/2047 $851,417 2% $851,417
2047/2048 $868, 445 2% $868,445
2048/2048 $885,814 2% $B885,814

The term “annual contribution” means the amount to be contributed each year to the
reserve fund from the monthly common expenses.




DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
THE RESERVE FUND STUDY AND
THE PROPOSED PLAN FOR FUTURE
FUNDING OF THE RESERVE FUND

The Plan for Future Funding of the Reserve fund proposed by the board difters from the
Reserve Fund Study in the following respects:

There are no differences from the Reserve Fund Study.



NOTICE OF FUTURE FUNDING OF THE RESERVE FUND

(under subsection 94 (9) of the Condominium Act. 1998)

Condominium Act, 1998

TO: All Owners of Shared Facilities of York Region Standard Condominium Corporation
Nos. 1075 and 1112
7 and 15 North Park Road, Thornhill. Ontario

The board has received and reviewed a reserve fund study update (class 2) dated March
2nd, 2020 prepared by EXP Services Inc.. and has proposed a plan for the future funding
of the reserve fund that the board has determined will ensure that, in accordance with the
rcgulations made under the Condominium Aet, 1998, the reserve fund will be adequate
for the major repair and replacement of the common elements and assets of the
corporation. '

This notice contains:
1. A summary of the reserve fund study.
2. A summary of the proposed funding plan.

3. A statement indicating the areas, if any, in which the proposed funding plan difters
from the reserve fund study.

At the present time, the average contribution per unit per month to the reserve fund for
the fiscal year 2019/2020 is $33.73. There is an increase of $5.57 for the fiscal year
2020/2021 and an increase of $6.48 for fiscal year 2021/2022 and an increase of $7.55
for fiscal year 2022/2023.

The proposed funhj(‘iing plan will be implemented beginning ﬁ‘l«g}b@l // 020525?
Dated this Qq day of \Tf,tjdrk P Qd@za

Shared Facilities of York Region Standard Condominium Corporation Nos. 1075 and
1112

(sigrfatiire) f[
ADeLe MAIZBLS| — TReASURER YESCC 078"

(print name)

ks
(signature)
RERNARD JUI - TREASURER YRSCL 1112
(print name)

Affix corporate seal above

The above persons signing have the authority to bind the corporation.



SUMMARY OF RESERVE FUND STUDY

The following is a summary of the reserve fund study update (class 2) dated March 2nd,
2020 prepared by EXP Services Inc. for Shared Facilities of York Region Standard
Condominium Corporation Nos. 1075 and 1112,

Subsection 94(1) of the Condominium Act, 1998, required the corporation to conduct
periodic studies to determine whether the amount of money in the reserve fund and the
amount of contributions collected by the corporation are adequate to provide for the
expected costs of major repairs and replacement of the common elements and assets of’
the corporation. As a result, the corporation has obtained the Reserve Fund Study.

The estimated expenditures from the reserve fund for the next thirty (30) years are set out
in the CASH FLOW TABLE. In this summary, the term “annual contribution” means the
total amount to be contributed cach year to the reserve fund. exclusive of interest earned
on the reserve fund. The recommended annual contribution for the 2020/2021 fiscal year
is $257.946.00 bascd on the estimated expenditures and the following:

Opening Balance of the Reserve Fund: $955.674
Minimum Reserve Fund Balance during the projected period $318.727
Assumed Annual Inflation Rate for Reserve Fund Expenditures: 2.00%

Assumed Annual Interest Rate for interest earned on the Reserve Fund:  3.15%

The Reserve Fund Study can be examined by providing a written request and reasonable
notice to the corporation’s address for service:

Aun: York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1075
15 North Park Road
Thornhill, Ontario
L4J 0C9

ar

Attn: York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112
7 North Park Road
Thornhill, Ontario
L4J 0A1



CASH FLOW TABLE

Opening Balance of the Reserve Fund: $955,674

Minimum Reserve Fund Balance during the projected period $318.727

Assumed Annual Inflation Rate for Reserve Fund Expenditures: 2.00%

Assumed Annual Interest Rate for interest earned on the Reserve Fund:  3.15%

Percentage
Estimated Inflation : Increase in .
s Recommended i Estimated Interest Closin
Year Opening Belance Annual Contribution ExJ:‘:J::iitz?es Eamed Rem-n::;\ded Bala.ncE!
Contribution
2019/2020 $955.674 $221,413 -$300,580 $26,591 N/A $903,098
2020/2021 ~ $903,098 $257,946 -$696,170 $15,998 16.5% $480,871
2021/2022 $480 871 $300,507 -§300.967 $12,559 16.5% $492,971
2022/2023 $492,971 $350,091 -$2,398 $20,796 16.5% $861,460
2023/2024 $B861,460 $407,856 -$42,810 $32,449 ~ 16.5% $1,258,955 |
2024/2025 $1,258,855 $475,152 -$39,808 $44,772 16.5% $1,679,071
2025/2026 $1,679,071 $553.552 $282,509 $54,979 16.5% $2,005,093
2026/2027 $2,005.083 . $564,623 $437.431 $61,860 2% $2.194,145
2027/2028 $2,194,145 $575,916 $0 $78.510 2% $2,848,571
2028/2028 $2,848,571 $587,434 -$871,043 $78,797 2% $2,643,758
2029/2030 $2,643,759 §599,183 1,565,845 $56.073 2% $1,743,170
2030/2031 $1.743,170 $611,166 -$1,252,569 $34,706 2% $1.136,473
2031/2032 $1.136,473 $623,390 -$773,881 $26,924 2% $1,012,906
2032/2033 $1,012,906 $635,858 $43.853 540,585 2% $1,645,495
2033/2034 $1,645,495 $648 575 $144,628 $58,561 2% $2,208,023
2034/2035 $2,208,023 $661,546 -$124.708 $77.224 2% $2,822,085
~ 2035/2036 $2,822,085 $674.777 5423 491 $89,908 2% $3,163,279

2036/2037 |  $3,163279 $688,273 -$2,501,573 §51,395 2% $1,401,373
2037/2038 $1,401,373 $702,038 $1,805,975 $21,290 2% $318,727
2038/2039 $318,727 $716.079 -§57,617 $19,240 2% §996,429
2039/2040 $996,429 $730,401 -$586,013 $28,492 2% $1.169,308
204072041 $1,169,308 $745,009 -$1,037,898 §23 441 2% $899.860
204172042 $899 860 $759,909 $394.812 $30,400 2% $1,295,356
2042/2043 $1,295,356 §775,107 S0 $52,687 2% $2,123,150
2043/2044 $2,123,150 $790,608 -§70,884 $77.676 2% $2.920,551
2044/2045 $2,920,551 $806,421 -$148,311 §101,542 2% $3,680,203
2045/2046 $3,680.203 $822,550 $442485 | $119,031 2% $4,179,298
2046/2047 $4,179,298 $839,001 -§1,338,575 $113,827 2% §3,793,552
2047/2048 $3,793.552 $855,781 137,715 $130,413 2% $4,642,031
2048/2049 $4,642,031 $872,896 -$70.235 $159,390 2% $5,604,082




SUMMARY OF PROPOSED PLAN
FOR FUTURE FUNDING OF THE RESERVE FUND

The following is a summary of the board’s proposed plan for the future funding of the
reserve fund.

The Board of Shared Facilities of York Region Standard Condominium Corporation Nos.
1075 and 1112 has reviewed the reserve fund study update (class 2) dated March 2nd,
2020, prepared by EXP Services Inc., and has proposed a plan for the future funding of
the reserve fund that the board has determined will ensure that, in accordance with the
regulations made under the Condominium Act. 1998. the reserve fund study will be
adequate for the major repair and replacement of the common elements and assets of the
corporation.

The board has adopted the funding recommendations of the Reserve Fund Study and will
implement them as set out in the Contribution Table.

The total annual contribution recommended under the proposed funding plan for the
2020/2021 fiscal year'is $257.946.00.

The Reserve Fund Study can be examined by providing a written request and reasonable
notice to the corporation’s address for service:

Attn: York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1075
15 North Park Road
Thornhill, Ontario
L4J 0C9

or

Aun: York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112
7 North Park Road
Thornhill, Ontario
L4] 0A1



CONTRIBUTION TABLE

A B A+B
Year Rennmmer_ndel_i Annual Pementagg Increase Omz :o:;zy;:ons Total Contribution Each
Contribution Over Previous Year 1 loan) Year to Reserve Fund
2018/2020 $221,413 N/A $221,413
2020/2021 $257,946 16.5% $257 946
2021/2022 $300,507 16.5% $300,507
202212023 $350,091 16.5% $350,081
2023/2024 $407,856 16.5% $407,856
20242025 $475,152 16.5% $475,152
20252026 $553,552 16.5% $553,552
2026/2027 §564,623 2% $564,623
2027/2028 §575,916 2% $575,916
2028/2029 $587 434 2% $587,434
2029/2030 §599,183 2% §599,183
2030/2031 $611,166 2% §611,166
2031/2032 $623,390 2% $623,390
2032/2033 $635,858 2% $635,858
2033/2034 $648,575 2% $648,575
2034/2035 §661,546 2% $661,546
2035/2036 $674,777 2% $674,777
2036/2037 $688,273 2% $688,273
2037/2038 $702,038 2% $702,038
2038/2039 $716,079 2% $716,079
2039/2040 §730,401 2% §730,401
2040/2041 §745,009 2% §745,009
2041/2042 §759,909 2% $759,909
2042/2043 §775,107 2% §775,107
2043/2044 $790,609 2% $790,609
2044/2045 $806,421 2% £806,421
2045/2046 $822,550 2% $822,550
2046/2047 $839,001 2% $839,001
2047/2048 $855,781 2% §855,781
2048/2048 $872,896 2% $872,896

The term “annual contribution™ means the amount to be contributed each year to the
reserve fund from the monthly common expenses.




DIFFERENCES BETWEEN
THE RESERVE FUND STUDY AND
THE PROPOSED PLAN FOR FUTURE
FUNDING OF THE RESERVE FUND

The Plan for Future Funding of the Reserve fund proposed by the board differs from the
Reserve Fund Study in the following respects:

There are no differences from the Reserve Fund Study.



Vista of Thornhill City Centre

YORK REGIONAL STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

Vista of Thornhill City Centre - 7 North Park Road, Thornhill Ontario L 4] 0C9
Telephone: (905)-597-0953 Fax: (805)-597-0947




Pre-Authorized Payment Plan Authorization
For Condominium Monthly Common Charges

RE:  OWNER(S) NAME(S):

OWNER(S) ADDRESS:

TO: YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO.: Y.R.S.C.C. 1112 (the "Payee").
AND TO: Brookfield Residential Management Services (the "Payee's Agent")
AND TO: Owner(s) Financial Institution or Bank or Trust Company (the "Bank™")

Name of Financial Institution:

Branch Address:

City, Province:

Branch Transit No. Accounlt No.

1. THE UNDERSIGNED OWNER(S) AUTHORIZE the PAYEE and the Payee's Agent on the PAYEE'S behalf to debit the above
account at the above indicated branch of the Bank, in payment of the monthly condominivm common charges as may be approved by the

PAYEE from time to time and at(ributed to the undersigned Owner(s) of Suite at 7 North Park Road, Ontario 14J 0C9.
2. A debit in the amount of § may be drawn on the account, on the 1% day of each month, beginning the month of

20 .
3. It is acknowledged and agreed by the undersigned that if there are insufficient funds on deposit in the account at the time that the

debit is made by or on behalf of the PAYEE, the insufficiency shall be deemed by the PAYEE to be non-payment of the common charges
for the parlicular month. In addition, the undersigned acknowledges and agrees thal if any service fees or charges are incurred because
there are insufficient funds on deposit, such fees or charges shall be paid by the undersigned.

4. The Bank is not required to verify that any debits drawn by or on behalf of the PAYEE are in accordance with this Authorization or
the agreement made between the undersigned and the PAYEE.

5. It is acknowledged that in order to cancel this Authorization the undersigned must provide 14 days prior writlen notice to the
PAYEE in care of the Payee's Agent at: Brookfield Residential Management Services., ¢/o Accounting Department, 3190 Steeles Avenue
East, Suite 200, Markham, Ontario, I.3R 1G9. This authorization may be cancelled al any lime and cancellation Wl]l be eﬁectwe 14 days
after such written notice of cancellation is actually received by the Payee's Agent.

6. The right is acknowledged by the undersigned, to full reimbursement of a pre-authorized debit made to the account by the Bank, if
the right is exercised within 90 days after the item in dispule is posted to the account and. any of the following conditions apply: (a) the
PAYEE was never provided with an Authorization, (b) the debit was not drawn in accordance with the Authorization that was provided to
the PAYEE, (c) the Authorization that was provided to the PAYEE was revoked in writing, or (d) the debit was posled lo the wrong
account due to incorrect account information.

7. It is acknowledged by the undersigned that delivery of this Authorizalion to the PAYEE constitutes delivery by the undersigned 1o
the Bank, It is warranted by the undersigned that all persons whose signatures are required to sign on the above account have signed this
Authorization. Receipt is acknowledged by the undersigned of a signed copy of this Authorization.

8. The undersigned will notify the PAYEE (in care of the Payee's Agent al the address set out above) promptly in writing if there is
any change in the above account information or if this Authorization is to be terminated.

Owner's Signature: Owner’s Name:

Daie
Ovwner's Address:

NOTE: For verification purposes, please enclose one of your personal cheques marked "VOID". For an account, all depositors
must sign if more than one signature is required on a cheque issued against the account holder.



York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112

Vista of Thornhill City Centre

RESIDENT INFORMATION

Name: Suite : E-Mail :
Are you fhe OWNER ___ or TENANT Do you live in the suite? Yes No
Home Phone: Business No.: Cell No:
Emergency Contact: ~ Name: Phone No.:
Number of People residing in the unit: { ) Resident(s} Name:

Mailing Address if Owner Lives Off Site:

Home Phone: Business No.: Cell No:
Parking Spot # License Plate # Car Model Locker # Remote # Key Fob #
1.
2.
If you own a Pet, state: Pet Breed -~ Color Size {Ib.)

In accordance with the Condominium Act, Section 83 (1) (b) Notification by Owner, please provide the Corporation with
the tenant name, the owner address and a copy of the lease or renewal, if the unit is leased.
Please also provide a copy of your Proof of Liability and Contents Insurance. '

Handicapped or Medical Problem:
Name of Person who would require assistance in an emergency (i.e. Blind, Handicapped, Heart Condition ...)

Name of Resident{s) Kind of Help:

Received the Rules & Regulations of Y.R.S.C.C. 1112 & Shared Facilities

Name: Signature: Date:




The Beverley & Vista of Thornhill City Centre

- AUTHORIZATION TO RECEIVE
PARCELS, REGISTERED MAIL, COURIER MAIL

Name: , Suite
7 or 15 North Park Drive, Thornhill, Ontario (circle one)

The above named resident hereby authorize YRSCC 1075 or YRSCC 1112
(circle one) and it's duly authorized agents and employees to accept small
parcels or envelopes (except registered mail), on my/our behalf.

[/we hereby release YRSCC 1075 or YRSCC 1112 (circle one) and it's duly
authorized agents and employees from any present or future liability should the
parcel or envelope be lost, stolen, delivered late or damaged.

Please remember to notify the staff if you are away over-night or longer from the
building so that these items will not be accepted on your behalf during that time.

Resident's Signature

Date

Concierge use only

Date received: Time: A/M P/M

By: Print Name:




Form 5
Condominium Act, 1998

SUMMARY OF LEASE OR RENEWAL
(clause 83 (1) (b) of the Condominium Act, 1998)

TO: (name of condominium corporation)

1, This is to notify you that:

[Strike out whichever is not applicable:

a written or oral (sirike out whichever is nof applicable: lease, sublease, assignment of lease)

a renewal of a written or oral (strike out whichever is not a,g;}cab!e: lease, sublease, assignment of lease)]

has been entered into for;

[For all condominium corporations except common elements condominium corporations:
Unit{s} ___, Level(s) {(include any parking or storage units that have been leased)]

fin the case of a common elements condominium corporation:
the common interest in the condominium corporation, being the interest attached to {provide brief
description of the parcel of land to which the common interest in the Condominium Corporation is attached)]

on the following terms:

Name of lessee(s) (or sublessee(s) ):

Telephone number:

Commencement date:

Termination date:

Option(s) to renew:

~ (set out details)

Rental payments:

{(set out amount and when dug)

Other information:

(at the option of the owner)

2. 1 (We) have provided the (strike out whichever is not applicable: lesses(s), sublessee(s) with a copy of the
declaration, by-laws and rules of the condominium corporation. '

3. | (We) acknowledge that, as required by subsection 83 (2) of the Condominium Act, 1998, | (we) will advise you
in writing if the (strike out whichever is not applicable: lease, sublease, assignment of lease) is terminated.

Dated this day of

{(signature of owner(s))

{print name of owner(s})

(In the case of a corporation, affix corporate seal or add a statement that the persons signing have the authorily to bind
the corporation.)

{address)

(telephone number) {fax number, if any)
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Tapp & Company LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants Tel: 416-487-2000
160 Eglinton Avenue East, Suite 300 Fax: 416-487-5225
Toronto, Ontario M4P 3B5 contact@tappandco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Owners of
York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112, which
comprise the statement of financial position as at October 31, 2020, and the statements of reserve fund, operating
fund and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112 as at October 31, 2020, and its results of
operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-
for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Corporation in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management and Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as
management and Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. :

In preparing the financial statements, management and Directors are responsible for assessing the Corporation’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management and Directors either intends to liquidate the Corporation or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Corporation’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

Page 1.



Tapp & Company LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants Tel: 416-487-2000
160 Eglinton Avenue East, Suite 300 Fax: 416-487-5225
Toronto, Ontario M4P 3B5 contact@tappandco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Corporation’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management and the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management and the Directors use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Corporation to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Tapp & Company LLP

Toronto, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants
March 8, 2021 Licensed Public Accountants
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YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT OCTOBER 31, 2020

ASSETS
2020 2019

Current
Operating fund cash $ 110994 $ 58,833
Owners’ assessments receivable 2,192 1,661
Due from Shared Facilities 22,344 29,286
Prepaid expenses 7.410 866
142,940 90,646
Reserve fund cash and investments (Note 2) 1,418,260 1,273,648
$ 1,561,200 1,364,294

LIABILITIES
Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Operating fund $ 71438 $ 38,731
Reserve fund 6.735 4,723
78173 43,454
FUND BALANCES

Reserve fund (Note 3) 1,412,007 1,268,924
Operating fund 71,020 51,916

1,483,027 1,320,840
$1561200 $1,364294

Contingent liability (Note 9)

Approved on behalf of the Board:

I Director

See Notes to Financial Statements
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YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112
STATEMENT OF RESERVE FUND

YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2020

020 019
Revenue
Allocation from operating fund $ 287,669 $ 276,339
Interest earned 31,067 30,794
318,736 307,133
Expenses
Automatic door operators 3,490 -
Boiler repairs 13,037 -
Caulking repairs 23,865 -
Chiller repairs - 3,030
Fire system repairs 24,823 -
HVAC repairs 2,828 41,387
MUA repairs 13,452 -
Plumbing repairs 57,366 109,680
Reserve fund study 4,407 -
Sanitary drainage repairs 21,763 -
Water damage repairs 10,622 -
Windows - 3,132
175,653 157,229
Excess of revenue over expenses 143,083 149,904
Fund Balance, beginning of year 1,268,924 1,119,020
Fund Balance, end of year $1412007 $1,268,924

See Notes to Financial Statements
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YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

STATEMENT OF OPERATING FUND

YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2020

Revenue
Owners’ assessments
Less allocation to reserve fund

Cable TV income
Interest and sundry

Expenses (Pages 6 and 7)
Administration
Common area housekeeping
Contract services
Repairs and maintenance
Shared Facilities
Utilities

Excess (deficiency) of expenses over revenue

Fund Balance, beginning of year

Fund Balance, end of year

See Notes to Financial Statements

2020 2020 2019
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 8)

$ 1,563,225 $ 1,563,216 $ 1,505,384
(287,669) (287.,669) (276,339)
1,275,556 1,275,547 1,229,045
127,393 127,401 123,686
1,450 1,268 2,202
1,404,399 1,404,216 1,354,933

72,460 66,637 55,001

53,280 25,536 79,125
377,875 372,842 367,782

41,800 55,553 53,431
521,608 499,264 488,803
367,376 365,280 352,005

1,434,399 1,385,112 1,396,147

$  (30.000) 19,104 (41,214)
51,916 93,130

$ 71.020 $ 51916




YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112
SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2020

Administration

Bank charges

Condominium Authority of Ontario fees
Insurance

Legal and audit

Meetings

Office and general

Telephone

Common Area Housekeeping
Carpets

General

Waste disposal

Contract Services
Cable TV

Cleaning

Elevators

Fan coils/heat pumps
Fire protection

HVAC

Management fees
Pest control

Window washing

See Notes to Financial Statements

2020

Budget
(Note 8)

$ 420
2,772
56,448
7,320
2,400
2,500
600
72,460

13,680
36,000
3,600
—53.280

127,393
59,460
23,640
18,297

6,147
35,031
100,207
1,500
6.200
377,875

Page 6.

2020
Actual

$ 401
2,079
54,980
5,561
935
2,025
656
66,637

13,245
10,003

2,288
25,536

127,393
58,294
23,357
17,498
6,147
35,030
102,636
2,120
367

372,842

2019
Actual

$ 448
2,368
43,418
4,984
516
2,696
571
55,001

13,044
61,592

4,489
79,125

123,979
58,294
22,889
17,802

6,130
33,923
97,289

1,402

6.074

367,782




YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112
SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2020

2020 2020 2019
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 8)
Repairs and Maintenance
Building safety 3,000 16,778 7,520
Electrical 5,200 9,007 4,797
Mechanical and plumbing 33,600 29,768 41,114
41,800 55,553 53431
Shared Facilities (Note 4) 521,608 499,264 488,803
Utilities
Gas 113,105 111,212 115,227
Hydro 77,670 85,734 74,338
Water 176,601 168,334 162,440
367,376 365,280 352,005

See Notes to Financial Statements
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YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2020

2020
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses
Operating fund $ 19,104
Reserve fund 143,083
162,187
Changes in working capital
Owners’ assessments receivable (531)
Due from Shared Facilities 6,942
Prepaid expenses (6,544)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 34,719
196,773
Investing activity
Reserve fund investments, net (151,832)
Increase in cash 44 941
Cash, beginning of year 267,644
Cash, end of year $ 312,585
Comprised of:
Operating fund cash $ 110,994
Reserve fund cash 201,591
$ 312,585

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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$ (41,214)
149,904
108,690

2,071
228
1,081

(4912)
107,158

(100,637)
6,521

261,123
$ 267,644

$ 58,833
208,811

$ 267,644




YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OCTOBER 31, 2020

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

York Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1112 was registered without share capital on March 7,
2008 under the Condominium Act of Ontario and is a non-profit organization that is exempt from income
taxes under the Income Tax Act.

The purpose of the Corporation is to manage and maintain the common elements (as defined in the
Corporation's Declaration and By-laws) and to provide common services for the benefits of a 231 unit
residential condominium, commonly known as The Vista at Thornhill City Centre, located in the City of
Vaughan.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations. The significant policies are as follows:

Common elements

The common elements of the Corporation are owned proportionately by the unit owners and
consequently are not reflected as assets in these financial statements.

Fund accounting

Reserve fund
The Corporation is required by the Condominium Act of Ontario to establish a reserve fund to be used
solely for the purpose of major repair and replacement of common elements and assets of the
Corporation.

The Corporation allocates to the reserve fund amounts that, calculated from expected repair and
replacement costs and life expectancies of the common elements and assets of the Corporation, are
reasonably expected to provide sufficient funds to repair and replace the common elements and assets.
Revenue and costs related to such major repairs and replacements are accounted for in the Statement
of Reserve Fund.

Operating fund
Revenue and expenses for the general operations of the Corporation are reported in the Statement of
Operating Fund.

Financial instruments

The Corporation initially measures its financial assets and liabilities at fair value. The Corporation
subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized cost. Changes in fair
value and the resultant impairment loss are recognized at each reporting date.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include operating fund cash, owners' assessments
receivable, due from Shared Facilities and reserve fund cash and investments.
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YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OCTOBER 31, 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Financial instruments (cont’d)
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and accrued liabilities.

The Corporation has no financial assets measured at fair value and has not elected to carry any
financial asset or liability at fair value.

Revenue Recognition

Owners' assessments are recognized as revenue based on the budget distributed to owners each year.
Interest and other revenue are recognized as revenue of the related fund when earned.

Contributed services

Directors, committee members and owners volunteer their time to assist in the Corporation’s activities.
While these services benefit the Corporation considerably, a reasonable estimate of the time spent and
its fair market value cannot be made and accordingly, these contributed services are not recognized in
the financial statements.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-
profit organization requires the Corporation's management and Directors to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets, liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses
during the year. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and adjustments are
reported in the year in which they become known.
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YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OCTOBER 31, 2020

2. RESERVE FUND CASH AND INVESTMENTS
Interest

Description Maturity Date Rate (%) 2020 2019

Cash $ 201,591 $ 208,811

G.I.C’s
HSBC Bank of Canada February 24, 2020 2.05 - 100,000
Bank of Nova Scotia May 7,2020 2.20 - 50,000
ICICI Bank Canada March 9, 2021 2.73 100,000 100,000
General Bank of Canada April 27, 2021 2.31 100,000 100,000
Home Trust Company June 7, 2021 2.34 100,000 100,000
Equitable Bank February 28, 2022 2.82 100,000 100,000
B2B Bank June 27, 2022 215 100,000 100,000
HomeEquity Bank February 21, 2023 3.03 100,000 100,000
Concentra Bank June 26, 2023 2.25 100,000 100,000
Bank of Nova Scotia January 31, 2024 3.50 100,000 100,000
Canadian Western Bank June 25, 2024 2.29 100,000 100,000
Montreal Trust Company February 21, 2025 2.00 100,000 -
Canadian Tire Bank April 22, 2025 2.33 100,000 -
Presidents Choice Bank April 22, 2025 2.10 100,000 -

Interest receivable 16,669 14,837

$1,418,260 $1.273,648
3. RESERVE FUND

The Directors have used the Class 2 report, with a site visit, of exp Services Inc. dated January 13,
2020 and such other information as was available to them in evaluating the adequacy of the reserve
fund. That report proposed allocations of $287,669 for 2020, expenditures of $168,106 and a year-end
balance at October 31, 2020 of $1,431,117. Actual amounts were allocations of $287,669, expenditures
of $175,653 and a year-end balance of $1,412,007. Reserve fund allocations are proposed to increase
annually by 11.8% for 2021 to 2026.

Any evaluation of the adequacy of the reserve fund is based upon assumptions as to the future interest
and inflation rates and estimates of the life expectancy of the building components and their
replacement costs. These factors are subject to change over time and the changes may be material;
accordingly, the Condominium Act requires that reserve fund studies be updated every three years.
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YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OCTOBER 31, 2020

SHARED FACILITIES

The Corporation entered into a shared facilities agreement for the cost of operating, maintaining and
repairing certain common elements, which include the recreational facilities, superintendent suite,
certain shared services and systems, the interior roadway, landscaping and the parking garage.

The expenses are to be allocated as follows:

YRSCC No. 1075 (The Beverley) 51.17%
YRSCC No. 1112 (The Vista) 48.83%
100.00%

The Shared Facilities did not have any accumulated surplus or deficit for the year ended October 31,
2020.

These financial statements do not include the revenues and expenses of the Shared Facilities as it is a
separate reporting entity. The Shared Facilities financial statements should be referred to when reading
these financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
No remuneration was paid to Directors during the year.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK EXPOSURE

The Corporation is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. The following analysis
provides a measure of the Corporation’s risk exposure and concentrations at the balance sheet date.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. The Corporation’s credit risk relates to:

(a) Owners’ assessments receivable
Under the Condominium Act of Ontario, the Corporation has the ability to place a lien on an
owner’s unit to recover an outstanding balance. The Corporation has limited financial exposure in
a multi-unit condominium.

(b) Cash and Investments
The Corporation manages this risk by placing its operating and reserve cash and investments with
high quality institutions. The Corporation believes its financial exposure is not significant.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Corporation will not be able to meet its obligations as they become due.
The Corporation manages this risk by establishing budgets and funding plans and by levying sufficient

owners' assessments to fund its operating expenses and the necessary contributions to the reserve
fund.
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10.

YORK REGION STANDARD CONDOMINIUM CORPORATION NO. 1112
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OCTOBER 31, 2020

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK EXPOSURE (CONT’D)
Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of a potential financial loss caused by fluctuations in fair value of future cash
flows of a financial instrument due to changes in market interest rates. The Corporation is exposed to
this risk on its interest-bearing investments. To manage this risk, the Corporation intends to hold these
investments to maturity.

COMMITMENTS

The Corporation has entered into the following long-term contracts:
Type Period Annual Payment
Cable TV March 1, 2016 to February 28, 2023 $127,393 *
Elevator maintenance August 1, 2018 to July 31, 2023 23,357 *
Fire protection November 1, 2017 to October 31, 2022 5,859
Gas November 1, 2019 to October 31, 2020 o
HVAC November 1, 2016 to October 31, 2021 35,030 *
Management fees March 1, 2017 to February 29, 2020 104,832 *

*

Subject to annual increases.
Annual cost based on 9 cents per cubic metre

*%k

BUDGET INFORMATION

The 2020 budget amounts are presented for information purposes only. They were approved by the
Board of Directors and are unaudited.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

A Statement of Claim was filed against the Corporation in the amount of $ 750,000 for general
damages, $ 250,000 for special damages plus interest and costs in respect of a slip and fall on or about
January 8, 2018. This matter has been referred to the Corporation’s insurance company.

UNCERTAINTY REGARDING COVID-19

The economy of the Province of Ontario has been significantly impacted by the world-wide coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic. The duration of this pandemic and the related financial effect on the
Corporation’s future operations, cash flows and financial position cannot be reasonably estimated at
this time. The Board of Directors will continue to monitor the situation and will reflect any impact in the
financial statements as appropriate.
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Tapp & Company LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants Tel: 416-487-2000
160 Eglinton Avenue East, Suite 300 Fax: 416-487-5225
Toronto, Ontario M4P 3B5 contact@tappandco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shared Facilities Committee of
Beverley and Vista Shared Facilities

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the Beverley and Vista Shared Facilities, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at October 31, 2020, and the statements of operating fund and cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Beverley and Vista Shared Facilities as at October 31, 2020, and its results of operations and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Shared Facilities in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management and committee members are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such
internal control as management and committee members determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management and committee members are responsible for assessing the
Shared Facilities ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management and committee members either intends to
liquidate the Shared Facilities or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Shared Facilities financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
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Tapp & Company LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants Tel: 416-487-2000
160 Eglinton Avenue East, Suite 300 Fax: 416-487-5225
Toronto, Ontario M4P 3B5 contact@tappandco.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Shared Facilities internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management and the committee members.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management and the committee members use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Shared Facilities ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Shared Facilities to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charg'ed with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.
Toronto, Ontario Chartered Professional Accountants
March 8, 2021 Licensed Public Accountants
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BEVERLEY AND VISTA SHARED FACILITIES

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT OCTOBER 31, 2020

ASSETS

Current
Operating fund cash
Prepaid expenses

Reserve fund cash and investments (Note 2)
Long-term (Note 3)

LIABILITIES

Current
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Operating fund
Reserve fund

Due to YRSCC No. 1075
Due to YRSCC No. 1112
Current portion of mortgage payable (Note 4)

Long-term
Mortgage payable (Note 4)

FUND BALANCES

Reserve fund (Note 5)
Superintendent suite fund
Locker fund

Operating fund

Member (YRSCC No. 1075)

»j%a,é&é X%eﬂmmber (YRSCC No. 1112)

See Notes to Financial Statements
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2020 201
$ 90510 $ 133,822
6,172 187
96,682 134,009
950,574 963,505
230,510 230,510
$1277,766  $1.328,024
$ 41,580 $ 42,996

3,672 -

45,252 42,996
32,758 69,558
22,344 29,286
8,048 7,512
108,402 149,352
122,582 130,630
230,984 279,982
946,902 955,674
69,370 61,858
30,510 30,510
1,046,782 1,048,042
$1277,766  $1,328,024




BEVERLEY AND VISTA SHARED FACILITIES

STATEMENT OF RESERVE FUND

YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2020

Revenue
Allocation from operating fund
Interest earned

Expenses
Asphalt paving
Automatic door operator repairs
Changeroom renovations
Drain replacement-garage
Exercise equipment/repairs
Exterior lighting repairs
Fire system repairs
Garage door repairs
HVAC repairs
Interlocking replacement
Irrigation system repairs
Kitec replacement-common area
Landscaping
Lobby refurbishment
Office equipment
Reserve fund study
Retaining wall repair
Sanitary drainage repairs
Security equipment
Security system repairs
Swimming pool equipment repairs
Visitor parking line painting
Waterproofing

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenses
Fund Balance, beginning of year

Fund Balance, end of year

See Notes to Financial Statements

2020 2019

$221,413  $196,899

14,853 17,948

236,266 214,847
31,019 -
2,949 -
62,884 -

- 1,912

757 14,134

- 16,306

- 3,914
1,146 -

- 6,000

81,925 10,547

- 5,052

- 17,402
3,673 -

2,994 10,791

- 1,351
4,407 -

- 28,081
33,731 -
2,254 -

- 13,478
11,084 -
6,215 -

- 10,820

245,038 139,788

(8,772) 75,059

955,674 880,615

$946902  $955674
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BEVERLEY AND VISTA SHARED FACILITIES

STATEMENT OF SUPERINTENDENT SUITE FUND

YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2020

Revenue
Allocation from operating fund

Expense
Mortgage interest

Excess of revenue over expense
Fund Balance, beginning of year

Fund Balance, end of year

Represented by:
Superintendent suite

Mortgage payable (Note 4)

See Notes to Financial Statements
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2020 2019

$ 16,810 $ 16,810
9,298 9,797
7,512 7,013
61,858 54,845

$ 69,370 61.858
$ 200,000 $ 200,000
(130,630) _(138.,142)
$ 69370 $ 61,858




BEVERLEY AND VISTA SHARED FACILITIES
STATEMENT OF OPERATING FUND

YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2020

2020 2020 2019
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 9)
Revenue
Assessments from member corporations $1,068,212 $1,068212 $ 1,061,008
Less allocations to:
Reserve fund (221,413) (221,413) (196,899)
Superintendent suite fund (16,810) (16,810) (16.810)
829,989 829,989 847,299
Interest and other income 11,100 8,272 12,851
841,089 838,261 860,150
Expenses (Pages 7 and 8)
Administration 70,876 76,612 60,713
Common area housekeeping 17,400 23,354 17,957
Contract services 386,537 380,622 384,685
Repairs and maintenance 100,676 70,970 92,595
Utilities 149,961 132,862 138,682
Wages and benefits 115,639 108,083 105,542
841,089 792,503 800,174
Excess of revenue over expenses $ - 45,758 59,976
Distributed to:
YRSCC No. 1075 (23,414) (30,690)
YRSCC No. 1112 (22,344) (29,286)
Fund Balance, end of year $ - $ -

See Notes to Financial Statements
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BEVERLEY AND VISTA SHARED FACILITIES

YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2020

Administration
Insurance
Insurance deductible
Meetings
Office and general
Professional fees
Superintendent suite CEC fees
Telephone
Uniforms

Common Area Housekeeping
Carpets
Cleaning supplies
Decorating
Garage doors
General
Hardware and doors
Signs

Contract Services
Cleaning
Fire alarm monitoring
Garage cleaning
HVAC
Landscaping and snow removal
Management fees
Pest control
Recreation area
Security
Window washing

See Notes to Financial Statements

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES

2020 2020 2019
Budget Actual Actual
(Note 9)
$19,776 $18,910 $15,214
2,500 - -
1,750 763 1,540
19,730 23,997 24,875
8,600 15,445 3,830
6,720 6,680 6,378
10,800 10,195 8,796
1,000 622 80
70,876 76,612 60,713
3,000 2,245 2,043
6,000 12,587 7,906
1,800 1,740 1,756
1,200 2,591 504
4,200 4,172 2,390
600 19 3,358
___600 - -
17,400 23,354 17.957
71,784 70,371 70,371
900 904 881
9,025 10,718 9,023
8,640 8,629 8,380
37,152 36,751 36,066
7,652 7,521 7,332
326 302 317
12,530 7,198 12,529
238,228 238,228 239,503
300 - 283
386,537 380,622 384,685
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BEVERLEY AND VISTA SHARED FACILITIES

SCHEDULE OF EXPENSES (CONT’D)

YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2020

2020
Budget
(Note 9)
Repairs and Maintenance
Amenities 9,000
Building safety 12,000
Camera equipment 4,800
Electrical 6,900
Emergency generator 4,800
Exercise room 6,000
Exterior 600
Irrigation 2,400
Mechanical and plumbing 7,200
Plants 33,776
Roads 7,200
Snow removal 6.000
100,676
Utilities
Gas 5,647
Hydro 126,688
Water 17,626
149,961
Wages and Benefits
Employee benefits 16,699
Superintendent staff 98,940
115,639

See Notes to Financial Statements
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2020 2019

Actual Actual
5,118 10,030
8,985 16,086
4,595 1,369
8,826 12,038
3,777 3,919
1,587 5,567
- 1,582
3,086 1,967
1,669 3,367
24,617 24,432
7,200 7,119
1,510 5119
70,970 92,595
3,985 4,395
113,126 119,589
15,751 14,698
132,862 138,682
15,577 15,224
92,506 90,318
108,083 105,542




BEVERLEY AND VISTA SHARED FACILITIES
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED OCTOBER 31, 2020

2020 2019
Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities
Excess of revenue over expenses
Operating fund $ - $ -
Reserve fund (8,772) 75,059
Superintendent suite fund 7,512 7,013
(1,260) 82,072
Changes in working capital
Prepaid expenses (5,985) 104
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,256 (31,785)
Due to YRSCC No. 1075 and No. 1112 (43,742) 29,366
(48,731) 79,757
Financing activity
Mortgage principal repayments (7,512) (7,013)
Investment activity
Reserve fund investments, net 170,964 330,725
Increase in cash 114,721 403,469
Cash, beginning of year 604,023 200,554
Cash, end of year $718,744 $ 604,023
Comprised of:
Operating fund cash $ 90,510 $ 133,822
Reserve fund cash 628,234 470,201
$718,744 $ 604,023

See Notes to Financial Statements
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BEVERLEY AND VISTA SHARED FACILITIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OCTOBER 31, 2020

NATURE OF OPERATIONS

The Beverley and Vista Shared Facilities (“Shared Facilities”) were constructed for the exclusive use of York
Region Standard Condominium Corporation No. 1075 and York Region Standard Condominium Corporation
No. 1112. These corporations are obliged to operate the Shared Facilities and to fund the annual budgeted
expenditures based on a reciprocal agreement dated November 2, 2006. The shared percentages are as
follows:

York Region Standard Condominium Corporation

No. 1075 (The Beverley) 51.17%

York Region Standard Condominium Corporation
No. 1112 (The Vista) 48.83%
100.00%

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations. The significant policies are as follows:

Common elements

The common elements of the Shared Facilities are owned proportionately by the unit owners of the
member Corporations and consequently are not reflected as assets in these financial statements.

Fund accounting

Reserve fund

The Shared Facilities is required by the Condominium Act of Ontario to establish a reserve fund to be
used solely for the purpose of major repair and replacement of common elements and assets of the
Shared Facilities.

The Shared Facilities allocates to the reserve fund amounts that, calculated from expected repair and
replacement costs and life expectancies of the common elements and assets of the Shared Facilities,
are reasonably expected to provide sufficient funds to repair and replace the common elements and
assets. Revenue and costs related to such major repairs and replacements are accounted for in the
Statement of Reserve Fund.

Superintendent suite fund
The Corporation established the superintendent suite fund to account for the acquisition and the related
mortgage payments and interest costs for the mortgage on the superintendent suite. These are reported
in the Statement of Superintendent Suite Fund.

Operating fund

Revenue and expenses for the general operations of the Shared Facilities are reported in the Statement
of Operating Fund.
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BEVERLEY AND VISTA SHARED FACILITIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OCTOBER 31, 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Superintendent Suite and Lockers

These assets are recorded at cost. No amortization was charged against these assets as management
estimated that the residual value at year end is not less than cost.

Financial instruments

The Shared Facilities initially measures its financial assets and liabilities at fair value. The Shared
Facilities subsequently measures all its financial assets and financial liabilities at amortized cost.
Changes in fair value and the resultant impairment loss are recognized at each reporting date.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost include operating fund cash and reserve fund cash and
investments.

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payable and accrued liabilities, due to
YRSCC No. 1075 and No. 1112 and the mortgage payable.

The Shared Facilities has no financial assets measured at fair value and has not elected to carry any
financial asset or liability at fair value.

Revenue Recognition

Assessments from member corporations are recognized as revenue based on the budget distributed to
member corporations each year. Interest and other revenue are recognized as revenue of the related
fund when earned.

Contributed services

Committee members and owners volunteer their time to assist in the activities of the Shared Facilities.
While these services benefit the Shared Facilities considerably, a reasonable estimate of the time spent
and its fair market value cannot be made and accordingly, these contributed services are not
recognized in the financial statements.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-
profit organization requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets, liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses during the year. These estimates and
assumptions are reviewed periodically and adjustments are reported in the year in which they become
known.
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BEVERLEY AND VISTA SHARED FACILITIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OCTOBER 31, 2020

2. RESERVE FUND CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Interest
Description Maturity date Rate % 2020 2019
Cash $ 279,063 $ 124,083
BNS investment savings account 349,171 346,118
G.I.C.’S
General Bank of Canada June 23, 2020 2.11 - 70,278
ADS Canadian Bank October 5, 2020 2.11 - 100,000
Canadian Western Bank November 18, 2020 2.35 50,000 50,000
Home Trust Company June 23, 2021 2.30 70,277 70,277
Concentra Bank October 4, 2021 2.16 100,000 100,000
Equitable Bank October 3, 2022 217 100,000 100,000
Interest receivable 2,063 2,749

$ 950,574 $ 963,505

3. LONG-TERM ASSETS

On December 27, 2006, the Shared Facilities acquired the superintendent suite from the Declarant at a
cost of $200,000.

On February 12, 2015, the Shared Facilities acquired 3 lockers from the Declarant at a cost of $30,510.

4 MORTGAGE PAYABLE

The mortgage due to the Declarant bears interest at 7% and is repayable in blended payments of
principal and interest of $1,401 per month. The mortgage is secured by the condominium unit occupied
by the superintendent and is due on January 7, 2032.

Principal repayments required are as follows:

Year ended October 31, 2021 $ 8,048
2022 8,621

2023 9,235

2024 9,893

2025 10,597

Thereafter 84,236

130,630
Less current portion (8,048)

Due beyond one year $ 122,582
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BEVERLEY AND VISTA SHARED FACILITIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OCTOBER 31, 2020

RESERVE FUND

The Shared Facilities Committee has used the Class 2 report, with a site visit, of exp Services Inc.
dated March 2, 2020 and such other information as was available to them to evaluate the adequacy of
the reserve fund. That report proposed allocations of $221,413 for 2020, expenditures of $300,580 and
a year-end balance as at October 31, 2020 of $903,098. Actual amounts were allocations of $221,413,
expenditures of $245,038 and a year-end balance of $946,902. Reserve fund allocations are proposed
to increase annually by 16.5% for 2021 to 2026.

Any evaluation of the adequacy of the reserve fund is based upon assumptions as to the future interest
and inflation rates and estimates of the life expectancy of the building components and their
replacement costs. These factors are subject to change over time and the changes may be material;
accordingly, the Condominium Act requires that reserve fund studies be updated every three years.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
No remuneration was paid to the Shared Facilities Committee during the year.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS RISK EXPOSURE

The Shared Facilities is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments. The following
analysis provides a measure of the risk exposure and concentrations at the balance sheet date.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation. The Shared Facilities manages this risk by placing its operating
and reserve cash and investments with high quality institutions. The Shared Facilities believes its
financial exposure is not significant.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Shared Facilities will not be able to meet its obligations as they become
due. The Shared Facilities manages this risk by establishing budgets and funding plans and by levying

sufficient assessments to fund its operating expenses, debt payments and the necessary contributions
to the reserve and other funds.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk of a potential financial loss caused by fluctuations in fair value of future cash
flows of a financial instrument due to changes in market interest rates. The Shared Facilities is
exposed to this risk on its interest-bearing investments and mortgage payable. To manage this risk, the
Shared Facilities intends to hold the investments to maturity and has entered into a fixed-rate mortgage.
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10.

BEVERLEY AND VISTA SHARED FACILITIES
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OCTOBER 31, 2020

COMMITMENTS
The Shared Facilities has entered into the following long-term contracts:

Type Period Annual Payment
HVAC November 1, 2016 to October 31, 2021 $8,272 *
Landscaping and snow removal November 1, 2020 to October 31, 2025 40,426 *
Management fees March 1, 2020 to February 29, 2023 7,521 *
Security November 1, 2019 to October 31, 2022 238,228 **

* Subject to annual increases.
** Subject to increase commencing November 1, 2021.

BUDGET INFORMATION

The 2020 budget amounts are presented for information purposes only. They were approved by the
Shared Facilities Committee and are unaudited.

UNCERTAINTY REGARDING COVID-19

The economy of the Province of Ontario has been significantly impacted by the world-wide coronavirus
(COVID-19) pandemic. The duration of this pandemic and the related financial effect on the Shared
Facilities future operations, cash flows and financial position cannot be reasonably estimated at this
time. The Committee members will continue to monitor the situation and will reflect any impact in the
financial statements as appropriate.

Page 14.






